
 
 

  

  

Contact: Damon Stanton 

Tel: 01246 217011 

Email: damon.stanton@ne-
derbyshire.gov.uk 

Date: Tuesday, 26 October 2021 

 
To:  All Members of the Audit & Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee 

 
Please attend a meeting of the Audit & Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee to be 
held on Wednesday, 3 November 2021 at 3.00 pm in the Council Chamber, District 
Council Offices, Mill Lane, Wingerworth, Chesterfield S42 6NG. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
Assistant Director of Governance and Monitoring Officer  
 
 

Conservative Group Labour Group Liberal Democrat Group 

 
Cllr W Armitage  
Cllr S Clough 
Cllr M Roe 
Cllr K Tait 
Cllr M E Thacker   

 
Cllr N Barker  
Cllr P R Kerry 
Cllr G Morley   
 

 
Cllr R Shipman  

 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1   Apologies for Absence   
 

2   Declarations of Interest   
 

 Members are requested to declare the existence and nature of any disclosable 
pecuniary interest and/or other interest, not already on their register of interests, 
in any item on the agenda and withdraw from the meeting at the appropriate time. 
 

3   Minutes of Last Meeting  (Pages 4 - 8) 
 

 To approve as a correct record and the Chair to sign the Minutes of the Audit and 
Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee held on 22 September 2021. 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

4   Reports of the Assistant Director - Finance and Resources (Section 151 
Officer)   
 

a.   NEDDC Corporate Debt - 30 September 2021  (Pages 9 - 16) 
 

b.   MTFP - Budget Monitoring April - September 2021 Q2  (Pages 17 - 32) 
 

c.   NEDDC Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy  (Pages 33 - 42) 
 

d.   Evaluating the Effectiveness of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny 
Committee  (Pages 43 - 137) 
 

e.   MTFP - Revised Budget 2021/22  (Pages 138 - 154) 
 

5   Report of the Assistant Director of Governance and Monitoring Officer   
 

a.   Committee Work Programme 2021-2022  (Pages 155 - 159) 
 

6   Forward Plan of Executive Decisions   
 

 To consider the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions. The most up-to-date 

Forward Plan of Executive Decisions can be accessed via the following link: 

 
https://democracy.ne-
derbyshire.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=1137&RD=0&bcr=1  
 

7   To consider any other items which the Chair is of the opinion should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.   
 

8   Date of Next Meeting   
 

 The next meeting of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committtee is 
scheduled to take place on 1 December 2021. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2

https://democracy.ne-derbyshire.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=1137&RD=0&bcr=1
https://democracy.ne-derbyshire.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=1137&RD=0&bcr=1


 

 
 
 

Page 3



1 

AUDIT & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 22 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor Martin E Thacker MBE JP (Chair) (in the Chair) 
 
 

Councillor William Armitage Councillor Nigel Barker 
Councillor Pat Kerry Councillor Gerry Morley 
 
Also Present: 
 
J Dethick Head of Finance and Resources, Section 151 Officer 
S Sternberg Joint Head Of Service - Corporate Governance & Monitoring 

Officer 
J Williams 
M Norman 
S Lee 

Internal Audit Consortium Manager 
Mazars 
Strategic Partnership Co-ordinator 

N Calver Governance Manager 
D Stanton Governance Officer 
 
 
AUD
33/2
1-22 

Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors M Roe and K Tait.   
 

AUD
34/2
1-22 

Declarations of Interest 
 
Members were requested to declare the existence and nature of any disclosable 
pecuniary interest and/or other interest, not already on their register of interest, in 
any item on the agenda and withdraw from the meeting at the appropriate time.  
 
No declarations were made at this meeting. 
 

AUD
35/2
1-22 

Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
RESOLVED – That the Minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Corporate 
Governance Scrutiny Committee held on 28 July 2021 be approved as a correct 
record and signed by the Chair. 
 

AUD
36/2
1-22 

Audit Completion Report 2020/21 
 
The Committee welcomed Mike Norman (Mazars) to the meeting to present 
the Audit Completion Report for the 2020/21 financial year. The report 
summarised the findings of Mazars in respect of their 2020/21 audit.  
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
1. That the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee gives its 

consideration to the attached report from the Council’s external auditors, 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



2 

Mazars. 
 
2. That the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee approve 

the letter of representation contained within the Audit Completion Report 
and authorise the Chief Financial Officer to sign the letter on behalf of 
the Council.  

 
AUD
37/2
1-22 

Internal Audit Consortium Annual Report 
 
The Internal Audit Consortium Manager presented a report which provided a 
summary of the internal audit work undertaken during 2020/21. 
 
Members heard that the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards required the 
Internal Audit Consortium Manager to deliver an annual internal audit opinion 
and report that can be used by the Organisation to inform its governance 
statement. 
 
The Committee noted that 73% of audits had been completed, and that all 19 
reports were given either substantial or reasonable assurance levels. 
 
Members enquired about how the audits were conducted given the challenges 
presented by the Pandemic. The Internal Audit Consortium Manager clarified 
that the internal audit was largely conducted remotely via zoom and electronic 
documents.  
 
RESOLVED – That the Internal Audit Consortium Annual Report for 2020/21 
be noted. 
 

AUD
38/2
1-22 

External Review of Internal Audit 
 
The Internal Audit Consortium Manager presented a report which informed 
Members of the results of the external review of internal audit that took place 
in May 2021.  
 
Members commented that they would like an interim report on the action plan 
to address the recommendations of the external review of internal audit at the 
January meeting.  
 
RESOLVED – That the results of the external review of internal audit be 
noted. 
 

AUD
39/2
1-22 

Monitoring the Implementation of Internal Audit Recommendations 
 
The Committee considered a summary of the internal audit recommendations 
made and implemented for the financial years 2018/19 – 2020/21 to date.  
 
Members expressed concern that climate change was marked as a low 
priority, and asked officers to note the climate emergency the Council 
declared at a previous Council meeting. There was a consensus that the 
implementation of the climate change recommendations should be considered 
a high priority. 
 

Page 5



3 

The Committee requested that if an audit was covid affected, that an 
explanation be offered by officers as to why it was covid affected, and what 
was being done to mitigate it. 
 
Members requested a further update on the recommendations in six months. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

AUD
40/2
1-22 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports 
 
Members were presented with a report which outlined progress in respect of 
the 2021/22 internal audit plan.  
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted.  
 

AUD
41/2
1-22 

Review of Internal Audit Charter 
 
Members considered a report which outlined the results of a review of the 
Internal Audit Charter.  
 
The Committee was reminded that the Internal Audit Charter was last formally 
approved by the Committee in September 2020. It was agreed that the 
Charter would be reviewed every year to ensure that it was kept up to date.  
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
1. That Members note the outcome of the review of the Internal Audit 

Charter. 
 
2. That subject to any comments Members wish to make, that the Internal 

Audit Charter be agreed. 
 
3. That the agreed Internal Audit Charter be reviewed in a years’ time or 

sooner in the event of any significant changes being made to the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards.  

 
AUD
42/2
1-22 

Risk Management 
 
Members received a report which updated them of the current position 
regarding risk management arrangements and the Strategic Risk Register as 
at August 2021.  
 
The Committee discussed the current HGV driver shortage and the risk it 
posed to supplies in the District. Members considered whether the Council’s 
economic regeneration plan could encourage and promote employment in the 
sector.  
 
Members also enquired about the Rykneld Risk Register and board 
membership at Northwood Ltd. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

Page 6



4 

 
 
 

AUD
42/2
1-21 

Annual Statement of Accounts 
 
The Committee considered a report that requested the approval of the audited 
Statement of Accounts for 2020/21. 
 
Members had a wide ranging discussion on business rates, council tax, the 
general fund deficit, pension liability, and heritage assets.  
 
RESOLVED – That  
 
1. The Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee approve the 

audited statement of accounts in respect of 2020/21.  
 
2. That delegated powers are granted to the Chief Financial Officer in 

consultation with the Chair of the Audit and Corporate Governance 
Scrutiny Committee to agree any changes which may be necessary in 
order to ensure the finalisation of the external audit currently being 
concluded by the Council’s external auditors Mazars to ensure 
completion of the Statement of Accounts by the statutory deadline of 30 
September 2021. 

 
AUD
43/2
1-22 

Assessment of Going Concern 2020/21 
 
The Head of Finance and Resources and Section 151 Officer presented a 
report which informed the Committee of an assessment of the Council as a 
‘going concern’ for the purposes of producing the 2020/21 accounts.  
 
RESOLVED – That the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee 
accepts the outcome of the Council’s Section 151 Officer’s assessment of the 
Council’s ‘going concern’ status for the purpose of preparing the statement of 
accounts for 2020/21. 
 

AUD
44/2
1-22 

Annual Governance Statement 
 
Members received a report which sought the agreement of the Committee to 
the conclusions and content of the Annual Governance Statement which it 
was proposed to incorporate within the Council’s Statement of Accounts for 
2020/21. 
 
RESOLVED – That  
 
1. That the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee consider the 

draft Annual Governance Statement as set out in Appendix 1 and make any 
observations or recommendations which they consider to be appropriate 
prior to the final version being incorporated within the Council’s Statement of 
Accounts. 

 
2. That the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee approve the 

local Code of Corporate Governance as set out in Appendix 2. 

Page 7



5 

 
 
 
 
3. That the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee having 

reviewed the effectiveness of the Governance Framework are satisfied that 
the Council’s governance and internal control  arrangements are fit for 
purpose. 

 
4. That delegated powers are granted to the Chief Financial Officer in 

consultation with the Chair or Deputy Chair of the Audit and Corporate 
Governance Scrutiny Committee to agree any changes which may be 
necessary in order to ensure the finalisation of the external audit currently 
being concluded by the Council’s external auditors Mazars to ensure 
completion of the Statement of Accounts by the statutory deadline of 30 
September 2021. 

 
AUD
45/2
1-22 

Corporate Work Programme 2021-2022 
 
RESOLVED – That the Work Programme be approved and noted. 
 

AUD
46/2
1-22 

Forward Plan of Executive Decisions 
 
RESOLVED – That the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions be noted. 
 

AUD
47/2
1-22 

To consider any other items which the Chair is of the opinion should be 
considered as a matter of urgency. 
 
The Council’s Strategic Partnership Coordinator was present at the meeting to 
clarify a decision in regards to a grant given to an external partner, Links 
CVS. 
 
The officer informed Members that Cabinet had agreed to maintain the budget 
given in grants to external partners. The service contract with Links CVS had 
ended on 30.09.21, with confirmation of this communicated in line with the 
Derbyshire Compact.  Links CVS had the opportunity to submit a tender for a 
contract which provided infrastructure support to NED voluntary and 
community sector (VCS) groups from 01.10.21 but no application was 
received. This opportunity was advertised through the established NEDDC 
Procurement Process.  
 
The Strategic Partnership Coordinator agreed to provide further information 
on the tendering process to Members. 
 

AUD
48/2
1-22 

Date of Next Meeting 
 
The date of next meeting was scheduled to take place on 03 November 2021. 
 

Page 8



 
 

 
North East Derbyshire District Council  

 
Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee 

 
3 November 2021 

 

North East Derbyshire District Council – Corporate Debt 30 September 2021 

 
Report of the Assistant Director – Finance & Resources (S151 Officer) 

 
Classification:  This report is public 
 
Report By: Jayne Dethick – Assistant Director – Finance & Resources  

(S151 Officer) 
 
Contact Officer:  as above 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
PURPOSE/SUMMARY 
 

 To present to Members of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny 
Committee a summary of the corporate debt position at 30 September 2021. 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
1. That the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee note the report 

concerning the Council’s corporate debt position as at 30 September 2021.  
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
  
IMPLICATIONS 
  
Finance and Risk         Yes  No  
 
 
Appendix 1 details the current position regarding corporate debt.  
 
On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer    
  
Legal including Data Protection     Yes   No  
 
There are no legal implications arising directly from this report. 
 
On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council  
 
 
 
Staffing         Yes  No  

Page 9

Agenda Item 4a



 
 

 
There are no staffing issues arising directly from this report. 
 
On Behalf of the Head of Paid Service 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
DECISION INFORMATION 
 

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision 
which has a significant impact on two or 
more District wards or which results in 
income or expenditure to the Council above 
the following thresholds:               

N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BDC:     
 

Revenue - £75,000    
Capital - £150,000     

NEDDC:  
 

Revenue - £100,000  
Capital - £250,000     

 Please indicate which threshold applies 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

N/A 

Has the relevant Portfolio Holder been 
informed 

N/A 

District Wards Affected 
 

All 

Links to Corporate Plan priorities or 
Policy Framework 
 

All  

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
REPORT DETAILS 
 
1 Corporate Debt Position 
 
1.1 This report updates Members of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny 

Committee on the current position in relation to corporate debt.  

1.2 Appendix 1 contains details of the debt position in relation to sundry debtors, 
overpaid housing benefits and rents.  

 
2. Housing Benefit Overpayments 

2.1 Housing benefit totalling £17.61m is paid to tenants living in rented 

accommodation in North East Derbyshire each year. On occasion an overpayment 

can happen, these are mostly are recoverable. The overpayment is not recovered 

if it is the result of official error, unless it was reasonable for the tenant to have 

known they were being overpaid.  

Page 10



 
 

2.2 Overpayments happen for various reasons, most commonly when we are not told 

about a change in circumstance such as an income increase or someone moving 

in or out of the home.  It can also occur because of overlaps in payment of other 

benefits such as Universal Credit. 

2.3 When an overpayment is identified the tenant (or former tenant) is notified and 

arrangements are made to recover the amount. If Housing Benefit or Universal 

Credit is still being paid then the overpayment is recovered by deducting an 

amount from the benefit received each week. The Department of Work and 

Pensions specify the maximum amount that can be recovered each week 

(currently £11.25). This cannot be exceeded but can be reduced depending on 

individual circumstances.   

2.4 Where housing benefit is no longer being paid then an invoice will be issued for 

the due amount and arrangements made for collection. If an invoice remains 

unpaid or an arrangement to repay persistently defaults then further action may be 

taken including pursuing the debt in the County Court. 

2.6 The value of overpayments identified each quarter currently averages £34,000, 

which equates to around 0.19% of the total housing benefit paid. The 

benchmarking we perform with our Derbyshire local authority neighbours shows a 

very similar picture.    

2.6 Table 2 in Appendix 1 shows that the overall position isn’t worsening and debt 

levels in the first two years are slightly improving. However, the “over 5 years” level 

of debt is increasing as the difficult to collect debts become older and older. An 

exercise is currently underway to identify how much of this debt is effectively 

irrecoverable to inform a decision on potential write offs. 

2.7 Work is continuing to review the overpayments position and further updates will be 

provided to the Committee as this progresses. 

3 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
3.1 To ensure the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee are 

informed of the latest position concerning the Council’s debt.   
 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 There are no alternative options for consideration. 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 
 

Corporate Debt as at 30 September 2021 

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied 
on to a material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the 

Page 11



 
 

section below.  If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC) 
you must provide copies of the background papers) 

 

Report Author 
 

Contact Number 

Jayne Dethick – Assistant Director – Finance and 
Resources (S151 Officer) 

 01246 217078 

 
 
 

Page 12



 

1 

 

     APPENDIX 1: TABLE 1 
 
Aged Debt Reporting – Sundry Debtors 
 

Debt Outstanding as at 

Current 

Debt 

90 – 365 

Days 

1 to 2 

years 

2 – 3 

years 3 – 4 years 4 – 5 years 

5+ 

years Total 

 

Write Offs  

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000  £000  

Average Debt 2015/16 972 201 76 27 23 33 25 1357  14  

Average Debt 2016/17 1551 104 68 49 16 21 32 1839  58  

Average Debt 2017/18 781 71 43 21 19 9 26 970  11  

Average Debt 2018/19 852 64 112 19 9 10 24 1090  41  

Average Debt 2019/20 605 39 22 22 16 7 24 871  3 

Average Debt 2020/21 1,954 216 32 25 12 23 25 2,287  9 

Average Debt 2021/22 1,056 424 63 22 12 23 32 1,632   

30 June 2021 1,028 157 60 23 9 24 32 1,333  0 

30 September 2021 1,085 691 66 20 15 22 33 1,932  0 

 

P
age 13



 2 

 
 

APPENDIX 1: TABLE 2 

Aged Debt Reporting – Overpaid Housing Benefits 

 

   

 

Debt Outstanding as at 

Current 

Debt 90 to 365 days 

1 to 2 

years 

2 – 3 

years 

3 – 4 

years 

4 – 5 

years Over 5 years Total 

Write offs 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Average Debt 2015/16 182 336 263 172 160 133 209 1,445 76 

Average Debt 2016/17 173 332 346 203 123 128 241 1,546 144 

Average Debt 2017/18 141 318 322 256 157 105 283 1,582 89 

Average Debt 2018/19 104 263 291 253 201 138 340 1,589 38 

Average Debt 2019/20 75 137 259 247 212 173 425 1,527 68 

Average Debt 2020/21 59 95 146 194 223 186 622 1,525 10 

Average Debt 2021/22 34 114 132 146 221 185 686 1,518 11 

30 June 2021 29 114 134 167 221 182 664 1,513 0 

30 September 2021 39 114 130 124 222 188 708 1,525 11 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 14



 3 

 
APPENDIX 1: TABLE 3 

 
 HRA total Indebtedness  

Debt Outstanding as at Total Write Offs in Year 

 £000 £000 

Average Debt 2015/16 2,203 266 

Average Debt 2016/17 2,023 178 

Average Debt 2017/18 2,028 203 

Average Debt 2018/19 1,807 162 

Average Debt 2019/20 1,928 208 

Average Debt 2020/21 1,938 116 

Average Debt 2021/22 2,180 0 

30 June 2021 2,303 0 

30 September 2021 2,057 0 

P
age 15



 4 

APPENDIX 1: TABLE 4 
 

SUMMARY OF PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS 2021/22 
 

 General 

Fund 

Sundry 

Debtors 

Over Paid 

Housing 

Benefit 

HRA 

Rents 

Total 

 £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s 

 

Balance B/Fwd 

 

(229) 

 

(1,374) 

 

(1,147) 

 

(2,750) 

 

Write offs in current financial year  

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

Actual increase in provision 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

Provision C/Fwd (229) (1,374) (1,147) (2,750) 

     

Current Debt position 1,932 1,525 2,057 5,514 

     

Percentage Coverage 12% 90% 56% 53% 

 

 

 

P
age 16



1 
 

  
 

North East Derbyshire District Council 
 

Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee 
 

3 November 2021 
 

Medium Term Financial Plan – Budget Monitoring April -  Sept 2021 (Q2) 

 
Report of the Assistant Director – Finance and Resources (S151 Officer) 

 
 Classification:  This report is public 
 

Report By: Jayne Dethick, Assistant Director - Finance and Resources (S151 
Officer) 

 
Contact Officer:  Jayne Dethick 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 PURPOSE/SUMMARY 
 

 To present to Members of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee a 
summary of the budget position for the second quarter of 2021/22 which will be presented 
to Cabinet at its meeting on 25 November 2021. 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. That the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee note the report 

concerning the Council’s budget monitoring report for Quarter 2 and make any 
comments that they believe to be appropriate concerning these matters. 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
  
 IMPLICATIONS 
  
 Finance and Risk         Yes   No  
 

 These are detailed in the attached report.  
   
 On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer    
  
 Legal including Data Protection      Yes  No 

  
 There are no legal issues arising directly from this report. 
 
  On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council  
 
  
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4b



2 
 

 Staffing         Yes  No  
 
 There are no staffing issues arising directly from this report. 
 
 On Behalf of the Head of Paid Service 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 DECISION INFORMATION 
 

Is the decision a Key Decision? 

A Key Decision is an executive decision 
which has a significant impact on two or 
more District wards or which results in 
income or expenditure to the Council above 
the following thresholds:               

N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BDC:     

 

Revenue - £75,000    

Capital - £150,000     

 

NEDDC:  

 

Revenue - £100,000  

Capital - £250,000     

 Please indicate which threshold applies 

Is the decision subject to Call-In?(Only 
Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  

N/A 

Has the relevant Portfolio Holder been 
informed 

N/A 

District Wards Affected All 

Links to Corporate Plan priorities or 
Policy Framework 

All  

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
1. REPORT DETAILS 

 
 
1.1 To update Members of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee 

concerning the current budget position in respect of quarter two - to 30 September 2021. 
 
1.2 The report to be taken to the Council’s Cabinet on 25 November 2021 is accordingly 

brought to the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee for its consideration.  
   
 
2 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
2.1 To ensure that the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee is kept informed 

of the latest position concerning Budget Monitoring. 
 
 
  

Page 18



3 
 

3 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
3.1 This report is concerned with monitoring the position against the Council’s previously 

approved budget. Accordingly the report does not set out any options where a decision 
is required by Members. 

  
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 
 

Q2 Budget Monitoring 2021/22 pack 
 

Background Papers  

 

Report Author 
 

Contact Number 

Jayne Dethick – Head of Finance and Resources (01246) 217078 
 
 

 

Page 19



1 
 

Agenda Item No  
 

North East Derbyshire District Council 
 

Cabinet  
 

25 November 2021 
 

Medium Term Financial Plan – Budget Monitoring April -  Sept 2021 (Q2) 

 
Report of the Portfolio Holder with Responsibility for Finance 

 
 Classification:  This report is public 
 

Report By: Jayne Dethick, Assistant Director - Finance and Resources (S151 
Officer) 

 
Contact Officer:  Jayne Dethick 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 PURPOSE/SUMMARY 
 

To update Cabinet on the financial position of the Council following the second quarter’s 
budget monitoring exercise for the General Fund, the Housing Revenue Account and the 
Capital Programme 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. That Cabinet note the budget monitoring position outlined in this report and detailed 

in Appendices 1-5. 
 

Approved by the Portfolio Holder – Yes 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

  
 IMPLICATIONS 
  
 Finance and Risk         Yes   No  
 

 Measures are in place to minimise the impact of lost income in 2021/22 and ensure that 
the cash flow position remains protected as a result of the pandemic. The impact on the 
annual budget is continually reviewed during this period of uncertainty to ensure it 
remains robust and that reserves remain adequate should they need to be utilised  

   
 On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer    
  
 Legal including Data Protection      Yes  No 

  
 There are no legal issues arising directly from this report. 
 

Page 20



2 
 

  On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council  
 
 Staffing         Yes  No  
 
 There are no staffing issues arising directly from this report. 
 
 On Behalf of the Head of Paid Service 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 DECISION INFORMATION 
 

Is the decision a Key Decision? 

A Key Decision is an executive decision 
which has a significant impact on two or 
more District wards or which results in 
income or expenditure to the Council above 
the following thresholds:               

No 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BDC:     

 

Revenue - £75,000    

Capital - £150,000     

 

NEDDC:  

 

Revenue - £100,000  

Capital - £250,000     

 Please indicate which threshold applies 

Is the decision subject to Call-In?(Only 
Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  

No 

Has the relevant Portfolio Holder been 
informed 

Yes 

District Wards Affected All 

Links to Corporate Plan priorities or 
Policy Framework 

All  

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 REPORT DETAILS 
 
1 Background 
 
 To update Cabinet on the financial position of the Council following the second quarter’s 

budget monitoring exercise for the General Fund, the Housing Revenue Account and the 
Capital Programme. 

  
2 Budget Monitoring 2021/22 
 
2.1 As with last year, the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic is still having a detrimental 

impact across some of the Council’s services. Loss of income from fees and charges 
within Leisure Services continued throughout the first few months of the year but it is 
pleasing to note that this is improving week by week as local communities slowly 
return to pre Covid lifestyles. The Government’s sales, fees and charges 

Page 21



3 
 

compensation scheme continued to operate until 30 June this year providing financial 
assistance to the leisure service for that period.  Additional expenditure is still being 
incurred for cleaning, protective clothing and equipment and ICT. These budget 
pressures can be met from the Covid Assistance grant received last year so do not 
put an additional pressure on the current year’s budget. 

 
 General Fund 
2.2 The position in respect of the General Fund as at 30 September 2021 is summarised in 

Appendix 1 attached to this report. The appendix shows the Original Budget that was 
set in February 2021, together with the Current Budget compared to the 30 September 
position. The main variances against the current budget are shown in Table 1 below with 
variances at service level shown in Appendix 2. 

  
2.3 The Operations Directorate is £0.222m higher than the original forecast. The main 

variance is in relation to the Waste Recycling service (£0.192m) which was brought in 
house earlier this year following insolvency of the external provider. 

 
 The Growth Directorate is £0.009m lower than the original forecast. Increased cost of 

agency staff is being offset by savings on utilities in the first half of the year.  
 
2.4  All of these budgets have been scrutinised and amended as required as part of the 

revised budget which is being reported to this Cabinet under separate cover. 
 

Financial Reserves  

2.5 Transfers from Earmarked Reserves 

The use of earmarked reserves in 2021/22 to date is £1.691m comprising: 
 

 £0.079m from revenue grants 

 £1.612m from earmarked reserves 
 
2.6 Transfers to Earmarked Reserves 
 

There have been transfers to earmarked reserves during 2021/22 totalling £0.060m. This 
comprises: 

 £0.060m in revenue grants received.  
 

2.7 The Invest to Save Reserve currently has a balance £2.543m. Commitments already 
made against this reserve for 2021/22 and future years amount to £0.375m leaving 
£2.168m currently uncommitted.  

2.8 There are ongoing commitments against the earmarked reserves which will continue in 
2021/22 and future years. Should any of the reserves prove unnecessary in the light of 
subsequent events then they will be moved back into unallocated General Fund 
resources.  

  Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
 
2.9 Appendix 3 shows the HRA position at quarter two. To date the HRA has remained 

relatively stable with income slightly above budget by £0.039m and expenditure also 
above budget by £0.094m resulting in an overall expenditure position of £0.055m. The 

Page 22



4 
 

variance is largely due to the cost of a large value insurance claim which is awaiting 
decision and reimbursement by the insurers. 

  
Capital Investment Programme 

  
2.10  Appendix 4 shows the capital position at quarter two. The HRA Capital Programme is 

currently £5.310m lower than forecast largely as a result of the shortage of building 
materials limiting HRA capital works in the first half of the year.   

 
2.11 The Council has sufficient capital resources in place to finance the actual expenditure 

and commitments of the capital programme this year.   
 

Treasury Management 

2.12 The treasury management function covers the borrowing and investment of Council 
funds. All transactions are conducted in accordance with the Council’s approved 
strategy and the CIPFA Code of Practice.  Good treasury management plays an 
important role in the sound financial management of the Council’s resources. 

2.13 The Council approved the 2021/22 Treasury Management Strategy at its meeting on 1 
February 2021. Appendix 5 identifies the Treasury Management activity undertaken up 
to the second quarter of 2021/22.  

 
3 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
3.1 The report summarises the financial position of the Council following the second quarter’s 

budget monitoring exercise for the General Fund, the Housing Revenue Account, Capital 
Programme and Treasury Management activity. 

 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 This report is concerned with monitoring the position against the Council’s previously 

approved budget. Accordingly the report does not set out any options where a decision 
is required by Members. 

  
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 

General Fund Summary Monitoring Q2 2021/22 
General Fund Detail Monitoring Q2 2021/22 
HRA  Monitoring Q2 2021/22 
Capital Expenditure Monitoring Q2 2021/22 
Treasury Management Monitoring Q2 2021/22 

Background Papers  

 

Report Author 
 

Contact Number 

Jayne Dethick – Head of Finance and Resources (01246) 217078 
 
 

Page 23

file:///C:/dfsroot/UserFiles/CorporateServices/Typing/New%20Committees/MEMBERS%20HYPERLINK/CABINET/ARCHIVE/2014/CABINET%202%20JULY%202014/Appendix%20C%20to%20AGIN%208(c).pdf
file:///C:/dfsroot/UserFiles/CorporateServices/Typing/New%20Committees/MEMBERS%20HYPERLINK/CABINET/ARCHIVE/2014/CABINET%202%20JULY%202014/Appendix%20E%20to%20AGIN%208(c).pdf


5 
 

 

Page 24



GENERAL FUND ACCOUNT  - BUDGET MONITORING SUMMARY APPENDIX 1 

2021/22 - QUARTER 2

1 2 3 4 5
Original 

Budget 

2021/22

Current 

Budget 

2021/22

Profiled  Qtr 2   

Budget        

Actuals with 

Accruals    Variance     

£ £ £ £ £

Operations Directorate 10,860,143 10,867,604 5,060,286 5,282,468 222,182

Growth Directorate 1,243,886 1,243,886 (339,194) (348,630) (9,435)

Recharges to Capital and HRA (527,500) (527,500) (263,854) (263,854) 0

Savings Target (15,933) (15,933) (7,967) 0 7,967

Net Cost of Services 11,560,596 11,568,057 4,449,271 4,669,984 220,713

Investment Properties (413,910) (413,910) (250,566) (255,361) (4,795)

Bad Debt Provision 40,000 40,000 20,000          20,000 0

Interest (177,160) (177,160) (88,616) (88,616) 0

Debt Repayment Minimum Revenue Provision 56,000 56,000 28,000          28,000 0

Parish Precepts 3,386,780 3,386,780 3,386,780 3,386,780 0

Parish Grants 70,382 70,382 70,382 0 (70,382)

Transfer from NNDR Reserve (823,900) (823,900) (823,900) (823,900) 0

Transfer To Earmarked Reserves 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 0

Transfer From Earmarked Reserves (859,286) (866,747) (866,747) (866,747) 0

Total Spending Requirement 12,899,502 12,899,502 5,984,603 6,130,140 145,537

Business Rates (2,826,100) (2,826,100) (1,413,050) -   1,413,050 0

Revenue Support Grant 0 0 0                  -   0

New Homes Bonus (360,439) (360,439) (180,220) -      180,220 0

Lower Tier Services Grant (205,095) (205,095) (102,548) -      102,548 0

Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit - Council Tax 0 (98,661) (49,331) -        49,331 0

NEDDC Council Tax Requirement (6,121,088) (6,022,427) (3,011,214) -   3,011,214 0

Parish Council Council Tax Requirement (3,386,780) (3,386,780) (3,386,780) -   3,386,780 0

0

Council Tax Requirement (12,899,502) (12,899,502) (8,143,141) (8,143,141) 0

Page 25



GENERAL FUND ACCOUNT  - BUDGET MONITORING DETAIL APPENDIX 2
2021/22 - QUARTER 2

Original 

Budget 

2021/22

Current 

Budget 

2021/22

Profiled    Qtr 

2   Budget        

Actuals with 

Accruals 

2021/22

Variance 

2021/22       

£ £ £ £ £

Operations Directorate

Director of Operations & Head Of Paid Service

1218 Community Safety 20,624 20,624 (5,843) (3,491) 2,352

1283 Emergency Planning 16,000 16,000 8,002 0 (8,002)
4500 Strategic Director - Operations & Head of Paid Service 60,367 60,367 30,184 32,781 2,597
5700 Joint Strategic Director - Environment & Enforcement 55,930 55,930 27,983 23,669 (4,314)
5720 Supporting PA's 86,276 86,276 58,015 57,784 (231)

239,197 239,197 118,341 110,743 (7,598)

Joint Head of Service Environmental Health

3400 Environmental Protection 97,143 97,143 68,031 63,543 (4,488)
3401 Food, Health & Safety 117,176 117,176 91,369 96,750 5,382
3402 Environmental Enforcement 115,000 115,000 57,526 62,501 4,975
3403 Neighbourhood Management 0 0 16,929 15,997 (932)
3404 Licensing 13,132 13,132 41,231 41,872 641
3405 Pollution 117,873 117,873 78,675 75,558 (3,117)
3407 Pest Control 17,227 17,227 26,143 27,044 901
3409 EH Technical Support & Management 239,640 239,640 148,650 150,186 1,536
3410 Private Sector Housing 77,432 77,432 48,953 48,030 (923)
3419 Destitute Funerals 1,500 1,500 750 1,484 734
3420 Fly Tipping 3,000 3,000 1,500 0 (1,500)

3423 Air Quality Feasibility Study 0 0 13,108 13,108 (1)
3425 Covid-19 Fines 0 0 0 (260) (260)
3426 Covid Enforcement Team 0 0 1,572 1,572 (0)
3427 Private Water Supply Contract 0 0 15,151 15,151 0
3726 Works In Default 0 0 0 3,150 3,150

799,123 799,123 609,587 615,685 6,098

Head of Service Partnerships and Transformation

1315 Design & Print 116,305 116,305 55,523 51,574 (3,949)
1321 Communications & Marketing 93,574 93,574 42,312 41,534 (778)
1323 NEDDC News 28,000 28,000 6,006 7,811 1,805
1329 Corporate Web Site 780 780 390 439 49
1331 Strategic Partnerships 196,924 196,924 78,382 78,969 588
1332 Strategic Partnership Projects 0 0 (71,566) (71,566) (0)
1333 Healthy North East Derbyshire 30,134 30,134 (40,556) (40,556) 0
3408 Home Improvement 21,141 21,141 16,739 18,582 1,842
4352 LEADER 0 0 10,634 10,655 21

4443 Elderly Peoples Clubs 4,000 4,000 2,002 0 (2,002)
4561 Leisure Centre Management 133,471 133,471 76,034 58,605 (17,429)
4600 Head of Service Partnerships & Transformation 37,552 37,552 9,229 9,229 0
4720 Sportivate 0 0 (16,415) (16,415) (0)
4722 Physical Inactivity Fund 0 0 (30,267) (30,267) (0)
4723 Generation Games 0 0 3 673 670
4724 Walking into Communities 11,000 11,000 (26,742) (26,742) (0)
4726 Walking for Health 0 0 (18,754) (18,754) (0)
4727 Five 60 0 0 (21,488) (21,488) (0)
4731 Promotion Of Recreation And Leisure 30,312 30,312 15,168 14,798 (370)
4732 Schools Promotion 0 0 8,964 8,946 (18)
4736 Derbyshire Sports Forum 14,450 14,450 14,450 14,450 0
4739 Coach Core Apprentices 0 0 3 4,078 4,075
4742 Arts Development 2,530 2,530 1,266 2,524 1,258
5215 Telephones 29,220 29,220 14,616 16,318 1,702
5216 Mobile Phones and Ipads 23,170 23,170 11,588 9,639 (1,949)
5221 Customer Services 357,989 357,989 143,751 141,361 (2,390)
5223 Franking Machine 57,150 57,150 28,584 21,241 (7,343)

5701 Joint ICT Service 0 0 255,876 240,678 (15,197)
5734 NEDDC ICT Service 520,178 520,178 188,085 183,464 (4,622)
5735 Cyber Security 0 0 3,040 3,042 2
5736 Business Development 74,392 74,392 108,753 104,072 (4,682)
5737 Corporate Printing Costs 15,890 15,890 7,948 4,013 (3,935)
5785 Contributions 136,085 136,085 123,678 117,138 (6,540)
5825 Concessionary Bus Passes (10,100) (10,100) (5,052) (344) 4,708
8441 Eckington Swimming Pool 328,127 328,127 319,222 294,826 (24,396)
8445 Eckington Pool Cafe (3,381) (3,381) 29,885 10,509 (19,376)
8451 Dronfield Sports Centre 60,477 60,477 348,571 383,379 34,808

8455 Dronfield Café (8,634) (8,634) 21,128 13,868 (7,260)
8461 Sharley Park Sports Centre 427,394 434,855 405,470 412,543 7,073
8465 Sharley Park Sports Centre Outdoor (3,090) (3,090) (1,552) (1,283) 270
8471 Killamarsh Leisure Centre 22,589 22,589 (52,628) (133,042) (80,414)
8475 Killamarsh Outdoors (9,389) (9,389) (4,694) 0 4,694

2,738,240 2,745,701 2,057,586 1,918,498 (139,088)

Joint Head of Service Street Scene

3174 Street Scene 319,503 319,503 199,503 200,250 746
3227 Materials Recycling 196,220 196,220 538,148 730,187 192,039
3244 Parks Derbyshire County Council Agency (360,000) (360,000) (273,400) (273,400) 0
3282 Eckington Depot 109,242 113,742 66,928 63,463 (3,466)

Page 26



Original 

Budget 

2021/22

Current 

Budget 

2021/22

Profiled    Qtr 

2   Budget        

Actuals with 

Accruals 

2021/22

Variance 

2021/22       

£ £ £ £ £

3285 Dronfield Bulk Depot 3,580 3,580 1,792 3,493 1,701
3511 Hasland Cemetery (44,995) (44,995) (16,823) (23,780) (6,957)
3513 Temple Normanton Cemetery (8,070) (8,070) (3,842) 39 3,881
3514 Clay Cross Cemetery (59,685) (59,685) (29,846) (32,277) (2,431)
3516 Killamarsh Cemetery (18,250) (18,250) (8,718) (15,393) (6,675)
3918 Dog Fouling Bins (55,000) (55,000) (13,237) (15,599) (2,362)
3921 Street Cleaning Service 615,330 615,330 283,831 283,169 (662)

3943 Transport 158,675 154,175 224,752 231,922 7,169
3944 Grounds Maintenance 706,752 706,752 229,939 204,436 (25,504)
3945 Domestic Waste Collection 1,499,865 1,499,865 723,882 788,683 64,801
3946 Commercial Waste Collection (181,898) (181,898) (236,980) (241,101) (4,121)

2,881,269 2,881,269 1,685,931 1,904,091 218,161

Head of Service Planning

4111 Applications And Advice (542,400) (542,400) (271,314) (289,640) (18,326)
4113 Planning Appeals 0 0 18,782 18,782 0
4116 Planning Policy 262,824 262,824 99,966 101,166 1,199
4311 Environmental Conservation 20,665 20,665 16,058 13,920 (2,138)
4511 Head of Service Planning 62,574 62,574 31,306 30,622 (684)
4513 Planning 804,051 804,051 320,134 317,928 (2,206)
4515 Building Control 58,000 58,000 9,108 9,108 0

665,714 665,714 224,041 201,887 (22,154)

Joint Head of Service Corporate Governance

1121 Member's Services 435,283 435,283 211,188 205,870 (5,318)

1123 Chair’s Expenses 11,120 11,120 6,564 3,815 (2,749)
1131 District Elections 0 0 0 16,648 16,648
1133 Parish Elections 0 0 17,272 17,272 0
1137 Parliamentary Elections 0 0 139,596 139,596 (1)
1138 Police & Crime Commissioner Elections (35,196) (35,196) (0)
1139 County Council Elections 0 0 (59,033) (59,033) 0
1142 Chief Executive 0 3,065 3,065
1231 Corporate Training 41,980 41,980 12,293 12,442 149
1255 Strategy and Performance 109,612 109,612 44,875 45,352 477
1256 Corporate Consultation 13,498 13,498 774 1,050 276
1259 Corporate Groups 6,000 6,000 3,004 0 (3,004)
1311 Human Resources 199,990 199,990 132,212 129,441 (2,771)
1312 Payroll 58,251 58,251 37,505 34,430 (3,075)
3121 Health & Safety Advisor 62,567 62,567 18,340 17,215 (1,126)
5273 Brass Band Concert 3,700 3,700 1,850 0 (1,850)
5313 Register Of Electors 162,029 162,029 87,895 66,676 (21,219)
5321 Jnt HoS Corporate Governance 41,367 41,367 10,926 10,886 (40)

5353 Legal Section 167,295 167,295 67,299 71,998 4,698
5354 Land Charges (8,605) (8,605) (12,855) (15,767) (2,912)
5392 Scrutiny 51,889 51,889 25,957 25,653 (304)
5711 Democratic Services 248,358 248,358 101,660 100,086 (1,574)

1,604,334 1,604,334 812,127 791,498 (20,629)

Head of Service Finance and Resources

3176 Pool Car 2,270 2,270 1,140 738 (403)
3512 CBC Crematorium (173,000) (173,000) 173,000 173,000 0
5113 Unison Duties 16,766 16,766 8,390 8,386 (4)
5611 External Audit 105,490 105,490 (34,100) (34,100) 0
5615 Bank Charges 95,500 95,500 53,516 62,576 9,060
5621 Contribution to/from HRA (185,600) (185,600) 0 0 0
5713 Audit 113,540 113,540 56,798 59,420 2,622
5714 Financial Support Services 3,500 3,500 1,752 1,108 (644)
5715 Procurement 46,231 46,231 10,402 12,403 2,001
5721 Financial Services 332,785 332,785 230,141 232,411 2,271
5724 Insurance 321,000 321,000 20,262 20,262 0

5725 Apprenticeship Levy 45,000 45,000 22,506 21,532 (974)
5727 Cost Of Ex-Employees 936,000 936,000 347,948 347,948 0
5728 Covid-19 Response 0 0 (658,707) (658,707) 0
5729 Additional Restrictions Grant 0 0 3,046 3,046 (0)
5730 Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) 0 0 (686,492) (686,492) 0
5731 Local Restrictions Support Grant (Open) 0 0 (10,801) (10,801) 0
5732 Christmas Support Payments 0 0 0 0 0
5738 Closed Business Lockdown Payments 0 0 (443,000) (443,000) 0
5739 LAGDF 0 0 (10,000) (10,000) 0
5741 Housing Benefit Service (29,810) (29,810) 496,206 606,161 109,955
5742 Test and Trace 0 0 (182,950) (182,950) 0
5743 Business Restart Grant 0 0 298,578 298,578 0
5745 Covid New Burdens 0 0 (152,842) (152,842) 0
5747 Debtors 50,768 50,768 25,393 25,114 (279)
5751 `NNDR Collection (12,265) (12,265) 44,026 49,430 5,404
5759 Council Tax Administration 249,221 249,221 (76,408) (18,023) 58,385
5781 Village Hall Grants 14,870 14,870 14,870 14,867 (3)

1,932,266 1,932,266 (447,327) (259,934) 187,392

Total for Operations Directorate 10,860,143 10,867,604 5,060,286 5,282,468 222,182

Growth Directorate

Page 27



Original 

Budget 

2021/22

Current 

Budget 

2021/22

Profiled    Qtr 

2   Budget        

Actuals with 

Accruals 

2021/22

Variance 

2021/22       

£ £ £ £ £

Strategic Director Corporate Resources

1143 Director of Growth & Economic Development 61,423 61,423 50,430 50,391 (39)

5204 HOS Property & Commercial Services 0 0 0 17,689 17,689

61,423 61,423 50,430 68,080 17,650

Head of Service Property and Commercial Services

3135 Drainage 40,125 40,125 41,751 44,052 2,301

3172 Engineers 99,892 99,892 56,159 55,452 (707)

3241 Car Parks 43,180 43,180 38,685 37,250 (1,436)

3247 Street Names/Lights 6,000 6,000 3,004 1,903 (1,101)

3249 Footpath Orders (400) (400) (200) (1,975) (1,775)

3265 Dams And Fishing Ponds (450) (450) (222) (550) (328)

3281 Clay Cross Depot 0 0 7,526 7,967 441

3811 Closed Circuit Television 440 440 222 0 (222)

4412 Midway Business Centre (61,100) (61,100) (37,540) (39,728) (2,188)

4425 Coney Green Business Centre (107,928) (107,928) (103,057) (116,407) (13,350)

4519 The Avenue, Wingerworth 0 0 714 714 0

4523 Estates Administration 338,594 338,594 148,268 149,741 1,474

5205 Mill Lane 272,471 272,471 104,295 100,682 (3,613)

5209 Facilities Management 45,610 45,610 22,822 17,956 (4,866)

5210 Pioneer House (40,400) (40,400) 23,310 16,648 (6,662)

636,034 636,034 305,737 273,705 (32,032)

Joint Head of Service Economic Development

3165 Housing Options Team 209,382 209,382 121,375 121,375 (0)

3740 Strategic Housing 56,861 56,861 43,169 39,579 (3,589)

3746 Homelessness Prevention Grant 0 0 (108,223) (108,223) 0

3747 Homeless Temp Accomodation (41,556) (41,556) (20,779) (6,533) 14,246

3748 Homelessness Grant 22,000 22,000 47,889 50,501 2,612

3749 Empty Properties 2,000 2,000 1,002 274 (728)

3750 Housing Growth 15,009 15,009 9,546 9,546 0

3754 Rough Sleepers 0 0 89,580 89,580 0

3759 Emergency Welfare Assistance Grant 0 0 28,799 28,799 (0)

4211 Tourism Promotions 12,500 12,500 37,002 35,994 (1,008)

4238 Working Communities Strategy 72,772 72,772 36,402 35,007 (1,395)

4512 Growth Agenda 22,674 22,674 52,046 53,172 1,126

4517 Economic Development 158,323 158,323 48,832 44,093 (4,738)

4520 Eckington Killamarsh OPE 0 0 17,794 17,794 0

4524 New Towns Fund - Clay Cross 0 0 (1,145,124) (1,145,124) 0

4526 Sheffield City Region 4,000 4,000 (1,998) (4,000) (2,002)

4527 Dronfield Civic Centre 0 0 19,855 19,855 0

5750 Joint Head of Service Economic Development 12,464 12,464 27,473 27,896 423

546,429 546,429 (695,362) (690,415) 4,947

Total for Growth Directorate 1,243,886 1,243,886 (339,194) (348,630) (9,435)

Investment Properties

4411 Stonebroom Industrial Estate (41,560) (41,560) (31,324) (34,398) (3,074)

4413 Clay Cross Industrial Estate (80,000) (80,000) (45,478) (45,241) 238

4415 Norwood Industrial Estate (221,615) (221,615) (131,717) (132,660) (943)

4417 Eckington Business Park (13,000) (13,000) (6,502) (1,744) 4,758

4418 Rotherside Court Eckington Business Unit (12,865) (12,865) (6,428) (3,474) 2,954

4423 Pavillion Workshops Holmewood (81,990) (81,990) (43,248) (47,108) (3,860)

4432 Miscellaneous Properties 37,120 37,120 14,131 9,264 (4,867)

Total for Investment Properties (413,910) (413,910) (250,566) (255,361) (4,795)

Page 28



HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT:  SUMMARY 2021/22 APPENDIX 3

Current 

Budget 

2021/22       

£

Profiled    

Qtr 2    

Budget         

£

Actuals 

with 

Accruals     

£

Variance     

£

INCOME

Dwelling Rents (31,120,048) (15,566,245) (15,567,270) (1,025)

Non-Dwelling Rents (433,422) (216,818) (256,973) (40,155)

Charges for Services and Facilities (144,639) (72,344) (69,853) 2,491

Contributions Towards Expenditure (50,000) (25,000) (25,000) 0

INCOME TOTAL (31,748,109) (15,880,407) (15,919,095) (38,688)

EXPENDITURE

Repairs & Maintenance 5,182,329 2,592,198 2,673,777 81,579

Supervision and Management 6,208,303 3,105,406 3,117,647 12,241

Rents, Rates & Taxes 110,000 55,022 55,022 0

Capital Charges - Depreciation 7,764,937 3,884,184 3,884,184 0

Provision for Bad Debts 250,000 125,000 125,000 0

Debt Management Expenses 11,500 5,750 5,750 0

EXPENDITURE TOTAL 19,527,069 9,767,560 9,861,380 93,820

NET COST OF SERVICES (12,221,040) (6,112,847) (6,057,715) 55,132

Corporate & Democratic Core 185,450 92,725 92,725 0

NET COST OF HRA SERVICES (12,035,590) (6,020,122) (5,964,990) 55,132

Interest Payable 5,015,777 2,508,890 2,508,890 0

Interest Receivable (61,511) (30,768) (30,768) 0

Revenue Contribution to Capital 9,409,241 4,706,501 4,706,501 0

Contribution to Development Reserve 391,000 195,500 195,500 0

Contribution to/(from) Debt Repayment (2,768,917) (1,385,011) (1,385,011) 0

Contribution to Insurance Reserve 50,000 25,010 25,010 0

Capital Grant 0 0 0 0

(Surplus)/Deficit on HRA Services 0 0 55,132 55,132

Page 29



CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2021/22 - Quarter 2 APPENDIX 4

Project/Scheme

Current 

Programme 

2021/22

Profiled 

Budget 

Quarter 2

Actual and 

Commitments  

Quarter 2

Variance at 

Quarter 2

£000 £000 £000 £000

Housing Investment

HRA Capital Works 19,363 9,682 7,251 (2,431)

Garage Demolitions 37 18 0 (18)

Concrete Balconies 111 55 0 (55)

EWI Scheme - Heath 0 0 (309) (309)

Pine View Danesmoor 1,007 504 6 (498)

Parking Solutions 576 288 0 (288)

Green Homes EWI - Mickley 1,110 555 566 11

North Wingfield New Build 2,081 1,040 13 (1,027)

Stock Purchase Programme 3,000 1,500 758 (742)

Acquisitions and Disposals (RHL) 500 250 297 47

Private Sector Spending 743 340 340 0

Total Housing Investment 28,528 14,232 8,922 (5,310)

Other Capital Projects

Asset Refurbishment - General 386 127 127 0

Roller Shutter Doors 42 0 0 0

Eckington Pool Carbon Efficiencies Programme 1,565 222 222 0

Killamarsh Leisure Centre Refurbishment 1,991 61 61 0

Clay Cross Football Pitch 9 0 0 0

Replacement Vehicles 1,225 545 545 0

Contaminated Land 42 0 0 0

ICT Schemes 227 50 50 0

Total Other Capital Projects 5,487 1,005 1,005 0

Total Capital Expenditure 34,015 15,237 9,927 (5,310)

Housing Investment Funding

Major Repairs Reserve (19,348) (9,674) (7,635) 2,039

HRA Capital Investment Reserve (1,751) (876) 121 997

Usable Capital Receipts (2,365) (1,183) (1,055) 128

External Grant (1,045) (522) 0 522

Prudential Borrowing (3,276) (1,638) (13) 1,625

(27,785) (13,892) (8,582) 5,310

Private Sector Spending

Disabled Facilities Grant (743) (340) (340) 0

Total Housing Investment Funding (28,528) (14,232) (8,922) 5,310

Other Capital Projects Funding

Prudential Borrowing (3,216) (606) (606) 0

External Grant (1,066) (222) (222) 0

RCCO (42) 0 0 0

Useable Capital Receipts (1,163) (177) (177) 0

Other Capital Project Funding (5,487) (1,005) (1,005) 0

Total Capital Financing (34,015) (15,237) (9,927) 5,310

Page 30



   

1 

Treasury Management Activity April – September 2021/22 
 
PWLB Borrowing 
 
The Council’s total outstanding PWLB debt amounted to £149.238m at 1st April 2021.  
During the first two quarters of 2021/22 £2.150m has been repaid to the PWLB so the 
balance at 30th September 2021 is £147.088m.  During the current financial year no 
new loans have been taken out with the PWLB.  The profile of the outstanding debt is 
analysed as follows: - 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PWLB Interest 
 
The interest cost to the Council of the PWLB debt for 2021/22 is shown in the table 
below.  The cost is split between the HRA and General Fund based on the level of debt 
outstanding within the CFR.  
 
 

Date Amount Paid to PWLB 
 £’000 

Accrued Interest re 2020/21 (46) 

22nd September 2021 108 

23rd September 2021 27 

28th September 2021 2,136 

29th September 2021 362 

Accrued Interest re 2021/22 26 

Total Paid 2,613 

 
 
Temporary Borrowing 
 
Cash flow monitoring and management serves to identify the need for short term 
borrowing to cover delays in the receipt of income during the course of the year.  During 
the current year to date short term borrowing from the Council’s own bank hasn’t 
incurred any interest charges. At the 30th September 2021 the Council had no 
temporary borrowing in place.  
 

PWLB Borrowing 
 
Term 

Maturity Profile 
31 March 2021 

£’000 

Maturity Profile    
30 September 2021 

£’000 

12 Months 2,205 55 
1   -   2 years 111 111 
2   -   5 years 19,222 19,222 
5   -   10 years 18,470 18,470 
10  -   15 years 36,140 36,140 
Over 15 years       73,090 73,090 

 
Total PWLB Debt 

 
149,238 

 
147,088 

APPENDIX 5 

Page 31



   

2 

Temporary Investments 
 
The tables below detail the short term investments made during the first two quarters of 
2021/22: - 
 

Bank Name Duration 
of Loan 

B/Fwd 
01/04/21 
£000’s 

Amount 
Invested 
2021/22 
£000’s 

Amount 
Returned 
2021/22 
£000’s 

Balance 
Invested 
30/09/21 
£000’s 

Interest 
Received  
30/09/21 
£000’s 

Federated Fund 3 Call 3,000 0 (0) 3,000 (0) 

Federated GBP 3 Call 2,000 1 (1) 2,000 (1) 

Aberdeen Standard Call 5,000 0 (0) 5,000 (0) 

CCLA Public Sector 
Deposit Fund 

1 Day Call 5,000 1 (1) 5,000 (1) 

Aviva Call 5,000 0 (0) 5,000 (0) 

Invesco Call 5,000 0 (0) 5,000 (0) 

JP Morgan Call 3,000 3,000 (6,000) 0 (0) 

Goldman Sachs Call 5,000 0 (0) 5,000 (0) 

Debt Management 
Account Deposit 
Facility 

Various 0 31,000 (28,000) 3,000 (0) 

London Borough of 
Croydon Council 

12 Months 3,000 3 (3) 3,000 (3) 

Total  36,000 34,005 (34,005) 36,000 (5) 

 
Overnight Investments 
 
The balance of the daily surplus funds can be placed as overnight investments with the 
Councils bank which is Lloyds. The maximum amount invested with Lloyds in the first 
quarter of the financial year was £4.986m. There has been no breach of the £5m limit 
set in the Treasury Management Strategy. For clarity, this limit relates to the amount 
invested and doesn’t include interest accruing as a result.  
 
Compliance with Treasury Limits 
 
During the financial year the Council continued to operate within the treasury limits set 
out in the Council’s Borrowing and Investment Strategy.   
 

 Actual 
2021/22 

£’000 

Set Limits 
2021/22 

£’000 

Authorised Limit (total Council external 
borrowing limit) 

196,849 
 

202,762 

Operational Boundary 191,849 197,761 

 
 

Page 32



 
 

 
North East Derbyshire District Council  

 
Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee 

 
3 November 2021 

 

North East Derbyshire District Council – Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy 

 
Report of the Assistant Director – Finance & Resources (S151 Officer) 

 
Classification:  This report is public 
 
Report By: Jayne Dethick – Assistant Director – Finance & Resources  

(S151 Officer) 
 
Contact Officer:  as above 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
PURPOSE/SUMMARY 
 

 To present the updated Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy to the Audit and 
Corporate Governance Committee for consideration 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
1. That the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee approves the 

updated Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy (attached).  
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
  
IMPLICATIONS 
  
Finance and Risk         Yes  No  
 
Contained within the report and strategy. There are no additional financial implications 

arising. 
 
On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer    
  
Legal including Data Protection     Yes   No  
 
Contained within the report and strategy. There are no additional legal implications 
arising.  
 
On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council  
 
 
 

Page 33

Agenda Item 4c



 
 

Staffing         Yes  No  
 
There are no staffing issues arising directly from this report. 
 
On Behalf of the Head of Paid Service 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
DECISION INFORMATION 
 

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision 
which has a significant impact on two or 
more District wards or which results in 
income or expenditure to the Council above 
the following thresholds:               

N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BDC:     
 

Revenue - £75,000    
Capital - £150,000     

NEDDC:  
 

Revenue - £100,000  
Capital - £250,000     

 Please indicate which threshold applies 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

N/A 

Has the relevant Portfolio Holder been 
informed 

N/A 

District Wards Affected 
 

All 

Links to Corporate Plan priorities or 
Policy Framework 
 

All  

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
REPORT DETAILS 
 
1 Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy 
 
1.1 The Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy aims to set out the Council’s 

commitment to promoting a strong counter fraud culture to prevent, detect and 

deter fraud and corruption.  

1.2 The Council has a responsibility to protect the public purse and is committed 
to protecting the funds that it administers at all times. Therefore the highest 
standards of probity and conduct from members, employees, contractors, 
partners and any other parties involved in the delivery of its services to the 
public is expected at all times. This includes a requirement to act lawfully and 
comply at all times with the Council’s policies and procedures as well as statute 
and regulation.  

 
1.3 The Strategy is part of a collection of polices aimed at maintaining high 

standards of probity including the Codes of Conduct for members and 

Page 34



 
 

employees, the Financial Regulations embedded in the Constitution and the 

Whistle Blowing Policy. 

1.4 The purpose of the strategy is to provide management with a tool to ensure the 

fraud resilience measures are in place and fit for purpose and to demonstrate 

the stewardship of public funds. It adopts the principles included in Fighting 

Fraud and Corruption Locally 2020 which is the counter fraud and corruption 

strategy for local government, which provides a roadmap for dealing with fraud 

and corruption in local authorities. 

2 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
2.1 The strategy demonstrates the Council’s commitment to promoting a strong 

counter fraud culture to prevent, detect and deter fraud and corruption and is 
periodically reviewed to ensure it continues to do so. 

 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 There are no alternative options for consideration. 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 
 

Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy 

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied 
on to a material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the 
section below.  If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC) 
you must provide copies of the background papers) 

 

Report Author 
 

Contact Number 

Jayne Dethick – Assistant Director – Finance and 
Resources (S151 Officer) 

 01246 217078 

 
 
 

Page 35



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

Reviewed September 2021 

 

 

Anti-Fraud and 

Corruption 

Strategy 

 

 
 

 

Page 36



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

Reviewed September 2021 

Introduction 

This strategy aims to sets out the Council’s commitment to promoting a strong 

counter fraud culture to prevent, detect and deter fraud and corruption.  

The Council also has a responsibility to protect the public purse and is committed 

to protecting the funds that it administers at all times. Therefore the Council 

expects the highest standards of probity and conduct from members, employees, 

contractors, partners and any other parties involved in the delivery of its services 

to the public. This includes a requirement to act lawfully and comply at all times 

with the Council’s policies and procedures as well as statute and regulation.  

Fraud and Corruption 

The Fraud Act 2006 contains the legal definitions of fraud, largely used in criminal 

prosecutions. Non-criminal fraud also occurs and is dealt with through the 

Council’s own policies and procedures such as the Code of Conduct and 

Whistleblowing Policy. 

For the purposes of this strategy, fraud is defined as the dishonest action 

designed to facilitate gain (personal or otherwise) at the expense of the 

Council, the residents of the District or the wider national community.   

Offences such as deception, forgery, theft, misappropriation, collusion and 

misrepresentation will all fall within this definition. 

The Strategy 

The Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy is part of a collection of polices aimed at 

maintaining high standards of probity including the Codes of Conduct for members 

and employees, the Financial Regulations embedded in the Constitution and the 

Whistle Blowing Policy. 

The purpose of the strategy is to provide management with a tool to ensure the 

fraud resilience measures are in place and fit for purpose and to demonstrate the 

stewardship of public funds. 

The strategy adopts the principles included in Fighting Fraud and Corruption 

Locally 2020 which is the counter fraud and corruptions strategy for local 

government, providing a roadmap for dealing with fraud and corruption in local 

authorities. These are: 

 Govern 

Having robust arrangements and executive support to ensure anti-fraud, 

bribery and corruption measures are embedded throughout the 

organisation. Having a holistic approach to tackling fraud is part of good 

governance. 

 

 Acknowledge 

Acknowledging and understanding fraud risks and committing support and 

resource to tackling fraud in order to maintain a robust anti-fraud response. 

 

Page 37



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

Reviewed September 2021 

 Prevent 

Preventing and detecting more fraud by making better use of information 

and technology, enhancing fraud controls and processes and developing a 

more effective anti-fraud culture. 

 

 Pursue 

Punishing fraudsters and recovering losses by prioritising the use of civil 

sanctions, developing capability and capacity to investigate fraudsters and 

developing a more collaborative and supportive local enforcement 

response.  

 

 Protect 

Protecting against serious and organised crime, protecting individuals from 

becoming victims of crime including cybercrime and protecting against the 

harm that fraud can do to the community.  

 

Achieving the Principles Locally 

Govern 

The key principle of the strategy is that those charged with governance support it 

by ensuring there are robust arrangements and support at a senior level in the 

organisation to ensure all anti-fraud, corruption and bribery measures are 

embedded. 

Beating fraud is everyone’s business and internal arrangements are in place that 

communicate throughout the Council and publicly that there is a culture and 

commitment to prevent fraud. 

The Council has a robust framework of policies and procedures and governance 

structures which combine to act as an effective deterrent and provide avenues for 

reporting and detecting fraud and corruption. 

Acknowledge 

An organisation needs to acknowledge and understand fraud risks in order to 

create an effective anti-fraud culture and be prepared to provide the right 

resources to tackle fraud and corruption. 

The Council’s Internal Audit Service plays an important role in acknowledging the 

importance of understanding fraud. This is embedded in the annual Audit Plan. 

Prevent 

Fraud can be prevented and detected by enhancing fraud controls and processes 

and making best use of information and technology to achieve this. The Council 

participates annually in a national data matching exercise coordinated by the 

Cabinet Office (NFI) which does just this. 

 

Page 38



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

Reviewed September 2021 

Specifically, councils have a statutory responsibility under Section 151 of the Local 

Government Act 1972 to ensure that proper arrangements are made for their 

financial affairs with sound financial systems and efficient and effective internal 

controls. 

Pursue 

Stopping fraud and corruption from happening in the first place is the primary aim. 

In order to achieve this, a robust enforcement response is essential.  

The Council has a zero tolerance policy towards any individual or organisation who 

defrauds or attempts to defraud it.  Legal action will be taken where appropriate 

as will the seeking of financial redress. 

Protect 

The Council seeks to protect individuals and communities against the harm that 

fraud can do. This includes the protection of public funds and increasingly, 

cybercrime. 

Action Planning 

An essential part of strategic planning is working towards the achievement of aims 

and provide a measure of progress. 

This action plan will be embedded into the Risk Management Strategy with 

progress reported on a quarterly basis to the Audit Committee. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 39



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

Reviewed September 2021 

Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy Action Plan 

Principle Aims Mitigation Future Action Required 

GOVERN 
 
Having robust arrangements and 
executive support to ensure anti-
fraud, bribery and corruption 
measures are embedded 
throughout the Council 

 
To have established frameworks 
that demonstrate a commitment to 
having effective fraud deterrents 
 
 
To document fraud policies through 
policies and procedures 
 
To evaluate effectiveness of the 
policies and procedures in place 

 
The Council’s policies and 
procedures, Constitution, S151 
Officer and Monitoring Officer and 
Internal Audit Function. 
 
The Anti-Fraud and Corruption 
Strategy 
 
Annual review of Fighting Fraud 
and Corruption Locally by the Head 
of Internal Audit, reviewed by the 
Audit Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Include fraud risk within the Risk 
Management Strategy 
 
Embed fraud risk prevention and 
detection as a work stream for the 
Risk Management Group 
 

ACKNOWLEDGE 
 
Understanding fraud risks, 
identifying risk exposure and the 
impact on the Council and the wider 
community 
 
 
 
 
Committing the right support to 
tackling fraud and corruption 
 
 
 
Communicating the risks to those 
charged with governance 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
To have a well-informed fraud risk 
register that allows the Council to 
formulate effective responses to all 
risks and implement preventative 
and detective control actions 
 
 
 
To maintain a skilled and 
competent workforce to manage 
the Council’s fraud resilience 
 
 
To integrate the fraud risks into the 
risk management framework 

 
 
The Council’s policies and 
procedures, Constitution, S151 
Officer and Monitoring Officer and 
Internal Audit Function. 
 
 
 
 
The Council’s policies and 
procedures, Constitution, S151 
Officer and Monitoring Officer and 
Internal Audit Function. 
 
Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy 
reviewed by SMT and Audit 
Committee. Quarterly Risk 
Management updates to Audit 
Committee 
 

 
 
Include fraud risk within the Risk 
Management Strategy  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Embed fraud risk prevention and 
detection as a work stream for the 
Risk Management Group 
 
 
Include fraud risk within the Risk 
Management Strategy  
 

P
age 40



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

Reviewed September 2021 

PREVENT 
 
Enhance fraud controls and 
processes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Develop a more effective anti-fraud 
culture 

 
 
To use and participate in existing 
methods of fraud 
prevention/detection 
 
To ensure processes and 
procedures are robust when 
measured against new and 
emerging fraud and corruption. 
 
 
 
To have a culture that promotes 
and supports communication of any 
reasonably suspected breach of 
policies and procedures. 

 
 
Participation in NFI 
 
 
 
Internal Audit plan 
 
Annual review of Fighting Fraud 
and Corruption Locally by the Head 
of Internal Audit, reviewed by the 
Audit Committee 
 
The Council’s policies and 
procedures, including the Code of 
Conduct and Whistleblowing 
Policies, the Constitution, S151 
Officer and Monitoring Officer and 
Internal Audit Function. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Embed fraud risk prevention and 
detection as a work stream for the 
Risk Management Group 
 
 
 
 
Review effectiveness of training 
programmes 
 

PURSUE 
 
Prioritise zero tolerance approach 
and prioritise fraud recovery 
 
 
 

 
 
To commit to pursuing a wide range 
of sanctions including civil, 
disciplinary and regulatory, against 
those found to have committed 
fraud 
 

 
 
The Council’s policies and 
procedures, including the Code of 
Conduct and Whistleblowing 
Policies, the Constitution, S151 
Officer and Monitoring Officer and 
Internal Audit Function. Dedicated 
function within teams where there 
is a higher risk of fraud and 
corruption. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 41



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

Reviewed September 2021 

PROTECT 
 
Protect the Council and its 
residents from fraud 
 
 
 
 

 
 
To provide support and guidance to 
staff 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To provide support and guidance 
across the community to help 
residents and stakeholders protect 
themselves against fraud and 
advice on how to refer concerns 
when suspected fraud occurs 

 
 
The Council’s policies and 
procedures, Constitution, S151 
Officer and Monitoring Officer and 
Internal Audit Function. 
 
The Anti-Fraud and Corruption 
Strategy 
 
 
 
The Council’s policies and 
procedures, Constitution, S151 
Officer and Monitoring Officer and 
Internal Audit Function. 
The Council’s Communications 
Strategy 
 

 
 
Embed fraud risk prevention and 
detection as a work stream for the 
Risk Management Group 
 
 
Review effectiveness of training 
programmes 
 
 
 
Review fraud awareness in 
external communications, use of 
social media etc 

 

 

 

P
age 42



 
 

 
North East Derbyshire District Council  

 
Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee 

 
3 November 2021 

 

Evaluating the Effectiveness of the Audit and Corporate Governance  
Scrutiny Committee 

 
Report of the Assistant Director – Finance & Resources (S151 Officer) 

 
Classification:  This report is public 
 
Report By: Jayne Dethick – Assistant Director – Finance & Resources  

(S151 Officer) 
 
Contact Officer:  as above 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
PURPOSE/SUMMARY 
 

 To present for members’ information CIPFA’s “Audit Committees Practical 
Guidance for Local Authorities” and to enable the Committee to undertake a self- 
assessment 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1. That the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee note the CIPFA 
guidance for Local Authority Audit Committees as detailed at Appendix 1 of the 
report. 
 

2. That the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee undertake the 

self-assessment in Appendix 2 of the report. 

 

3. That the completed self-assessment is reviewed by the Committee and if 
necessary, an action plan be presented to a future meeting. 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
  
IMPLICATIONS 
  
Finance and Risk         Yes  No  
 
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.  
 
On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer    
  
Legal including Data Protection     Yes   No  
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 4d



 
 

There are no legal implications arising directly from this report. 
 
On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council  
 
Staffing         Yes  No  
 
There are no staffing issues arising directly from this report. 
 
On Behalf of the Head of Paid Service 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
DECISION INFORMATION 
 

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision 
which has a significant impact on two or 
more District wards or which results in 
income or expenditure to the Council above 
the following thresholds:               

N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BDC:     
 

Revenue - £75,000    
Capital - £150,000     

NEDDC:  
 

Revenue - £100,000  
Capital - £250,000     

 Please indicate which threshold applies 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

N/A 

Has the relevant Portfolio Holder been 
informed 

N/A 

District Wards Affected 
 

All 

Links to Corporate Plan priorities or 
Policy Framework 
 

All  

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
REPORT DETAILS 
 
1 Audit Committee Self-Assessment 
 

1.1 The publication at Appendix 1 sets out CIPFA’s guidance on the function and 
operation of audit committees in local authorities and represents best practice for 
audit committees throughout the UK.  

1.2 The guidance emphasises the role and importance of an Audit Committee: 

“The purpose of an audit committee is to provide to those charged with governance 
independent assurance on the adequacy of the risk management framework, the 
internal control environment and the integrity of the financial reporting and annual 
governance processes. Audit committees are an important source of assurance 
about an organisation’s arrangements for managing risk, maintaining an effective 

Page 44



 
 

control environment and reporting on financial and other performance. The way in 
which an audit committee is organised will vary depending on the specific political 
and management arrangements in place in any organisation” 

1.3 The guidance also covers: 

 CIPFA’s Position Statement : Audit Committees in Local Authorities and 
Police 

 The purpose of Audit Committees 

 The core functions of an Audit Committee 

 Possible wider functions of an Audit Committee 

 Independence and Accountability 

 Membership and effectiveness 

1.4 Appendix D of the publication includes a self-assessment of good practice. This 

provides a high level review that incorporates the key principles set out in CIPFA’s 

position statement and publication. Where an Audit Committee has a high degree 

of performance against the good practice principles, then it is an indicator that 

the Committee is soundly based and has in place a knowledgeable membership. 

These are essential factors in developing an effective audit committee. 

 

1.5 The Guide recommends that this self-assessment is undertaken periodically and 

a copy is attached at Appendix 2 to facilitate the assessment. Once completed 

and if necessary, an action plan will be compiled to be implemented before the 

next assessment. 

 

2 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
2.1 To inform the Committee of the CIPFA publication “Audit Committees Practical 

Guidance for Local Authorities” and to facilitate the Audit Committee to undertake 
a self-assessment.  

 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 There are no alternative options for consideration. 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 
 
2 
 

CIPFA “Audit Committees – Practical Guidance for local 
authorities” 
Self-Assessment checklist 

Page 45



 
 

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied 
on to a material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the 
section below.  If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC) 
you must provide copies of the background papers) 

 

Report Author 
 

Contact Number 

Jayne Dethick – Assistant Director – Finance and 
Resources (S151 Officer) 

 01246 217078 

 
 
 

Page 46



audit
committees

Practical Guidance for  
Local Authorities and Police
2018 Edition

Page 106Page 47



CIPFA, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, is the professional body for people in 
public finance. Our 14,000 members work throughout the public services, in national audit agencies, in major 
accountancy firms, and in other bodies where public money needs to be effectively and efficiently managed. 
As the world’s only professional accountancy body to specialise in public services, CIPFA’s qualifications are the 
foundation for a career in public finance. We also champion high performance in public services, translating our 
experience and insight into clear advice and practical services. Globally, CIPFA shows the way in public finance 
by standing up for sound public financial management and good governance.

CIPFA values all feedback it receives on any aspects of its publications and publishing programme. Please 
send your comments to customerservices@cipfa.org.

Our range of high quality advisory, information and consultancy services help public bodies – from small 
councils to large central government departments – to deal with the issues that matter today. And our 
monthly magazine, Public Finance, is the most influential and widely read periodical in the field.

Here is just a taste of what we provide:

 � TISonline  � CIPFA-Penna recruitment services

 � Benchmarking  � Research and statistics

 � Advisory and consultancy  � Seminars and conferences

 � Professional networks  � Education and training

 � Property and asset management services

Call or visit our website to find out more about CIPFA, our products and services – and how we can support 
you and your organisation in these unparalleled times.

020 7543 5600 
customerservices@cipfa.org 
www.cipfa.org

Page 107Page 48

mailto:customerservices%40cipfa.org?subject=
mailto:customerservices%40cipfa.org?subject=
http://www.cipfa.org


audit
committees

Practical Guidance for  
Local Authorities and Police
2018 Edition

Page 108Page 49



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page ii

Published by:

CIPFA  \  THE CHARTERED INSTITUTE OF PUBLIC FINANCE AND ACCOUNTANCY

77 Mansell Street, London E1 8AN

020 7543 5600  \  customerservices@cipfa.org  \  www.cipfa.org

© March 2018 CIPFA

ISBN 978 1 84508 492 9

Designed and typeset by Ministry of Design, Bath  
(www.ministryofdesign.co.uk)

No responsibility for loss occasioned to any person acting or refraining from action 
as a result of any material in this publication can be accepted by the authors or 
publisher.

While every care has been taken in the preparation of this publication, it may 
contain errors for which the publisher and authors cannot be held responsible.

Apart from any fair dealing for the purposes of research or private study, or 
criticism or review, as permitted under the Copyright, Designs and Patents Act, 
1988, this publication may be reproduced, stored or transmitted, in any form or 
by any means, only with the prior permission in writing of the publishers, or in the 
case of reprographic reproduction in accordance with the terms of licences issued 
by the Copyright Licensing Agency Ltd. Enquiries concerning reproduction outside 
those terms should be sent to the publishers at the above mentioned address. Page 109Page 50

mailto:customerservices%40cipfa.org?subject=
http://www.cipfa.org
http://www.ministryofdesign.co.uk


Page iii

Acknowledgements

A sincere thanks to all those who have provided content, comment and feedback on this 
publication, including Keeley Lund, Kerry Ace, Alison Dewhirst and Alison Scott. Comments on 
external audit have been provided by David Aldous and Andrew Kendrick at the National Audit 
Office and Jon Hayes at Public Sector Audit Appointments, and we appreciate their input.

Thanks also to the audit committee members who have attended our training courses 
for providing their insight into the challenges, frustrations and rewards of being an audit 
committee member. I hope that this publication can support you in undertaking your 
important work.

Diana Melville 
Governance Advisor, CIPFA

Page 110Page 51



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page iv

Page 111Page 52



Page v

Contents

CHAPTER 1: INTRODUCTION..................................................................................................................................... 1

CHAPTER 2: CIPFA’S POSITION STATEMENT: AUDIT COMMITTEES IN LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE . 3

CHAPTER 3: THE PURPOSE OF AUDIT COMMITTEES  ............................................................................................ 7

CHAPTER 4: THE CORE FUNCTIONS OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE ........................................................................11
INTRODUCTION .....................................................................................................................................................11

GOOD GOVERNANCE AND THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ...........................................................12

INTERNAL AUDIT ..................................................................................................................................................13

RISK MANAGEMENT .............................................................................................................................................16

ASSURANCE FRAMEWORKS AND ASSURANCE PLANNING ............................................................................17

VALUE FOR MONEY AND BEST VALUE ...............................................................................................................17

COUNTERING FRAUD AND CORRUPTION .........................................................................................................18

EXTERNAL AUDIT ..................................................................................................................................................19

FINANCIAL REPORTING ......................................................................................................................................22

PARTNERSHIP GOVERNANCE AND COLLABORATION AGREEMENTS  ..........................................................23

GOVERNANCE AND ETHICAL VALUES ................................................................................................................24

CHAPTER 5: POSSIBLE WIDER FUNCTIONS OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE ...........................................................27
CONSIDERING MATTERS AT THE REQUEST OF STATUTORY OFFICERS OR OTHER COMMITTEES ............27

ETHICS COMMITTEE AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE ROLES .........................................................................28

TREASURY MANAGEMENT ..................................................................................................................................28

CHAPTER 6: INDEPENDENCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY  ........................................................................................31
INTRODUCTION .....................................................................................................................................................32

SECTOR AND DEVOLVED GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE .......................................................................................32

STRUCTURE AND INDEPENDENCE .....................................................................................................................33

SHARED AUDIT COMMITTEES ............................................................................................................................34

AUDIT COMMITTEES IN PARTNERSHIP ............................................................................................................34

DECISION-MAKING POWERS AND DELEGATIONS ...........................................................................................34

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATIONAL ARRANGEMENTS ..............................................................................35

ACCOUNTABILITY  ................................................................................................................................................37

CHAPTER 7: MEMBERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS ................................................................................................39
COMPOSITION AND OPERATION OF THE COMMITTEE ...................................................................................39

KNOWLEDGE AND EXPERIENCE .........................................................................................................................42

DEVELOPING AUDIT COMMITTEE EFFECTIVENESS .........................................................................................43

COMMON AREAS OF DIFFICULTY FOR AUDIT COMMITTEES .........................................................................44

APPROACHES TO IMPROVEMENT AND EVALUATING EFFECTIVENESS ........................................................47

APPENDIX A: SECTOR AND DEVOLVED GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE ....................................................................49
PART 1 – COMPARISON OF SECTOR AND DEVOLVED GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS AND GUIDANCE ON 

KEY AREAS RELATED TO AUDIT COMMITTEES.....................................................................................50

Page 112Page 53



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page vi

PART 2 – GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE BY SECTOR AND DEVOLVED GOVERNMENT ON MATTERS THAT 
MAY BE INCLUDED IN AUDIT COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE ..................................................53

APPENDIX B: SUGGESTED TERMS OF REFERENCE – LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE ..............................59
INTRODUCTION .....................................................................................................................................................59

SUGGESTED TERMS OF REFERENCE – LOCAL AUTHORITIES ........................................................................59

SUGGESTED TERMS OF REFERENCE – POLICE .................................................................................................62

APPENDIX C: AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS – KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK ..............................65
CORE AREAS OF KNOWLEDGE ............................................................................................................................65

SPECIALIST KNOWLEDGE THAT ADDS VALUE TO THE AUDIT COMMITTEE ................................................69

CORE SKILLS  .........................................................................................................................................................70

APPENDIX D: SELF-ASSESSMENT OF GOOD PRACTICE ......................................................................................73

APPENDIX E:EVALUATING THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE .................................................77

Page 113Page 54



Page 1

CHAPTER 1 

Introduction

This publication sets out CIPFA’s guidance on the function and operation of audit committees 
in local authorities and police bodies, and represents best practice for audit committees in 
local authorities throughout the UK and for police audit committees in England and Wales.

This publication incorporates CIPFA’s Position Statement: Audit Committees in Local 
Authorities and Police (2018) (‘the Position Statement’), which sets out CIPFA’s view of the 
role and functions of an audit committee and replaces the previous 2013 Position Statement. 
Throughout the Position Statement the terms ‘authority’ and ‘authorities’ are used to include 
police and crime commissioners (PCCs) and chief constables as well as local authorities and 
fire and rescue authorities.

The Position Statement emphasises the importance of audit committees being in place in all 
principal local authorities and police bodies. It also recognises that audit committees are a 
key component of governance. 

The purpose of an audit committee is to provide to those charged with governance 
independent assurance on the adequacy of the risk management framework, the internal 
control environment and the integrity of the financial reporting and annual governance 
processes. In police bodies ‘those charged with governance’ are the PCC and the chief 
constable. 

Audit committees are an important source of assurance about an organisation’s 
arrangements for managing risk, maintaining an effective control environment and reporting 
on financial and other performance. The way in which an audit committee is organised will 
vary depending on the specific political and management arrangements in place in any 
organisation. This guidance therefore explores how audit committees relate to organisations’ 
different arrangements for managing and governing themselves.

Audit committees in local authorities and police bodies are necessary to satisfy the wider 
requirements for sound financial management and internal control. For example in England, 
the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 state that a local authority is responsible 
“for a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective exercise of its functions 
and the achievement of its aims and objectives; ensures that the financial and operational 
management of the authority is effective and includes effective arrangements for the 
management of risk”. In addition, in England, Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 
requires every local authority to “make arrangements for the proper administration of its 
financial affairs”. 

Regardless of the specific legislative or regulatory framework, the chief financial officer 
(CFO) has overarching responsibility for discharging the requirement for sound financial 
management. To be truly effective, the CFO requires an effective audit committee to provide 
support and challenge. An essential role for the audit committee is to oversee internal audit, 

Page 114Page 55

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/contents


AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 2

helping to ensure that it is adequate and effective. Both these elements are now enshrined 
in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the supporting Local Government 
Application Note for the United Kingdom Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (LGAN).

There have been a number of significant developments in governance and audit practice 
since 2013 which have emphasised the importance of the audit committee. Key 
developments include: 

 � the new Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (CIPFA/Solace, 
2016)

 � updates to the PSIAS in 2016 and 2017

 � the Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption (CIPFA, 2014). 

Legislation has also had an impact, in particular the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014, which introduced changes to the appointment of external auditors. The new combined 
authorities must also establish an audit committee in accordance with statutory regulations. 
For police bodies, the operation of joint audit committees supporting both the PCC and the 
chief constable have now completed a full term and further changes are on the horizon. 

The Policing and Crime Act 2017 enables a PCC (following local consultation and approval 
from the secretary of state) to take on the governance of its local fire and rescue service(s) 
to become the fire and rescue authority, known as a police and crime commissioner fire and 
rescue authority (PCC FRA). This would be a separate legal entity from the PCC. 

The PCC FRA would be a corporation sole and a fire and rescue authority. There would 
therefore be the need for appropriate audit committee arrangements. Guidance on this is 
expected to be included in the Financial Management Code of Practice for the Police Forces 
of England and Wales (Home Office, 2013 – due to be updated in 2018). The aim of this 
publication is to support fire and rescue authority and police audit committees in performing 
effectively. 

Best practice dictates that governance, risk management and strong financial controls be 
embedded in the daily and regular business of an organisation. The existence of an audit 
committee does not remove responsibility from senior managers, members and leaders, but 
provides an opportunity and resource to focus on these issues. For police audit committees, 
there is a requirement to have independent members on the audit committee and Welsh 
authorities and English combined authorities must also include at least one independent 
member. CIPFA considers that this is in line with good practice. In establishing their audit 
committees, other authorities should recognise the need to demonstrate good governance 
principles and independence from the executive and other political allegiances.

This guidance is applicable to all principal local authorities and fire and rescue authorities 
in the UK, and to the independent audit committees established to support PCCs and chief 
constables. Where there is specific legislation or guidance relevant for one sector or devolved 
government, this has been highlighted in the publication.

Page 115Page 56

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/public-sector-internal-audit-standards
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/l/local-government-application-note-for-the-uk-psias-book
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/l/local-government-application-note-for-the-uk-psias-book
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/counter-fraud-documentation/code-of-practice-on-managing-the-risk-of-fraud-and-corruption
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2017/3/contents/enacted
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-management-code-of-practice
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-management-code-of-practice


Page 3

CHAPTER 2

CIPFA’s Position Statement:  
Audit Committees in  

Local Authorities and Police

The scope of this Position Statement includes all principal local authorities in the UK, 
the audit committees for PCCs and chief constables in England and Wales, and the audit 
committees of fire and rescue authorities.

1 Audit committees are a key component of an authority’s governance framework. Their 
function is to provide an independent and high-level resource to support good governance 
and strong public financial management.

2 The purpose of an audit committee is to provide to those charged with governance 
independent assurance on the adequacy of the risk management framework, the internal 
control environment and the integrity of the financial reporting and governance processes. By 
overseeing both internal and external audit it makes an important contribution to ensuring 
that effective assurance arrangements are in place. 

3 Authorities and police audit committees should adopt a model that establishes the 
committee as independent and effective. The committee should:

 � act as the principal non-executive, advisory function supporting those charged with 
governance

 � in local authorities, be independent of both the executive and the scrutiny functions and 
include an independent member where not already required to do so by legislation

 � in police bodies, be independent of the executive or operational responsibilities of the 
PCC or chief constable

 � have clear rights of access to other committees/functions, for example, scrutiny and 
service committees, corporate risk management boards and other strategic groups

 � be directly accountable to the authority’s governing body or the PCC and chief constable.

4 The core functions of an audit committee are to:

 � be satisfied that the authority’s assurance statements, including the annual governance 
statement, properly reflect the risk environment and any actions required to improve it, 
and demonstrate how governance supports the achievement of the authority’s objectives 

 � in relation to the authority’s internal audit functions:

 – oversee its independence, objectivity, performance and professionalism

 – support the effectiveness of the internal audit process

Page 116Page 57



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 4

 – promote the effective use of internal audit within the assurance framework

 � consider the effectiveness of the authority’s risk management arrangements and the 
control environment, reviewing the risk profile of the organisation and assurances that 
action is being taken on risk-related issues, including partnerships and collaborations 
with other organisations

 � monitor the effectiveness of the control environment, including arrangements for 
ensuring value for money, supporting standards and ethics and for managing the 
authority’s exposure to the risks of fraud and corruption

 � consider the reports and recommendations of external audit and inspection agencies and 
their implications for governance, risk management or control

 � support effective relationships between external audit and internal audit, inspection 
agencies and other relevant bodies, and encourage the active promotion of the value of 
the audit process.

 � review the financial statements, external auditor’s opinion and reports to members, and 
monitor management action in response to the issues raised by external audit.

5 An audit committee can also support its authority by undertaking a wider role in other areas 
including:

 � considering governance, risk or control matters at the request of other committees or 
statutory officers

 � working with local standards and ethics committees to support ethical values

 � reviewing and monitoring treasury management arrangements in accordance with 
Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral 
Guidance Notes (CIPFA, 2017) 

 � providing oversight of other public reports, such as the annual report.  

6  Good audit committees are characterised by:

 � a membership that is balanced, objective, independent of mind, knowledgeable and 
properly trained to fulfil their role. The political balance of a formal committee of a 
council will reflect the political balance of the council, however, it is important to achieve 
the right mix of apolitical expertise

 � a membership that is supportive of good governance principles and their practical 
application towards the achievement of organisational objectives

 � a strong independently minded chair – displaying a depth of knowledge, skills and 
interest. There are many personal qualities needed to be an effective chair, but key to 
these are:

 – promoting apolitical open discussion

 – managing meetings to cover all business and encouraging a candid approach from 
all participants

 – an interest in and knowledge of financial and risk management, audit, accounting 
concepts and standards, and the regulatory regime

 � unbiased attitudes – treating auditors, the executive and management fairly

 � the ability to challenge the executive and senior managers when required. 
Page 117Page 58

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/treasury-management-in-the-public-services-code-of-practice-and-crosssectoral-guidance-notes-2017-edition-online
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/treasury-management-in-the-public-services-code-of-practice-and-crosssectoral-guidance-notes-2017-edition-online


CHAPTER 2 \ CIPFA’S POSITION STATEMENT:  AUDIT COMMITTEES IN  LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE 

Page 5

7 To discharge its responsibilities effectively the committee should:

 � meet regularly – at least four times a year, and have a clear policy on those items to be 
considered in private and those to be considered in public

 � be able to meet privately and separately with the external auditor and with the head of 
internal audit

 � include, as regular attendees, the CFO(s), the chief executive, the head of internal audit 
and the appointed external auditor. Other attendees may include the monitoring officer 
(for standards issues) and the head of resources (where such a post exists). These officers 
should also be able to access the committee, or the chair, as required

 � have the right to call any other officers or agencies of the authority as required, while 
recognising the independence of the chief constable in relation to operational policing 
matters

 � report regularly on its work to those charged with governance, and at least annually 
report an assessment of their performance. An annual public report should demonstrate 
how the committee has discharged its responsibilities.

Page 118Page 59



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 6

Page 119Page 60



Page 7

CHAPTER 3

The purpose of  
audit committees 

Extract from the Position Statement

1 Audit committees are a key component of an authority’s governance framework. Their function 
is to provide an independent and high level resource to support good governance and strong 
public financial management.

2 The purpose of an audit committee is to provide to those charged with governance 
independent assurance on the adequacy of the risk management framework, the internal 
control environment and the integrity of the financial reporting and governance processes. By 
overseeing internal and external audit it makes an important contribution to ensuring that 
effective assurance arrangements are in place.

The overall aim of good governance is to ensure that:

 � resources are directed in accordance with agreed policy and according to priorities

 � there is sound and inclusive decision making

 � there is clear accountability for the use of those resources in order to achieve desired 
outcomes for service users and communities. 

Governance is defined in Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework 
(CIPFA/Solace, 2016) as follows:

 � Governance comprises the arrangements put in place to ensure that the intended 
outcomes for stakeholders are defined and achieved. 

 � To deliver good governance in the public sector, both governing bodies and individuals 
working for public sector entities must try to achieve their entity’s objectives while 
acting in the public interest at all times.

Good governance is ultimately the responsibility of the governing body, as well as those 
with leadership roles and statutory responsibilities in the organisation, including the chief 
executive, the CFO and the monitoring officer. In local government, the governing body is the 
full council or authority and both the PCC and chief constable are responsible as a corporation 
sole. 

The audit committee should play a key role in supporting the discharge of those 
responsibilities by providing a high-level focus on audit, assurance and reporting. In local 
government, this committee may be delegated some governance responsibilities by the 
council; the police audit committee must remain an advisory body to the PCC and the chief 
constable. New policing arrangements were established by the Police Reform and Social 
Responsibility Act 2011. Guidance for police audit committees is contained in the Financial 

Page 120Page 61

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/13/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/13/contents/enacted
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-management-code-of-practice


AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 8

Management Code of Practice for the Police Forces of England and Wales (Home Office, 2013 
– due to be updated in 2018).

As a key component of an organisation’s governance arrangements, the audit committee has 
the potential to be a valuable resource to the whole authority. Where it operates effectively, 
an audit committee adds value to its authority by supporting improvement across a range of 
objectives. To achieve wide-ranging influence, an audit committee will need commitment and 
energy from the membership together with support and openess from the authority.

The principal areas where the committee can influence and add value are:

 � promoting the principles of good governance and their application to decision making

 � raising awareness of the need for sound internal control and contributing to the 
development of an effective control environment

 � supporting arrangements for the governance of risk and for effective arrangements to 
manage risks

 � advising on the adequacy of the assurance framework and considering whether 
assurance is deployed efficiently and effectively

 � reinforcing the objectivity, importance and independence of internal audit and external 
audit and therefore the effectiveness of the audit functions

 � aiding the achievement of the authority’s goals and objectives through helping ensure 
appropriate governance, risk, control and assurance arrangements

 � supporting the development of robust arrangements for ensuring value for money

 � helping the authority to implement the values of ethical governance, including effective 
arrangements for countering risks of fraud and corruption

 � promoting measures to improve transparency and accountability and effective public 
reporting to the authority’s stakeholders and the local community. 

Page 121Page 62

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-management-code-of-practice


CHAPTER 3 \ THE PURPOSE OF  AUDIT COMMITTEES

Page 9

The influence that an effective audit committee is able to have in these areas is set out in 
Figure 3.1 below.

Figure 3.1: The influential audit committee

Effective risk 
management

Improving value 
for money

Good 
governance 
and decision

makingEffective 
internal 
controls

Effective audit 
and assurance 

Improving 
public reporting  

and 
accountability

Achievement of 
goals

Embedding 
ethical 

values and 
countering 

fraud

The influential 
audit 

committee
supports:

Source: Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (CIPFA, 2013)

CIPFA’s view is that audit committee functions can be most effectively delivered by a 
dedicated audit committee. Such a committee provides a key resource to support the 
implementation of good governance standards. It is possible for the functions of an audit 
committee to be undertaken by other bodies, but a dedicated resource is likely to be more 
knowledgeable and effective, having more time to focus on these important issues. 

Page 122Page 63



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 10

Page 123Page 64



Page 11

CHAPTER 4

The core functions of an  
audit committee

Extract from the Position Statement

4  The core functions of an audit committee are to:

 � be satisfied that the authority’s assurance statements, including the annual governance 
statement, properly reflect the risk environment and any actions required to improve it, and 
demonstrate how governance supports the achievement of the authority’s objectives 

 � in relation to the authority’s internal audit functions:

 – oversee its independence, objectivity, performance and professionalism

 – support the effectiveness of the internal audit process

 – promote the effective use of internal audit within the assurance framework

 � consider the effectiveness of the authority’s risk management arrangements and the control 
environment, reviewing the risk profile of the organisation and assurances that action is 
being taken on risk-related issues, including partnerships and collaborations with other 
organisations

 � monitor the effectiveness of the control environment, including arrangements for ensuring 
value for money, supporting standards and ethics and for managing the authority’s exposure 
to the risks of fraud and corruption

 � consider the reports and recommendations of external audit and inspection agencies and 
their implications for governance, risk management or control

 � support effective relationships between external audit and internal audit, inspection agencies 
and other relevant bodies, and encourage the active promotion of the value of the audit 
process

 � review the financial statements, external auditor’s opinion and reports to members, and 
monitor management action in response to the issues raised by external audit.

INTRODUCTION
The core functions that audit committees should undertake reflect both standard practice 
for audit committees across all sectors and specific legislative and professional standards 
requirements for the local authority and the police sectors. Reconciling these sometimes 
different requirements leads to audit committees in local authorities and police bodies having 
the distinctive features outlined in this guidance. 

Page 124Page 65



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 12

Principal regulations affecting the functions of the audit committee are outlined in 
Appendix A, and a suggested terms of reference for the committee is included in Appendix 
B. The remainder of this chapter provides further background and explanation for the audit 
committee’s core functions.

GOOD GOVERNANCE AND THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Audit committees provide essential support for the approval of the annual governance 
statement (AGS) and for ensuring that good governance is embedded throughout the 
authority’s day-to-day activities rather than being limited to a once-a-year reporting process. 
The audit committee is able to support this approach by addressing governance principles in 
the course of its regular business.

Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (CIPFA/Solace, 2016) (‘the 
Framework’) sets the standard for governance in UK local government bodies. The Framework 
is supported by guidance notes for each sector as follows: 

 � Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Guidance Notes for English Authorities 
(CIPFA/Solace, 2016)

 � Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Guidance Notes for Scottish 
Authorities (CIPFA/Solace, 2016)

 � Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Guidance Notes for Welsh Authorities 
(CIPFA/Solace, 2016).

 � Delivering Good Governance: Guidance Notes for Policing Bodies in England and Wales 
(CIPFA, 2016). 

The Framework is principles based and informs the approach to good governance adopted by 
PCCs and chief constables as well as local authorities and fire and rescue authorities. CIPFA 
recommends that each authority develops a local code of governance setting out how it 
applies the principles. 

Legislation requires local authorities, fire and rescue authorities and police bodies to prepare 
an AGS and to report publicly on the effectiveness of governance and control (see Appendix A 
for details of the legislative requirements). The AGS should be reviewed and then approved by 
a body of the authority prior to being signed by the leading member and the chief executive 
of an authority and by the PCC and chief constable. Typically, audit committees undertake 
the role of reviewing the AGS prior to approval. Police audit committees should review the AGS 
of both the PCC and the chief constable.

Statutory and professional guidelines will determine when the AGS goes before the audit 
committee for review. For example, English local authorities under the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 must approve and publish the AGS by 31 July at the latest for the financial 
year starting 2017 and thereafter. CIPFA recommends that the AGS is first reviewed by 
members of the audit committee at an earlier stage to allow comments and contributions to 
be made. The AGS must be current at the time it is published, so the audit committee should 
review it before final approval.

To provide a meaningful review of the AGS, the audit committee should be in a position 
to draw on knowledge of the governance arrangements as they are established and on 

Page 125Page 66

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-guidance-notes-for-english-authorities-2016-edition
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-guidance-notes-for-scottish-authorities-2016-edition-online
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-guidance-notes-for-scottish-authorities-2016-edition-online
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-guidance-notes-for-welsh-authorities-2016-edition-online
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-guidance-notes-for-policing-bodies-in-england-and-wales-2016-edition
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234/contents/made


CHAPTER 4 \ THE CORE FUNCTIONS OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Page 13

assurances of how they have operated in practice during the course of the year. The audit 
committee should undertake the following activities to discharge their responsibilities:

 � review the local code of governance and any changes to the arrangements in the year 
(note it is not the responsibility of the audit committee to establish any local code, but it 
should be consulted)

 � ensure that the AGS is underpinned by a framework of assurance (see later section for 
more details on assurance planning)

 � over the course of the year, receive reports and assurances over the application of the 
governance arrangements in practice

 � monitor implementation of action plans or recommendations to improve governance 
arrangements

 � consider how the organisation applies governance principles in practice during the 
committee’s review of other agenda items.

Given its role in overseeing the local code of governance and the AGS, the audit committee 
has an opportunity to promote the implementation of the principles of good governance 
across the authority: to make things better in the future, not just reviewing what happened 
in the past. For example, the committee may make recommendations for action to senior 
management or refer matters to other committees. The limits to the decision-making powers 
of audit committees are considered in more depth in Chapter 6.

INTERNAL AUDIT
The audit committee has a clear role in relation to oversight of the authority’s internal audit 
function. From 1 April 2013, internal auditors throughout local and central government and 
health have had to follow the PSIAS and the LGAN. All principal local authorities and other 
relevant bodies subject to the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, the Accounts and Audit 
(Wales) Regulations 2014, the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014 and 
the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 must make 
provision for internal audit in accordance with the PSIAS and LGAN.

The PSIAS include the Mission of Internal Audit, Code of Ethics, Definition of Internal Auditing 
and the Core Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, and together these 
highlight the importance of effective internal audit to those in the organisation who are 
responsible for governance. 

In its adoption of the PSIAS and LGAN, each authority or police body should consider which 
committee or individual is the most appropriate to fulfil the role of the board in relation to 
internal audit. In determining the functional reporting arrangements of internal audit, the 
authority will need to bear in mind the need to preserve the independence and objectivity 
of internal audit as required by the PSIAS. It is for these reasons that in the LGAN, CIPFA 
expressed an expectation that the audit committee would fulfil the role of the board in the 
majority of instances. Since police audit committees must remain advisory bodies, their role 
will be to support and review the functional reporting arrangements. 

It is a requirement of the PSIAS that the terms of reference of the audit committee should 
reflect the functional reporting arrangements of internal audit to the audit committee as set 

Page 126Page 67

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2014/3362/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2014/3362/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ssi/2014/200/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr/2015/106/contents/made


AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 14

out in the internal audit charter, which is the formal document that defines internal audit’s 
purpose, authority and responsibility.

The role of the audit committee in relation to internal audit is to:

1. oversee its independence, objectivity, performance and professionalism

2. support the effectiveness of the internal audit process

3. promote the effective use of internal audit within the assurance framework.

Within police bodies this is an advisory role for the audit committee. 

The specific activities that these three objectives lead to are considered below.

Oversee independence, objectivity, performance and professionalism
The following activities are the functional reporting arrangements set out in the PSIAS to 
ensure the organisational independence of internal audit. According to the specific internal 
audit charter of the authority, the audit committee could have a role to:

 � review or approve the following:

 – the internal audit charter

 – the risk-based internal audit plan

 – the internal audit budget and resource plan 

 � receive confirmation of the organisational independence of the internal audit  activity

 � consider the appointment and removal of the head of internal audit or the award of a 
contract for internal audit services

 � make appropriate enquiries of both management and the head of internal audit to 
determine if there are any inappropriate scope or resource limitations

 � approve and periodically review any safeguards put in place to limit impairments 
to independence and objectivity where the head of internal audit has been asked to 
undertake any additional roles/responsibilities outside of internal auditing

 � receive the annual report, which includes:

 – the annual opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk 
management and control 

 – a summary of the work on which internal audit has based the opinion

 – a statement on conformance with the PSIAS and the LGAN 

 – the results of the quality assurance and improvement programme, including specific 
detail as required in the PSIAS

 �  discuss with the head of internal audit the form of the external assessment of internal 
audit and the qualifications and independence of the assessor.

The head of internal audit or chief internal auditor (referred to in the PSIAS and the LGAN 
as ‘chief audit executive’) must have free and unfettered access to the chair of the audit 
committee. In addition, the chair of the audit committee may serve as sponsor for the 
external assessment, which forms part of the quality assurance and improvement programme 
(QAIP) at least once every five years. 

Page 127Page 68



CHAPTER 4 \ THE CORE FUNCTIONS OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Page 15

Support the effectiveness of the internal audit process
The audit committee has an important role to play in supporting the process of internal audit 
and outputs from audit work. The following activities form a core part of this: 

 � receiving updates on the work of internal audit including key findings, issues of    
concern and action in hand as a result of internal audit work

 � receiving communications from the head of internal audit on the internal audit activity’s 
performance relative to its plan and other matters

 � giving approval to internal audit for any significant additional consulting services not 
already included in the audit plan, prior to internal audit accepting an engagement

 � receiving reports on instances where the internal audit function does not conform to the 
PSIAS or LGAN and considering whether the non-conformance is sufficiently significant 
that it must be included in the AGS

 � overseeing the relationship of internal audit with other assurance providers and with 
external audit and any inspectorates

 � receiving regular reports on the results of the QAIP, including the external assessment.

Promote the effective use of internal audit within the assurance 
framework
The audit committee should make best use of the internal audit resource within the 
assurance framework. In particular, the audit committee should seek confirmation from 
internal audit that the audit plan takes into account the requirement to produce an annual 
internal audit opinion that can be used to inform the AGS. Specific activities will include:

 � approving (but not directing) the risk-based plan, considering the use made of other 
sources of assurance

 � receiving reports outlining the action taken where the head of internal audit has 
concluded that management has accepted a level of risk that may be unacceptable to 
the authority

 � when considering the AGS, taking into account internal audit’s opinion on the 
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the authority’s framework of governance, risk 
management and control.

Those audit committees that operate under the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) 
Regulations 2014 and the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014 must conduct a 
review of the effectiveness of their internal audit annually (Appendix A includes details of the 
relevant regulations). The audit committee should take into account internal audit’s QAIP 
when conducting such a review.

The CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit in Public Service Organisations 
(CIPFA, 2010 – due to be updated in 2018) states that engagement between the head of 
internal audit and the audit committee is a crucial component of delivering an effective 
internal audit service.

Audit committee members should keep up to date with changes affecting the professional 
practices and expectations of internal auditors so that they can provide the necessary support.

Page 128Page 69

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/the-role-of-the-head-of-internal-audit-in-public-service-organisations


AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 16

RISK MANAGEMENT
In determining the audit committee’s responsibilities towards risk management, authorities 
should have regard to the responsibilities of other committees such as scrutiny committees 
and the specific responsibilities of those charged with governance in relation to risk 
management. Where a local authority establishes a separate risk committee, then its roles 
and responsibilities need to be taken into account in determining the role of the audit 
committee. Police audit committees are directed in the Financial Management Code of 
Practice for the Police Forces of England and Wales (Home Office, 2013 – due to be updated 
in 2018) to advise the PCC and the chief constable on the adoption of appropriate risk 
management arrangements. Welsh local authority and English combined authority audit 
committees are required to review and assess risk management arrangements.

Assurance over risk management will be a key element underpinning the AGS. The audit 
committee also needs a good understanding of the level of assurance risk management 
provides when it reviews the risk-based internal audit plan or reviews other assurances on 
areas of risk.

The role of the audit committee in relation to risk management covers three major areas:

 � First, assurance over the governance of risk, including leadership, integration of risk 
management into wider governance arrangements and the top level ownership and 
accountability for risks. The specific actions this requires include:

 – overseeing the authority’s risk management policy and strategy and their 
implementation in practice 

 – overseeing the integration of risk management into the governance and decision-
making processes of the organisation

 – ensuring that the AGS is an adequate reflection of the risk environment.

 � Second, keeping up to date with the risk profile and the effectiveness of risk 
management actions by:

 – reviewing arrangements to co-ordinate and lead risk management. An example of 
such an arrangement is the existence of a group to examine, challenge and support 
the risk assessment process to ensure consistency

 – reviewing the risk profile and keeping up to date with significant areas of strategic 
risks and major operational or major project risks and seeking assurance that these 
risks are managed effectively and owned appropriately

 – seeking assurance that strategies and policies are supported by adequate risk 
assessments and that risks are being actively managed and monitored

 – following up risks identified by auditors and inspectors to ensure they are integrated 
into the risk management process.

 � Third, monitoring the effectiveness of risk management arrangements and supporting 
the development and embedding of good practice in risk management by:

 – overseeing any evaluation or assessment such as a risk maturity assessment or risk 
benchmarking

 – reviewing evaluation or assurance reports on risk management and monitoring 
progress on improvement plans

Page 129Page 70

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-management-code-of-practice
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-management-code-of-practice


CHAPTER 4 \ THE CORE FUNCTIONS OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Page 17

 – monitoring action plans and development work in the field of risk management 
practice.

Flexibility in the audit committee agenda to adapt to new or heightened risks will ensure that 
the committee is responsive and focused on priority issues.

ASSURANCE FRAMEWORKS AND ASSURANCE PLANNING
Authorities may have developed a description or diagram explaining what assurances exist 
and who is responsible for them. Such descriptions may be described as an assurance 
framework or assurance map. Typically, they outline key areas of the assurances required 
by the audit committee, such as on governance, risks and controls, and they identify the 
assurance providers. These may include internal audit, risk management advisors and 
management. The audit committee should support initiatives to identify and evaluate 
assurance in this way.

Whether or not there is a formally set-down assurance framework, the audit committee has a 
responsibility to understand what assurance is available to support the AGS and to enable the 
committee to meet its terms of reference. The committee should be seeking to ensure that 
assurance is planned and delivered with the following objectives in mind:

 � clarity of what assurance is required

 � clear allocation of responsibility for providing assurance

 � avoiding duplication, bearing in mind the differing objectives of assurance activities

 � improving the efficiency and cost effectiveness of assurance

 � obtaining assurance of appropriate rigour and independence across a range of assurance 
providers.

Having a clear assurance framework in place will assist the committee in a number of areas. 
It supports the annual review of effectiveness for the AGS. It also supports the approval 
of the internal audit risk-based plan as it enables the committee to identify the extent to 
which it will rely on internal audit for its assurance requirements. In reviewing assurance 
arrangements, the committee should bear in mind that the assurance process has a cost to 
the organisation and it should therefore be proportional to the risk. 

VALUE FOR MONEY AND BEST VALUE
Making best use of resources is a key objective for all local authorities and it is part of the 
Framework. One of the behaviours and actions that underpin Principle C of the Framework 
is “delivering defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within the resources that will be 
available”.

Under Sections 2, 3 and 35 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, the chief 
constable has statutory responsibility to secure value for money (VfM) and the PCC to hold 
the chief constable to account for this duty. The audit committee’s role is to support both the 
PCC and chief constable to fulfil their responsibilities through the assurance process.

Assurance should focus on both the arrangements to ensure and the progress in achieving 
VfM. An authority should have in place arrangements to obtain assurance over its performance 

Page 130Page 71

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/13/contents/enacted


AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 18

against VfM objectives and strategies. The role of the audit committee will need to be 
determined in the context of what other committees may be doing. For example, a scrutiny 
committee may oversee service reviews that consider performance against VfM objectives. 

The role of the audit committee is most likely to focus on whether the authority’s overall 
approach to VfM is in line with governance objectives and to receive assurances on this to 
underpin the AGS. The Framework emphasises that the AGS should be focused on outcomes 
and VfM. 

One specific area of activity for the committee will be consideration of the external auditor’s 
wider work as set out in the codes of audit practice and other guidance adopted by national 
audit bodies as follows: 

 � England – statutory value for money conclusion as defined by the National Audit Office

 � Scotland – periodic reviews of best value

 � Wales – Wales Audit Office annual improvement reports

 � Northern Ireland – review of arrangements for the use of resources.

Where the external auditor has issued a qualified conclusion on VfM, the audit committee 
should ensure there is a robust action plan to address the issues raised. In addition, the audit 
committee should consider what other assurances are available in relation to identified VfM 
risks and highlight areas for improvement.

COUNTERING FRAUD AND CORRUPTION
Local authorities have responsibilities for the effective stewardship of public money 
and for safeguarding against losses due to fraud and corruption. Effective counter fraud 
arrangements also link to the ethical standards for members and officers that the public 
expects.

The audit committee should have oversight of the authority’s counter fraud strategy, 
assessing whether it meets recommended practice and governance standards and complies 
with legislation such as the Bribery Act 2010. 

The Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption (CIPFA, 2014) (‘the 
Code’) sets out the counter fraud standards for public sector organisations; sector-specific 
strategies such as Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally should also be considered, along 
with the CIPFA Fraud and Corruption Tracker (CFaCT) and Integrity Matters (HMIC, 2015). The 
committee should understand the level of fraud risk to which the authority is exposed and the 
implications for the wider control environment. 

Oversight of counter fraud plans, resources and their effectiveness are key areas for obtaining 
assurance. Specific actions should include:

 � reviewing the counter fraud strategy and considering whether it meets recommended 
practices

 � championing good counter fraud and anti-corruption practice to the wider organisation

 � reviewing the fraud risk profile and estimate of fraud losses or potential harm to the 
organisation and its local community

Page 131Page 72

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/23/contents
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/counter-fraud-documentation/code-of-practice-on-managing-the-risk-of-fraud-and-corruption
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fraud-and-corruption-tracker
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/publications/integrity-matters/


CHAPTER 4 \ THE CORE FUNCTIONS OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Page 19

 � reviewing the annual counter fraud plan of activity and resources, seeking assurance that 
it is in line with the strategy and fraud risk profile

 � monitoring the performance of the counter fraud function

 � overseeing any major areas of fraud identified and monitoring action plans to address 
control weaknesses.

The CIPFA guidance on the AGS included in the Framework recommends that the adequacy 
of counter fraud arrangements are evaluated and reported on in the AGS with reference to the 
Code. The audit committee should have sight of the assurances underpinning this assessment 
and can play an important role in supporting the development of effective counter fraud 
and corruption practice. The audit committee may also refer to the Internal Audit Standards 
Advisory Board’s guidance Internal Audit’s Role in Counter Fraud (2017), which sets out 
internal audit’s responsibility to provide assurance to the organisation on how it manages 
fraud risk.

EXTERNAL AUDIT

Appointment of auditors
Audit committees have a role to play in relation to the appointment of external auditors. 
This role varies between England, Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland, primarily due to 
the change in appointment procedures for English authorities with the closure of the Audit 
Commission and the introduction of new local audit arrangements under the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014. 

In Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland, national audit agencies are responsible for the 
audits of local bodies. In England, authorities have the option to appoint auditors themselves 
via means of an auditor panel (individually or jointly with other bodies) or through Public 
Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), which has been established by the Local Government 
Association (LGA) and specified as an ‘appointing person’ under the 2014 Act. For further 
information on auditor panels and the role of the audit committee, see Guide to Auditor 
Panels (CIPFA, 2015).

The audit committee’s role in appointment is generally to express an opinion on the 
selection and rotation of the external auditor through whichever method is applicable for 
the organisation. The audit committee’s objective is to support auditor independence and 
effective arrangements and relationships with the auditors. 

In England, for all opted-in bodies, PSAA appoints the auditor following consultation with the 
body. Otherwise, the audit committee will work alongside the auditor panel which will oversee 
the local appointment process. Where the audit committee members meet the requirements 
of an auditor panel, as defined in regulations supporting the 2014 Act, then the committee 
is able to operate as an auditor panel itself and make recommendations on the appointment 
of the local auditor. Regard must be had for the 2014 Act and regulations if the committee is 
nominated as an auditor panel.

Page 132Page 73

http://www.iasab.org/standards
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/contents/enacted
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/g/guide-to-auditor-panels-pdf
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/g/guide-to-auditor-panels-pdf


AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 20

Monitoring the external audit process
The audit committee’s role in relation to the external audit process has three principal 
aspects:

1. providing assurance that the external auditor team maintains independence following its 
appointment

2. receiving and considering the work of external audit

3. supporting the quality and effectiveness of the external audit process.

Supporting independence
The independence of auditors is critical for confidence in the audit opinion and audit process. 
For this reason, there is extensive guidance from the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) to 
external auditors on the need to safeguard independence and objectivity. These rules apply 
to all auditors across all sectors. In addition, the national audit bodies issue guidance to 
auditors on safeguarding integrity, objectivity and independence. It is an important role for 
an audit committee to help guard against threats to independence and to satisfy itself that 
the external auditor’s independence is safeguarded. The critical issue of independence will be 
considered when the external auditor is appointed but the audit committee’s role will be to 
monitor on an annual basis or more often when required. 

Each year the external auditor will disclose to the committee an assessment of whether it 
is independent. This disclosure should include any significant facts that could impact, or be 
seen to impact, on independence and objectivity, together with any safeguards put in place. 
Usually this disclosure is included in the audit plan. The audit committee should use this 
opportunity to discuss with the external auditor their assessment of threats to independence 
and any safeguards.

Page 133Page 74

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/0bd6ee4e-075c-4b55-a4ad-b8e5037b56c6/Revised-Ethical-Standard-UK-June-2016.pdf


CHAPTER 4 \ THE CORE FUNCTIONS OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Page 21

Understanding the potential threats to external independence

Self-interest threat

Where there are or perceived to be financial or other interests that could impact on the actions of 
the external auditor. The potential fees from provision of non-audit or additional services to the 
audited body could fall within this category.

Self-review threat

Where the audit could include review of work performed, services or advice provided by the same 
firm or team.

Management threat

Where the auditor has become involved in or associated with decision making of the audited 
body.

Advocacy threat

Where the auditor has taken on an advocacy role for the audited body or supports the 
management in an adversarial or promotional context.

Familiarity (or trust) threat

Where familiarity or close personal relationships mean that the external auditor is insufficiently 
questioning or accepting in forming audit judgements.

Intimidation threat

When the conduct of the external auditor is influenced by fear or threats by individuals in the 
audited body.

Full details of the threats are set out in the Revised Ethical Standard 2016 (FRC, 2016).

The audit committee should seek information from the external auditor on its policies and 
processes for maintaining independence and monitoring compliance. It should also satisfy 
itself that no issues with compliance with the ethical standard have been raised by the 
contract monitoring undertaken by PSAA or the auditor panel (in England) or from audit 
quality reviews by the FRC. With regard to non-audit services, audit committees should 
monitor the approval of non-audit work and, in England, take into account the oversight of 
either PSAA or the auditor panel as appropriate.

Receiving and considering the work of external audit
The committee should receive the planned work programme to support the opinion and 
receive reports following the completion of external audit work. Where external audit make 
recommendations, the audit committee should discuss the action to be taken with the 
appropriate managers and monitor the agreed action plan. The committee should contribute 
to the authority’s response to the annual audit letter.

Supporting the quality and effectiveness of the external audit process
The audit committee should support the quality and effectiveness of the external audit 
process through:

Page 134Page 75

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/0bd6ee4e-075c-4b55-a4ad-b8e5037b56c6/Revised-Ethical-Standard-UK-June-2016.pdf


AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 22

 � understanding and commenting on external audit plans, assessment of risks and 
proposed areas of focus, and deployment of audit effort in response to identified risks

 � considering the effectiveness of the external audit process, including: 

 – whether the external auditor has a good understanding of the authority

 – how the external auditor has responded to areas of audit risk

 – actions taken to safeguard independence and objectivity

 – feedback from key people such as the responsible financial officer and the head of 
internal audit

 � reporting to the full council, or the PCC, or the chief constable or other body as 
appropriate on the results of its considerations.

In monitoring the quality of the external audit provision, the audit committee should be 
briefed on any relevant issues around quality that emerge from the regulation of external 
audit, for example, the quality reports from PSAA and the FRC. 

There should be an opportunity for the audit committee to meet privately and separately with 
the external auditor, independent of the presence of those officers with whom the auditor 
must retain a working relationship. 

Inspection reports
Reports from inspection agencies can be a useful source of assurance about the authority’s 
financial management and governance. The audit committee should have access to 
inspection reports as a source of assurance and compare the findings with any relevant 
internal audit and external audit reports. Inspection reports will need to be actioned by the 
corporate or appropriate departmental management team, but the audit committee has a 
role in monitoring such action to ensure that a consistent approach is adopted and that the 
various agencies have one recognisable point of entry into the authority. 

FINANCIAL REPORTING
Local authority financial statements should follow the professional practices set down in 
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (CIPFA/LASAAC). 
The responsible financial officer must sign the statements to confirm that they have been 
properly prepared and are ready for audit prior to the commencement of the period for the 
exercise of public rights. For English authorities and policing bodies, the latest date by which 
the statements must be signed off is likely to be 31 May, as the 30 working day period for the 
exercise of public rights must include the first ten days in June. 

Under the current regulations, Scottish, Welsh and Northern Irish authorities must all ensure 
that the financial statements are signed off by the CFO by 30 June. The Accounts and Audit 
(Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2018 require preparation and publication to be completed 
to an earlier timetable with effect from years ending 31 March 2019 onwards. Authorities will 
formally approve the financial statements after the completion of the external audit. 

The date by which the statements must be published is set down by government regulations. 
For 2017/18 onwards, the latest date for publication is 31 July for English authorities. Scottish 
and Welsh authorities must publish by 30 September and Northern Irish authorities must 

Page 135Page 76

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2018/91/note/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2018/91/note/made


CHAPTER 4 \ THE CORE FUNCTIONS OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Page 23

publish by 31 October. CIPFA recommends that it is good practice for the accounts and the 
AGS to be reviewed by the audit committee prior to the commencement of the external audit.

Audit committees may undertake a review of the statements and satisfy themselves that 
appropriate steps have been taken to meet statutory and recommended professional 
practices. Their work could include:

 � reviewing the narrative report to ensure consistency with the statements and the   
financial challenges and risks facing the authority in the future

 � reviewing whether the narrative report is readable and understandable by a lay person

 � identifying the key messages from each of the financial statements and evaluating what 
that means for the authority in future years

 � monitoring trends and reviewing for consistency with what is known about financial 
performance over the course of the year

 � reviewing the suitability of accounting policies and treatments

 � seeking explanations for changes in accounting policies and treatments

 � reviewing major judgemental areas, eg provisions or reserves

 � seeking assurances that preparations are in place to facilitate the external audit.

Understanding Local Authority Financial Statements (CIPFA/LASAAC, 2016) includes a 
checklist of questions to ask about a local authority’s statements that audit committee 
members may find particularly helpful. In keeping with its role as an advisory body, the audit 
committee should review the financial statements prior to approval.

Other committees in the governance structure might also scrutinise the authority’s financial 
performance. Care should be taken to avoid duplication and maintain the focus of the audit 
committee on financial reporting and financial governance rather than on wider issues of 
performance and spending priorities.

PARTNERSHIP GOVERNANCE AND COLLABORATION AGREEMENTS 
Authorities commonly have a wide range of partnership and collaborative arrangements, 
including strategic relationships with other public sector organisations, shared service 
arrangements, commercial relationships with private sector partners and a range of service 
delivery arrangements with community groups or social enterprises. 

Authorities may also be the accountable body for local enterprise partnerships (LEPs). PCCs 
may be considering options for collaboration with other relevant emergency services under 
the Policing and Crime Act 2017. Ensuring the adequacy of governance and risk management 
over such arrangements can be complicated, but it is very important as accountability for 
performance and stewardship of the public funds involved remains with the authority. For 
these reasons, the role of the audit committee in relation to these arrangements should be 
clearly defined. 

The audit committee’s role should be to consider the assurance available on whether the 
partnership or collaboration arrangements are satisfactorily established and are operating 
effectively. The committee should satisfy itself that the principles of good governance 
underpin the partnership arrangements. For example, the audit committee should seek 

Page 136Page 77

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/technical-panels-and-boards/cipfa-lasaac-local-authority-code-board/simplification-and-streamlining-the-presentation-of-local-authority-financial-statements
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2017/3/contents/enacted


AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 24

assurance that the authority has appropriate arrangements to identify and manage risks, 
ensure good governance and obtain assurance on compliance. The committee may also 
want to know what arrangements have been put in place to maintain accountability to 
stakeholders and ensure transparency of decision making and standards of probity are 
maintained.

Where an authority is developing new partnership or collaboration arrangements, the audit 
committee may wish to receive assurance over governance matters at the project stage and 
seek clarity over its own responsibilities in relation to the governance arrangements of the 
new service delivery organisation.

The audit committee should consider the coverage of assurances that underpin the AGS to 
make sure that partnerships are adequately covered. Where an organisation of which the 
authority is a partner does not have its own audit committee, then the audit committee 
could be nominated to undertake this role. This is most likely for the audit committee of the 
accountable body in order to support the CFO.

In addition to reviewing assurances over partnerships, the committee may choose to develop 
its own partnership arrangements with the audit committees of partner organisations. This 
could involve planning and co-ordinating agendas, or developing forums to share ideas or 
briefings. More established partnerships could lead to the development of a shared audit 
committee between partner authorities or a joint committee. Chapter 6 considers the 
implications of partnerships for audit committee independence and accountability.

GOVERNANCE AND ETHICAL VALUES
Public sector entities are accountable not only for how much they spend but also for the ways 
they use the resources with which they have been entrusted. This is at the heart of Principle A 
of the Framework: 

Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting 
the rule of law. 

With its core role in supporting good governance, support for the ethical framework of the 
authority is also important for the audit committee. In addition, public sector organisations 
have an overarching mission to serve the public interest in adhering to the requirements 
of legislation and government policies. This makes it essential that the entire entity can 
demonstrate the integrity of all its actions and has mechanisms in place that encourage and 
enforce a strong commitment to ethical values and legal compliance at all levels. As part of 
its review of governance arrangements, the audit committee should be satisfied that there are 
adequate arrangements to achieve this.

All authorities should have regard to the Seven Principles of Public Life, known as the Nolan 
Principles. To promote high standards of conduct, the Committee on Standards in Public Life 
has recommended that: 

Page 137Page 78



CHAPTER 4 \ THE CORE FUNCTIONS OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Page 25

Ethical standards issues should be included as regular items on board agendas or formally 
delegated to audit and risk committees for referral to the board as appropriate. Risks 
associated with poor standards should be included in risk assessments, and, where 
appropriate, risk registers. Mitigating strategies should be developed and monitored. 
Source: Standards Matter: A Review of Best Practice in Promoting Good Behaviour in Public 
Life (Committee on Standards in Public Life, 2013)

As part of the annual governance review, the audit committee should consider how effectively 
the Seven Principles of Public Life are supported.

Whistleblowing arrangements support the development of ethical conduct and greater 
transparency, and also help authorities ensure compliance with the Public Interest Disclosure 
Act 1998. As part of the audit committee’s oversight of the governance framework and 
assurances underpinning the AGS, the audit committee may wish to review the effectiveness 
of the whistleblowing arrangements.

Page 138Page 79

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/23/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/23/contents


AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 26

Page 139Page 80



Page 27

CHAPTER 5

Possible wider functions of an 
audit committee

Extract from the Position Statement
5  An audit committee can also support its authority by undertaking a wider role in other areas 

including:

 � considering governance, risk or control matters at the request of other committees or 
statutory officers

 � working with local standards and ethics committees to support ethical values

 � reviewing and monitoring treasury management arrangements in accordance with Treasury 
Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes 
(CIPFA, 2017) 

 � providing oversight of other public reports, such as the annual report. 

CONSIDERING MATTERS AT THE REQUEST OF STATUTORY 
OFFICERS OR OTHER COMMITTEES

Occasionally the audit committee may be requested to consider a review of a service, a 
proposed policy or other similar matters. Such requests could come from another committee 
of the organisation or from one of the statutory officers. In scoping the terms of reference 
for a review, the committee should avoid taking on a scrutiny or policy role and ensure the 
matter relates to governance, risk or control. Examples where it may be helpful for the audit 
committee to assist could include:

 � reviewing whether adequate governance, risk management or audit processes are in 
place in relation to a specific service or new policy area

 � providing advice to the executive on possible risks or implications for good governance 
arising from a proposed course of action or decision.

In each case, the aim of the committee should be to make recommendations in line with 
its role set out in the Position Statement – advocating the principles of good governance 
and helping to ensure that there are appropriate governance, risk, control and assurance 
arrangements in place. Audit committee recommendations may support the advice or 
recommendations of the statutory officers but cannot override that advice.

Page 140Page 81

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/treasury-management-in-the-public-services-code-of-practice-and-crosssectoral-guidance-notes-2017-edition-online
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/treasury-management-in-the-public-services-code-of-practice-and-crosssectoral-guidance-notes-2017-edition-online


AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 28

ETHICS COMMITTEE AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE ROLES
The audit committee’s primary role in relation to standards and ethical conduct is to satisfy 
itself that there are appropriate arrangements in place, particularly in support of the AGS. 
Under the Localism Act 2011, English local authorities have a statutory duty to promote and 
maintain high standards of conduct and the audit committee should consider assurances 
on the discharge of this responsibility and be satisfied that there are arrangements in 
place. Occasionally the committee takes on a wider role, in the place of other committees. 
Specifically, there should be regard for the role and responsibilities of a standards committee, 
where there is one. 

Where the local authority does have a standards committee, the lead on promoting high 
standards of conduct may be taken by that committee, and the most appropriate role for the 
audit committee would be to consider the effectiveness of the standards committee as part 
of the annual governance review. Where the audit committee takes on the responsibilities 
of the standards committee, there should be a clear distinction between the two roles and 
responsibilities in the terms of reference and meeting agendas.

Ethics in policing has received a lot of attention in the last few years with a number of reviews 
and new standards, including:

 � the Code of Ethics (College of Policing, 2014)

 � Tone from the Top: Leadership, Ethics and Accountability in Policing (Committee on 
Standards in Public Life, 2015)

 � Integrity Matters (HMIC, 2016).

The establishment of an ethics committee to take the lead on this important area and 
to review and monitor practice is now regarded as best practice. In some policing areas 
these are separate committees, but in some areas the audit committees have taken on this 
responsibility.  

There is no specific guidance on the operation of the ethics committee, but it is important to 
distinguish between the roles of the two committees. For the audit committee’s governance 
responsibilities, it is appropriate for the committee to have an understanding of any current 
ethical risks and any initiatives to improve ethical behaviour within the force or PCC’s office. 

The audit committee should be satisfied that there are appropriate arrangements in place to 
support the committee’s overview of governance and the AGS. The ethics committee’s role 
will be to help establish and monitor those arrangements in practice, ensuring that the PCC 
and chief constable fulfill their statutory obligations. Where the audit committee is taking 
on wider ethics committee roles, then it should be clear within its terms of reference and 
meeting agendas how it separates the two roles.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT
Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance 
Notes (CIPFA, 2017) requires all local authorities to make arrangements for the scrutiny of 
treasury management. CIPFA does not require the audit committee to undertake that role 
and a local authority may nominate another committee instead. CIPFA is aware, however, 

Page 141Page 82

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/contents/enacted
http://www.college.police.uk/What-we-do/Ethics/Ethics-home/Pages/Code-of-Ethics.aspx
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/tone-from-the-top-leadership-ethics-and-accountability-in-policing
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/publications/integrity-matters/
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/treasury-management-in-the-public-services-code-of-practice-and-crosssectoral-guidance-notes-2017-edition-online
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/treasury-management-in-the-public-services-code-of-practice-and-crosssectoral-guidance-notes-2017-edition-online


CHAPTER 5 \ POSSIBLE WIDER FUNCTIONS OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Page 29

that many authorities have nominated the audit committee to do this, and it is therefore 
appropriate to consider this activity as part of this guidance. The following clause from the 
Code should have been adopted by all local authorities and the appropriate body responsible 
for providing scrutiny nominated:

This organisation nominates (name of responsible body/committee) to be responsible for 
ensuring effective scrutiny of the treasury management strategy and policies.

Where the audit committee has been nominated, then it should be aware that it needs 
to undertake a scrutiny role in accordance with the Code, in addition to any oversight of 
governance, risks and assurance matters relating to treasury management it would consider 
as an audit committee. It is not appropriate for the audit committee to undertake any of the 
other roles outlined in the Code clauses as these are executive and decision-making roles 
rather than a scrutiny role.

Where the committee is undertaking scrutiny then this is likely to involve the following 
actions:

 � developing greater awareness and understanding of treasury matters among the 
committee members

 � reviewing the treasury management policy and procedures to be satisfied that controls 
are satisfactory

 � receiving regular reports on activities, issues and trends to support the committee’s 
understanding of treasury management activities. Note that the committee is not 
responsible for the regular monitoring of activity under clause 3 of the Code so the 
purpose of receiving regular reports should be clear

 � reviewing the treasury risk profile and adequacy of treasury risk management processes

 � reviewing assurances on treasury management (for example, an internal audit report, 
external audit or other review).

Treasury management is a specialist area so it is likely that committee members will require 
training, guidance and support when undertaking scrutiny. Specific areas of knowledge and 
skills are identified in Appendix C.

Page 142Page 83



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 30

Page 143Page 84



Page 31

CHAPTER 6

Independence and 
accountability 

Extract from the Position Statement

3 Authorities and police audit committees should adopt a model that establishes the committee 
as independent and effective. The committee should:

 � act as the principal non-executive, advisory function supporting those charged with 
governance

 � in local authorities, be independent of both the executive and the scrutiny functions and 
include an independent member where not already required to do so by legislation

 � in police bodies, be independent of the executive or operational responsibilities of the PCC or 
chief constable

 � have clear rights of access to other committees/functions, for example, scrutiny and service 
committees, corporate risk management boards and other strategic groups

 � be directly accountable to the authority’s governing body or the PCC and chief constable.

7 To discharge its responsibilities effectively the committee should:

 � meet regularly – at least four times a year, and have a clear policy on those items to be 
considered in private and those to be considered in public

 � include, as regular attendees, the CFO(s), the chief executive, the head of internal audit and 
the appointed external auditor. Other attendees may include the monitoring officer (for 
standards issues) and the head of resources (where such a post exists). These officers should 
also be able to access the committee, or the chair, as required

 � have the right to call any other officers or agencies of the authority as required, while 
recognising the independence of the chief constable in relation to operational policing 
matters

 � report regularly on its work to those charged with governance, and at least annually report 
an assessment of their performance. An annual public report should demonstrate how the 
committee has discharged its responsibilities.

Page 144Page 85



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 32

INTRODUCTION
CIPFA is keen that each local authority or police body adopts an audit committee model 
that achieves its purpose and functions successfully. CIPFA’s recommended best practice is 
intended to support the development of effective arrangements and should not be regarded 
merely as a compliance checklist.

For a local authority, in CIPFA’s view, it is best practice for the audit committee to report 
directly to council rather than to another committee, as the council itself most closely 
matches the body of ‘those charged with governance’. In the police sector, both the PCC and 
chief constable are separate corporations sole and so each will fulfil the role of ‘those charged 
with governance’.

In establishing the audit committee within the governance structure of the authority, three 
key elements should be considered:

1. any statutory guidance applicable to the sector

2. independence from the executive and political allegiances

3. a practical assessment of ‘what works’ in the local context.

Each of these elements is considered in more detail in the following sections.

SECTOR AND DEVOLVED GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE
The local authority and police sectors are subject to differing regulations according to 
both sector and devolved national governments. Those affecting audit committees are set 
out in Appendix A. While there is broad similarity in the guidance across the UK, there are 
differences as a result of specific statutory guidance and regulations including:

 � statutory requirements for audit committees in Wales 

 � statutory requirements for combined authorities to establish an audit committee 

 � statutory guidance underpinning the operation of police audit committees in England 
and Wales. 

Local authorities in Wales have a clear statutory role established by the Local Government 
(Wales) Measure 2011. The Welsh Government has provided statutory guidance on the 
implementation of the measure’s requirements, and local authorities in Wales must have 
regard to this guidance. The Cities and Local Government Devolution Act 2016 requires 
combined authorities to establish an audit committee of which at least one member must 
be appointed as an independent member. The Home Office’s Financial Management Code of 
Practice for the Police Forces of England and Wales (2013 – due to be updated in 2018) (the 
‘FMCP’) requires PCCs and chief constables to establish an independent audit committee. 
This is an advisory committee to both the PCC and the chief constable, both of whom are 
established as a corporation sole.

The Policing and Crime Act 2017 enables a PCC in England (following local consultation and 
approval from the secretary of state) to take on the governance of their local fire and rescue 
service(s) to become a PCC FRA. The 2018 edition of the FMCP is likely to include guidance 
concerning audit committees in this event.

Page 145Page 86

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2011/4/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2011/4/contents
http://gov.wales/topics/localgovernment/publications/statguide/?lang=en
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2016/1/contents/enacted
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-management-code-of-practice
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-management-code-of-practice
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2017/3/contents/enacted


CHAPTER 6 \ INDEPENDENCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Page 33

Other regulations include the appropriate accounts and audit regulations for England, 
Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland, which regulate functions such as internal audit, 
the review of the AGS and the accounts. These functions can be undertaken by the audit 
committee and where it does so, the committee should have regard to the regulations.

Impact of other legislation
The standards committee’s role has been affected by the Localism Act 2011 in England, and 
some authorities have chosen to transfer responsibility for looking at ethical governance 
matters to the audit committee, while retaining a standards panel to oversee investigations. 

Other relevant recommendations
The Exercise by Local Government Auditors of Their Functions in the Year to 31 March 2015, a 
report produced by the Chief Local Government Auditor of the Northern Ireland Audit Office, 
commented that in a small number of councils the audit committee was not operating as a 
full committee. The Chief Local Government Auditor has recommended that audit committees 
should be a full committee reporting directly to council.

STRUCTURE AND INDEPENDENCE

Local authorities
For local authorities, stand-alone audit committees reporting to full council are the most 
common arrangement in the UK. The CIPFA Survey on Audit Committees in Local Authorities 
and Police 2016 found that, across the UK, 85% of councils had audit committees that 
reported to full council, leaving only 15% that reported via cabinet or other committee. The 
survey also showed that the number of stand-alone audit committees had declined from 
58% to 47% alongside a rise in the number of joint committees. Some joint committees’ 
responsibilities were audit and risk or audit and governance, however, others included 
responsibilities such as procurement or health and safety. There had also been a small rise in 
the number of joint audit and standards committees. Another arrangement, more common in 
Scotland, was the integration of audit committee functions into a policy committee. 

Reporting to the executive may appear to be advantageous if it increases the prospect of 
audit committee recommendations being addressed. However, there are two disadvantages 
from a wider governance perspective: first, by not reporting to full council (‘those charged 
with governance’), the audit committee may not be supporting that body in discharging its 
governance responsibilities; and, second, members and citizens may see the audit committee 
as not being independent of the executive. 

Combining audit with other committees may appear to be an attractive arrangement, but 
there is always a danger either that audit committee functions become diluted by the 
pressure of other business or that the proper functions of these bodies become less clear. 
Having a group of members bearing the name ‘audit committee’ will add weight when 
considering audit and related issues. Extending the remit of the audit committee to other 
matters could create confusion about the role of the audit committee and ultimately 
undermine its effectiveness.

Page 146Page 87

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/contents/enacted
https://www.niauditoffice.gov.uk/publication/local-government-auditors-report-2015
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/cipfa-survey-of-audit-committees-in-local-authorities-and-police
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/cipfa-survey-of-audit-committees-in-local-authorities-and-police


AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 34

Financial scrutiny is a different role from that fulfilled by the audit committee. Financial 
scrutiny committees are likely to undertake reviews of the council’s budget proposals and 
financial performance. The audit committee should not seek to replicate scrutiny undertaken 
but should focus on the oversight of governance, risk and control and the audit process.

However the audit committee is constituted, all members should be aware that the work of 
the audit committee is non-political. Chapter 7 includes a section on the composition of the 
audit committee.

Combined authorities
The Cities and Local Government Devolution Act 2016 requires combined authorities to have 
an audit committee, but there are no requirements about where the committee fits into the 
overall governance structure of the authority. If the combined authority brings together the 
functions of the PCC with the local authority functions, and in time those of the fire authority 
as well, then it might be expected that there would be a single audit committee. 

Police
Police audit committees are recommended by the FMCP to be joint committees, reporting 
both to the PCC and the chief constable. To date, all police audit committees operate in this 
way.

SHARED AUDIT COMMITTEES
Where authorities or policing bodies have entered into significant levels of partnership, a 
shared audit committee may be a practical way forward. This will be particularly appropriate 
where there is a shared management team and single functions for finance, audit and risk.  
In establishing the committee, consideration will need to be given to achieving a balance of 
representation between the partners and how the chair is to be selected.

AUDIT COMMITTEES IN PARTNERSHIP
Where an authority has major areas of governance and risk shared with other public bodies 
in a partnership, it may be appropriate to set up formal arrangements between the respective 
audit committees. This could involve one audit committee being nominated to take the lead 
on matters relating to the partnership. Alternatively, the audit committees could nominate 
representatives to a shared audit committee to oversee the partnership.

DECISION-MAKING POWERS AND DELEGATIONS
All audit committees are non-executive bodies whose role is to make recommendations 
rather than to decide policies directly. The impact of the committee is through influence 
and persuasion rather than direct decision making. The committee’s effectiveness does not 
depend on the delegation of powers.

The constitution of a local authority may include direct delegations to its audit committee, 
for example to approve the AGS or financial statements on behalf of the authority, as well as 
undertaking the review. In establishing whether the audit committee is to have any delegated 

Page 147Page 88

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2016/1/contents/enacted


CHAPTER 6 \ INDEPENDENCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Page 35

decision-making powers, the local authority should take into account the number and role of 
independent members on the committee. In doing this, it will need to take into account the issue 
of voting rights outlined in Chapter 7. CIPFA recommends that delegation of decision-making 
powers on matters not directly related to the work of the audit committee should be avoided. 

Police audit committees in England and Wales can never be delegated decision-making or 
approval powers by the PCC or the chief constable. 

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATIONAL ARRANGEMENTS

Agenda management and frequency of meetings
The frequency and timing of meetings is a matter for each authority to determine, based on 
its corporate governance arrangements, together with consideration of how the committee 
can operate effectively and fulfil its purpose. To fit with planning, monitoring and annual 
reporting arrangements, most organisations will find they will require at least four meetings 
a year. Aspects of the audit committee agenda will be determined by statutory requirements 
related to the accounts and matters related to the financial year. Outside these agenda items, 
the audit committee should aim to manage its agenda according to its assurance needs to 
fulfil its terms of reference. 

Where an audit committee is addressing the full range of governance, risk, control and audit 
functions, care should be taken to balance the frequency of meetings against the need 
to give the business of the committee sufficient focused attention without lengthy and 
unproductive meetings. Equally, the audit committee should review whether the inclusion of 
each item on its agenda results in added value and whether some time-consuming aspects 
of audit committee business could be more effectively addressed elsewhere. In making these 
judgements, the audit committee should operate at a resolutely strategic level. Care should 
be taken to avoid straying into matters of operational detail that should be resolved by 
service managers. The skilful chairing of meetings with well-planned agendas should provide 
the final mechanism for avoiding this danger. 

Supporting the audit committee and key relationships
Effective administrative support for the audit committee will clearly be important as for 
any committee of the authority. If the committee is to take an active part in the authority’s 
business, it should be administered as effectively as any other committee meeting. The 
regular attendance of key senior management figures is important – both to maintain the 
credibility of the committee and to ensure that members are adequately supported by 
appropriate professionals.

The Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (CIPFA, 2016) and the CIPFA 
Statement on the Role of Chief Financial Officers in Policing (2018) emphasise the importance 
of having an effective audit committee to support the CFO. Police audit committees will need 
to work with the CFO of both the PCC and the chief constable. The CFO in a local authority 
must lead the promotion and delivery by the whole authority of good financial management 
so that public money is safeguarded at all times and used appropriately, economically, 
efficiently and effectively.

Page 148Page 89

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/the-role-of-the-chief-financial-officer-in-local-government
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/cipfa-statement-on-the-role-of-the-chief-financial-officer-of-the-police-and-crime-commissioner-and-the-chief-finance-officer-of-the-chief-constable
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/cipfa-statement-on-the-role-of-the-chief-financial-officer-of-the-police-and-crime-commissioner-and-the-chief-finance-officer-of-the-chief-constable


AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 36

The CFO should therefore be a key point of contact for audit committee members and it is 
essential that the CFO has direct access to the committee. It is also a responsibility of the CFO 
to support the authority’s internal audit arrangements and ensure that the audit committee 
receives any necessary advice and information, so that both functions can operate effectively. 
The audit committee should then be in a position to provide effective support to the CFO.

The head of internal audit should also have a good relationship with the committee and be 
a key point of contact. Internal audit reports or updates will be a regular feature of audit 
committee agendas, so the head of internal audit should be expected to attend all meetings. 

A public sector requirement within the PSIAS states:

The chief audit executive must also establish effective communication with, and have free and 
unfettered access to, the chief executive (or equivalent) and the chair of the audit committee. 

The head of internal audit’s relationship with the audit committee, especially the chair, 
is crucial. They should be mutually supportive in their aim to be objective and to provide 
challenge and support across the organisation and improve governance, risk management and 
internal control. The head of internal audit must work closely with the audit committee chair so 
that they are clear about their respective roles and make best use of the available resources.

To be effective, an audit committee will need to engage with a wider range of officers than 
representatives of finance and internal audit, essential though they are. While it is for each 
audit committee to determine who attends its meetings, the following examples demonstrate 
the wide range of officers who can attend and add value to audit committee meetings:

 � chief executive or equivalent – for the AGS and other governance-related issues

 � monitoring officer – for the AGS and ethical governance issues

 � risk management officer – for discussions around the risk registers and risk reports

 � head of counter fraud – for agenda items on fraud risks and counter fraud activity

 � service senior managers – for audit, risk, or governance discussions on their service   
areas (while recognising the operational independence of the chief constable on 
operational policing matters)

 � scrutiny, ethics or standards committee representatives – it may be helpful to invite 
representatives along to explain their work programme or recent reports.

Consideration should also be given to supporting the audit committee outside formal 
meetings. There may be a need to keep committee members briefed on issues that are on 
the agenda, and other matters may be too detailed for inclusion on the agenda. For example, 
internal audit reports may be provided in full to committee members but may be included 
on the meeting agenda only where there are significant risks to be discussed. This issue may 
be of particular importance for police audit committees where the members are not routinely 
involved in other meetings and do not have the same rights of access to information as do 
local authority councillors. Arrangements to provide the members with an appropriate level 
of information and updates and a protocol for managing information requests should be 
discussed and agreed.

Private meetings with external auditors and with internal auditors are a common feature of 
audit committees in the private sector and in other parts of the public sector. The aim of this 

Page 149Page 90



CHAPTER 6 \ INDEPENDENCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Page 37

is to ensure that there are opportunities to raise any concerns. In local authorities this has 
proved difficult to replicate because of the requirements for committee meetings to be held in 
public. Some authorities have approached this by specifying that such meetings are informal. 
Authorities should aim to provide full opportunities for auditors, external and internal, to have 
access to the chair of the audit committee.

ACCOUNTABILITY 
Given its role in the governance structure and in promoting the principles of good governance, 
the audit committee should be clear how it supports one of the key principles: accountability. 
It is also important that the audit committee is, in its turn, held to account on the extent to 
which it has fulfilled its purpose. For an audit committee, accountability has to be considered 
under three aspects, each of which is considered below:

1. supporting the authority’s accountability to the public and stakeholders

2. supporting accountability within the authority

3. holding the audit committee to account.

Supporting the authority’s accountability to the public and 
stakeholders
The committee has a key role in reviewing the public reports of the authority and in helping 
the authority to discharge its responsibilities in this area. Committee meetings will normally 
be held in public, with the exception of exempt items, so this also contributes to the 
accountability of the authority to the public and stakeholders. 

The Home Office publishes an Accountability System Statement for Policing and Crime 
Reduction which identifies the formal accountability relationships of policing bodies. The 
statement does not identify a formal accountability role for the police audit committee, 
which reflects its role as an advisory body supporting the PCC and chief constable. For police 
audit committees, therefore, the committee provides support for accountability to the public 
and other stakeholders but does not directly discharge that responsibility itself.

A wider group of stakeholders, such as partner organisations or the police and crime panel, 
may have an interest in the work of the committee, although there is no direct accountability 
relationship between the panel and the audit committee. Holding open meetings and 
publishing agendas and minutes will support wider communication and transparency.

Supporting accountability within the authority
Through review of internal and external audit reports, monitoring of risk registers and 
other key strategies, the audit committee will hold to account those responsible for the 
implementation of recommendations and action plans. In addition, by overseeing the 
process of evaluating and improving governance, risk management and control, the audit 
committee helps those responsible for governance to ensure that accountability throughout 
the authority is working well.

The audit committee is most effective in supporting internal accountability when it discusses 
governance, risk or control issues with the responsible managers directly. In the most recent 

Page 150Page 91

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/accountability-system-statement-for-policing-and-crime-reduction


AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 38

CIPFA survey, this was an area that heads of internal audit identified for improvement in their 
audit committees.

Holding the audit committee to account
The audit committee should be held to account on a regular basis by the group to which it 
is accountable. For a local authority audit committee, this will be the council. For a police 
audit committee, it will be both the PCC and the chief constable. The aspects that should be 
specifically considered include:

 � whether the committee has fulfilled its agreed terms of reference

 � whether the committee has adopted recommended practice

 � whether the development needs of committee members have been assessed and 
whether committee members are accessing briefing and training opportunities

 � whether the committee has assessed its own effectiveness or been the subject of a 
review and the conclusions and actions from that review

 � what impact the committee has on the improvement of governance, risk and control 
within the authority.

The preparation of an annual report by the committee can be a helpful way to address 
the key areas where the committee should be held to account. The annual report should 
be presented to those charged with governance: council or PCC and chief constable as 
appropriate. In addition, publication of the report will assist other stakeholders to understand 
the work of the committee.

It can be difficult to ensure that those not directly involved in the work of the committee 
achieve an understanding of its role. Where there is a lack of understanding about the work 
of the committee, then the process of holding the committee to account may not operate 
effectively. This is considered further in Chapter 7. 

Page 151Page 92



Page 39

CHAPTER 7

Membership and effectiveness

Extract from the Position Statement

6 Good audit committees are characterised by:

 � a membership that is balanced, objective, independent of mind, knowledgeable and properly 
trained to fulfil their role. The political balance of a formal committee of an authority will 
reflect the political balance of the council, however, it is important to achieve the right mix of 
apolitical expertise

 � a membership that is supportive of good governance principles and their practical application 
towards the achievement of organisational objectives

 � a strong independently minded chair – displaying a depth of knowledge, skills and interest. 
There are many personal qualities needed to be an effective chair, but key to these are:

 – promoting apolitical open discussion

 – managing meetings to cover all business and encouraging a candid approach from all 
participants

 – an interest in and knowledge of financial and risk management, audit, accounting 
concepts and standards, and the regulatory regime

 � unbiased attitudes – treating auditors, the executive and management fairly

 � the ability to challenge the executive and senior managers when required. 

COMPOSITION AND OPERATION OF THE COMMITTEE
The composition of the committee will be a key factor in achieving the characteristics of a 
good audit committee.

Audit committees in Welsh local authorities and combined authorities in England and 
in police audit committees in England and Wales are subject to specific rules on the 
composition of the audit committee as follows:

 � The composition of the audit committee for Welsh local authorities is subject to the Local 
Government (Wales) Measure 2011, which requires local authority audit committees to 
have at least one lay member. Up to one-third of the committee membership may be lay 
members. Only one of the committee’s members may be from the council’s executive 
and this must not be the leader or the elected mayor.

 � Police audit committees should comprise between three and five members who are 
independent of the PCC and the force as required by the Financial Management Code 
of Practice for the Police Forces of England and Wales (Home Office, 2013 – due to be 
updated in 2018).

Page 152Page 93

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2011/4/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2011/4/contents
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-management-code-of-practice
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-management-code-of-practice


AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 40

 � Combined authorities in England are required to establish an audit committee by the 
Cities and Local Government Devolution Act 2016. The Act and the subsequent Combined 
Authorities (Overview and Scrutiny Committees, Access to Information and Audit 
Committees) Order 2017 require combined authority audit committees to include at 
least one independent member. The definition of independent is set out in the statutory 
guidance.

In other parts of the local authority sector there are no statutory requirements that determine 
the composition of the audit committee. In Northern Ireland, the Chief Local Government 
Auditor has recommended that suitable independent members are appointed to all local 
authority audit committees. In the most recent report, ten out of eleven local authority 
committees had appointed at least one independent member to the committee. 

CIPFA endorses the approach of mandating the inclusion of a lay or independent member 
and recommends that those authorities, for whom it is not a requirement, actively explore the 
appointment of an independent member to the committee. 

In other sectors, the audit committee can be small – fewer than six members. Guidance on 
Audit Committees (FRC, 2016) says that an audit committee should have at least three non-
executive directors. The Audit and Risk Assurance Committee Handbook (HM Treasury, 2016) 
states that a committee should have at least three members of which there should be two 
non-executive board members, one of whom will chair the committee; executive members are 
explicitly excluded.

In the local authority sector where membership of the committee is drawn from elected 
representatives, the depth of knowledge and experience that is desirable may be harder to 
achieve with a small number, however, there is a risk that creating a large committee will 
mean that it is harder to create the necessary focus. There is no consistency in the local 
government sector on the size of the committee. CIPFA’s 2016 survey of audit committees 
found that size of the committee ranged from five to fifteen or more, although 47% had 
between six and eight members, with 2% having fewer and 50% having more. The survey 
showed that the average size of the committee had increased since CIPFA’s 2011 survey.

Elected members of local authorities are members of the council and thus are part of the 
body charged with governance. Elected members bring knowledge of the organisation, its 
objectives and policies to the audit committee. Members who are also involved in scrutiny or 
standards offer additional knowledge of activity, risks and challenges affecting those areas. 

Having executive members on the committee is discouraged as it could deter the committee 
from being able to challenge or hold to account the executive on governance, risk and control 
matters. This approach is consistent with audit committee practice in other parts of the 
public sector and in the private sector. Inviting an executive member onto the committee 
should be avoided unless the committee has other compensating arrangements to ensure 
independence, for example, a majority of independent members or an independent chair. The 
executive member should not chair the committee. The leader of the cabinet, administration 
or the elected mayor should not be a member of the audit committee. However, the audit 
committee can invite members of the executive to attend to discuss issues within its remit 
and to brief the committee on the actions they are taking.

Page 153Page 94

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2016/1/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/68/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/68/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/68/contents/made
https://www.niauditoffice.gov.uk/publications/local-government-annual-report-2017
https://www.frc.org.uk/directors/corporate-governance-and-stewardship/uk-corporate-governance-code/frc-guidance-for-boards-and-board-committees
https://www.frc.org.uk/directors/corporate-governance-and-stewardship/uk-corporate-governance-code/frc-guidance-for-boards-and-board-committees
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/audit-committee-handbook
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/cipfa-survey-of-audit-committees-in-local-authorities-and-police


CHAPTER 7 \ MEMBERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS 

Page 41

Any audit committee that is a properly constituted committee of the council will need 
to abide by the rules concerning political balance, as outlined in Section 15 of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989. Under the statutory guidance, combined authorities are 
required to reflect the political balance of the constituent authorities as far as is practicable. 
One factor that is important for the success of the committee is ensuring a non-political 
approach to meetings and discussions. When establishing a joint audit committee, the 
political balance of both authorities will need to be considered. 

Good practice shows that co-option of independent members is beneficial to the audit 
committee. It is a requirement for police audit committees, English combined authorities 
and for local authorities in Wales, and it is usual practice for non-executives to be committee 
members in health and central government audit committees. The injection of an external 
view can often bring a new approach to committee discussions. Authorities that have chosen 
to recruit independent members have done so for a number of reasons:

 � to bring additional knowledge and expertise to the committee

 � to reinforce the political neutrality and independence of the committee

 � to maintain continuity of committee membership where membership is affected by the 
electoral cycle.

There are some potential pitfalls to the use of independent members which should also be 
borne in mind:

 � over-reliance on the independent members by other committee members can lead to a 
lack of engagement across the full committee

 � lack of organisational knowledge or ‘context’ among the independent members when 
considering risk registers or audit reports

 � effort is required from both independent members and officers/staff to establish an 
effective working relationship and establish appropriate protocols for briefings and 
access to information. 

These factors should be taken into account when developing the committee structure and 
plans put in place to provide an appropriate level of support to the audit committee member.

Voting rights of independent members
Local authorities should have regard to Section 13 of the Local Government and Housing Act 
1989 which relates to the voting rights of non-elected committee members. Where the audit 
committee is operating as an advisory committee under the Local Government Act 1972, 
making recommendations rather than policy, then all members of the committee should 
be able to vote on that recommendation. If the council wishes to delegate decisions to the 
committee, for example the adoption of the financial statements, then the independent 
member will not be able to vote on those matters for decision. The minutes of the meeting 
should make clear in what capacity the committee is voting.

Recruitment process
The job description of the independent member should be drawn up and agreed before 
commencing recruitment. The requirement for relevant knowledge or expertise should be 

Page 154Page 95

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/42/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/42/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/contents


AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 42

clearly determined. Vacancies should be publicly advertised, as is good practice for any 
public appointment. Candidates should be able to demonstrate their political independence 
and their suitability should be checked. Only the independent members for combined 
authorities have to satisfy specific definitions of their independence. Appropriate enquiries 
will need to be made as part of the recruitment process to ensure that any applicants satisfy 
the requirements, and continuation of compliance should be monitored during the term of 
appointment.

Independent members’ appointments should be for a fixed term and be formally approved 
by the local authority’s council or the PCC and the chief constable. Provision should be made 
for early termination and extension to avoid lack of clarity in the future. While operating as 
a member of the audit committee, the independent member should follow the same code of 
conduct as elected members and a register of interests should be maintained.

The primary considerations when considering audit committee membership should be 
maximising the committee’s knowledge base and skills, being able to demonstrate objectivity 
and independence, and having a membership that will work together. 

KNOWLEDGE AND EXPERIENCE
There is a range of knowledge and experience that audit committee members can bring to 
the committee and which will enable it to perform effectively. No one committee member 
would be expected to be expert in all areas, but there are some core areas of knowledge that 
committee members will need to acquire. There will also be a need for regular briefings or 
training to help committee members keep up to date or extend their knowledge.

Appendix C sets out a knowledge and skills framework for audit committee members and the 
committee chair. This can be used to guide members on their training needs and to evaluate 
the overall knowledge and skills of the committee. It can also be used when recruiting 
independent members. A distinction is made between core areas of knowledge that all audit 
committee members should seek to acquire and a range of specialisms that can add value to 
the committee. 

The audit committee should review risks, controls and assurances that cover the whole 
operation of the authority so knowledge of specific service areas will be helpful. Other areas of 
specialist knowledge and experience, for example in accountancy, audit, governance and risk 
management, will add value to the committee.

Skills and competencies
A number of skills are beneficial for the audit committee member to have. There are also 
specific skills that the audit committee chair will need. Many of these skills are not unique to 
the role of audit committee member and experience in other member or non-executive roles 
will have helped to build these skills. Many authorities have training and development plans 
for elected members, which may include similar skill or competency training opportunities. 
Evidence of appropriate skills and knowledge should also be sought where independent 
members are being recruited to the committee.

Page 155Page 96



CHAPTER 7 \ MEMBERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS 

Page 43

Self-assessment and training
Audit committee members should be willing to review their knowledge and skills, for example, 
as part of a self-assessment process or training needs analysis. Regardless of the knowledge 
and skills a member has when joining the committee, there needs to be a commitment to 
participate in training and development to ensure that knowledge is kept up to date. The 
authority should establish a programme of support that involves induction training, regular 
briefings and updates as well as formal training programmes. This may require the allocation  
of a budget to provide appropriate support.

Role of the chair
Police audit committees and some authority audit committees may advertise specifically 
for an independent chair. Following appointment, it would be expected that the person 
would remain as chair for their appointed period. Where the chair is an elected councilor, 
the appointment is likely to be made during the annual council and may only be for that 
committee cycle. Whether undertaken during recruitment or the annual committee cycle, 
ideally the selection of the chair will take into account the characteristics required of an 
effective chair. These include:

 � an ability to plan the work of the committee over the year and beyond

 � skills of managing meetings

 � an ability to bring an objective, apolitical attitude

 � a core knowledge and skills required of audit committee members

 � a clear focus on the role of the committee and ambition to lead the committee in line 
with good governance principles

 � a focus on improvement and securing agreement on actions.

The tenure of the audit committee chair remains a matter for the authority. In making this 
decision, it should be recognised that a period of continuity can be helpful, particularly for 
the development of greater knowledge and expertise, while rotation also helps to deliver a 
new perspective.

DEVELOPING AUDIT COMMITTEE EFFECTIVENESS
An audit committee’s effectiveness should be judged by the contribution it makes to, and the 
beneficial impact it has on, the authority’s business. Since it is primarily an advisory body, 
it can be more difficult to identify how the audit committee has made a difference. Evidence 
of effectiveness will usually be characterised as ‘influence’, ‘persuasion’ and ‘support’. A good 
standard of performance against recommended practice, together with a knowledgeable and 
experienced membership, are essential requirements for delivering effectiveness.

Using the recommended practice in this publication should help the authority to achieve 
a good standard of performance. The evaluation at Appendix D will support an assessment 
against recommended practice to inform and support the audit committee. Authorities are 
encouraged not to regard meeting recommended practice as a tick-box activity, and they 
should recognise that achieving recommended practice does not mean necessarily that the 
committee is effective.

Page 156Page 97



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 44

The selection of audit committee members, their knowledge, skills and experience are an 
essential component of an effective committee. Regular briefings and training are essential to 
keep members up to date in their role. Members will become more effective with experience 
so it is helpful to have some continuity of membership on the committee.

The approach and priorities of the audit committee will need to adapt to the risks and 
challenges facing the authority and reflect the maturity of its governance, risk and control 
arrangements. For example, in a new authority or one that has gone through significant 
structural change, there may be little continuity of governance and control arrangements. As 
a result, the audit committee will focus on the establishment of appropriate arrangements. 

Where an authority has been found to have significant weaknesses in its governance or 
control arrangements, perhaps identified through an inspection or audit, then the audit 
committee will support the implementation of recommendations or action plans. Where there 
are barriers to that improvement, the committee may need to adopt a more questioning or 
challenging role to help break down those barriers. In those authorities where governance, 
risk and control are satisfactory overall, the audit committee may give greater focus to new 
risks and developments, but will also want to seek assurance that satisfactory performance 
does not lead to complacency and lack of innovation. 

COMMON AREAS OF DIFFICULTY FOR AUDIT COMMITTEES
It is not uncommon for audit committees to face difficulties or barriers to fulfilling their 
potential effectiveness. CIPFA’s survey of audit committees in 2016 identified the principal 
barriers faced by both local authority and police audit committees. For local authorities, the 
top three were: 

1. limited knowledge and experience of the members

2. the committee not being seen as a priority by other members

3. the intrusion of political interests. 

For police audit committees, the top three barriers were: 

1. the committee was not considered a priority by the PCC and chief constable

2. the committee was not considered a priority by senior management

3. poor relationships between committee members and staff. 

The barriers reflect the different make-up of local authority and police committees. 

Some of these may be common issues that audit committees in any sector may face; others 
may be unique to the local authority or police setting. The following assessment may be of 
value in helping audit committee members or those supporting the committee to recognise 
and address the challenges.

Page 157Page 98



CHAPTER 7 \ MEMBERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS 

Page 45

Areas of difficulty Possible causes Possible improvement options

Lack of experience and 
continuity of knowledge among 
audit committee members

 � Where turnover of 
membership is very 
frequent, it will be difficult 
for the committee to build 
up experience

 � Enhanced level of support and 
training to members will be 
required

 � To enhance continuity the 
authority could consider 
recruitment of independent 
members

Audit committee members 
do not feel confident in their 
knowledge of particular areas

 � Lack of training and support  � Enhanced level of support and 
training to members

Independent members lack 
knowledge of the organisation 
and lack connections with key 
managers

 � Poor induction

 � Limited opportunities to 
engage with the organisation 
outside formal meetings

 � Improve induction

 � Identify appropriate 
meetings, briefings or 
other opportunities that 
independent members could 
attend to help develop better 
understanding

Poor management of audit 
committee meetings means 
that work is unfocused or fails 
to reach a clear conclusion

 � Lack of experience or skill in 
managing meetings by the 
chair

 � Committee members are 
unsure about their role

 � Poor support from the 
committee secretary

 � Training and support

 � Develop a mentoring/
coaching programme

 � Chair seeks feedback from 
meeting participants

 � Consider skills and experience 
in the selection of the chair

 � Provide training and guidance 
to committee members on 
their role

 � Improve committee support

The audit committee spends 
too much time on minor areas 
rather than strategic or wide-
ranging issues

 � Agenda management fails to 
prioritise key areas

 � The chair does not intervene 
to keep focus at an 
appropriate level

 � Review the process of agenda 
development

 � Review the terms of reference 
and provide training

 � The chair seeks feedback from 
meeting participants

 � Provide the chair with 
committee management 
training

The audit committee is little 
known or understood in many 
parts of the authority

 � The audit committee fails to 
engage with many parts of 
the authority

 � Attendance is often limited 
to the CFO and the head of 
internal audit

 � Expand attendance at audit 
committee meetings. For 
example, invite heads of 
service when major risks 
or control issues are being 
discussed

Page 158Page 99



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 46

Areas of difficulty Possible causes Possible improvement options

The audit committee is little 
known or understood by those 
not on the committee

 � Lack of feedback or reporting 
arrangements

 � Invite newly elected members 
to attend audit committee 
meetings

 � Review reporting 
arrangements

 � Consider an annual report that 
sets out how the committee 
has fulfilled its responsibilities

Recommendations made by 
the audit committee are not 
actioned

 � Poor relationship between 
the committee and the 
executive or senior officers

 � The audit committee’s 
recommendations are not 
adequately aligned to 
organisational objectives 

 � A senior officer provides 
internal facilitation to support 
improved relationships

 � Improve knowledge and skills 
among audit committee 
members

 � Ensure better engagement 
with appropriate managers 
or the executive at an earlier 
stage

The audit committee fails to 
make recommendations or 
follow up on issues of concern

 � A weak or inexperienced 
chair

 � Members are inexperienced 
or do not fully understand 
their role

 � Poor briefing arrangements 
prior to meetings

 � Committee reports fail to 
adequately identify the 
action required by the 
committee

 � Provide guidance and support

 � Improve briefing to the chair 
prior to the meeting

 � Ensure reports contain clear 
recommendations

The audit committee strays 
beyond its terms of reference, 
for example undertaking a 
scrutiny role

 � The terms of reference do 
not adequately scope the 
work of the committee

 � Misunderstanding about the 
role of the committee

 � Inadequate guidance from 
committee secretary to the 
chair on its role

 � Review the terms of reference 
and provide training and 
guidance

Page 159Page 100



CHAPTER 7 \ MEMBERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS 

Page 47

Areas of difficulty Possible causes Possible improvement options

Political points of view interfere 
with the work of the audit 
committee

 � Lack of understanding about 
the role of the committee

 � Seek feedback from those 
interacting with the 
committee or external 
assessment

 � Provide support for or training 
for the chair

 � Consider the inclusion or role 
of independent members

A breakdown in the relationship 
between committee members 
and the executive, PCC or 
chief constable or with senior 
management

 � Lack of understanding about 
the role of the committee

 � Differing perceptions on the 
value of the committee

 � Personality clashes

 � Review the terms of reference 
and provide training and 
guidance

 � A senior officer provides 
internal facilitation to support 
improved relationships

 � Seek an external assessment 
or facilitation

 � Change the chair or 
membership, if the 
constitution or opportunity 
arises

APPROACHES TO IMPROVEMENT AND EVALUATING 
EFFECTIVENESS

The areas included on audit committee agendas are regularly impacted by new legislation, 
professional guidance and research, so even knowledgeable and experienced audit 
committee members need access to briefings or training to remain effective. Where areas 
for development have been identified in the operation of the committee, then a more 
comprehensive action plan may be required. 

Seeking feedback on the operation of the committee may be helpful to supplement a self-
assessment. Those interacting regularly with the committee or relying on its output would be 
the principal sources of feedback. Where the committee is struggling, an external assessment 
may be an appropriate way to evaluate the committee and to develop an action plan for 
improvement.

Appendix E contains an assessment tool to help audit committee members to consider where 
it is most effective and where there may be scope to do more. To be considered effective, 
the audit committee should be able to identify evidence of its impact or influence linked to 
specific improvements.

Page 160Page 101



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 48

Page 161Page 102



Page 49

APPENDIX A

Sector and devolved 
government guidance

Page 162Page 103



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 50

PA
RT

 1
 –

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 O
F 

SE
CT

O
R

 A
N

D
 D

EV
O

LV
ED

 G
O

VE
R

N
M

EN
T 

R
EG

U
LA

TI
O

N
S 

A
N

D
 G

U
ID

A
N

CE
 O

N
 

K
EY

 A
R

EA
S 

R
EL

AT
ED

 T
O

 A
U

D
IT

 C
O

M
M

IT
TE

ES

Gu
id

an
ce

 a
re

a
En

gl
an

d

Co
m

bi
ne

d 
au

th
or

it
ie

s 

W
al

es
 

Lo
ca

l  
au

th
or

it
ie

s

En
gl

an
d 

an
d 

W
al

es

Po
lic

e 

En
gl

an
d,

 N
or

th
er

n 
Ir

el
an

d 
an

d 
Sc

ot
la

nd
 

Lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
ri

ti
es

 

Es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t o
f 

au
di

t c
om

m
itt

ee
 
�

Re
qu

ire
d

 
�

Re
qu

ire
d

 
�

Re
qu

ire
d

 
�

It
 is

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 th

is
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
 c

om
bi

ne
d 

bo
dy

 fo
r b

ot
h 

PC
C 

an
d 

ch
ie

f c
on

st
ab

le

N
o 

gu
id

an
ce

Co
m

po
si

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t 

co
m

m
itt

ee

 
�

Co
m

m
itt

ee
s 

m
us

t h
av

e 
at

 le
as

t o
ne

 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t p
er

so
n 

as
 d

efi
ne

d 
by

 
gu

id
an

ce

 
�

Th
e 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 s

ho
ul

d 
re

fle
ct

 th
e 

po
lit

ic
al

 b
al

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 c

on
st

itu
en

t 
au

th
or

iti
es

, a
s 

fa
r a

s 
is

 re
as

on
ab

ly
 

pr
ac

tic
al

 
�

Th
e 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 m

ay
 n

ot
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 
of

fic
er

 o
f t

he
 c

om
bi

ne
d 

au
th

or
ity

 o
r a

 
co

ns
tit

ue
nt

 c
ou

nc
il

 
�

Co
m

m
itt

ee
s 

m
us

t h
av

e 
at

 le
as

t 
on

e 
la

y 
m

em
be

r. 
Up

 to
 o

ne
-t

hi
rd

 
of

 th
e 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
m

ay
 b

e 
la

y 
m

em
be

rs
. O

nl
y 

on
e 

of
 th

e 
co

m
m

itt
ee

’s
 m

em
be

rs
 

m
ay

 b
e 

fr
om

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 
ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

an
d 

th
is

 m
us

t n
ot

 b
e 

th
e 

le
ad

er
 o

r t
he

 e
le

ct
ed

 m
ay

or

 
�

Po
lic

e 
au

di
t c

om
m

itt
ee

s 
sh

ou
ld

 
co

m
pr

is
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
re

e 
an

d 
fiv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 w

ho
 a

re
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t o
f t

he
 

PC
C 

an
d 

th
e 

fo
rc

e 
(w

he
re

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
)

N
o 

gu
id

an
ce

Page 163Page 104



APPENDIX A \ SECTOR AND DEVOLVED GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE 

Page 51

Gu
id

an
ce

 a
re

a
En

gl
an

d

Co
m

bi
ne

d 
au

th
or

it
ie

s 

W
al

es
 

Lo
ca

l  
au

th
or

it
ie

s

En
gl

an
d 

an
d 

W
al

es

Po
lic

e 

En
gl

an
d,

 N
or

th
er

n 
Ir

el
an

d 
an

d 
Sc

ot
la

nd
 

Lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
ri

ti
es

 

Sp
ec

ifi
ed

 
fu

nc
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 
au

di
t c

om
m

itt
ee

a)
  

Re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 s

cr
ut

in
is

e 
th

e 
au

th
or

ity
's 

fin
an

ci
al

 a
ff

ai
rs

b)
  

Re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
au

th
or

ity
's 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 a
nd

 
co

rp
or

at
e 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

c)
  

Re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
ec

on
om

y,
 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

w
ith

 
w

hi
ch

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

us
ed

 in
 

di
sc

ha
rg

in
g 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

's 
fu

nc
tio

ns

d)
  

M
ak

e 
re

po
rt

s 
an

d 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 to

 
th

e 
co

m
bi

ne
d 

au
th

or
ity

a)
  

Re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 s

cr
ut

in
is

e 
th

e 
au

th
or

ity
's 

fin
an

ci
al

 a
ff

ai
rs

b)
  

M
ak

e 
re

po
rt

s 
an

d 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

's 
fin

an
ci

al
 a

ff
ai

rs

c)
  

Re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 

an
d 

co
rp

or
at

e 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 a
ut

ho
rit

y

d)
  

M
ak

e 
re

po
rt

s 
an

d 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 to

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 o
n 

th
e 

ad
eq

ua
cy

 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 th

os
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

e)
  

Ov
er

se
e 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

's 
in

te
rn

al
 a

nd
 e

xt
er

na
l a

ud
it 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

f) 
 

Re
vi

ew
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

Co
ns

id
er

 th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 a
nd

 e
xt

er
na

l a
ud

it 
re

po
rt

s 
of

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
PC

C 
an

d 
th

e 
ch

ie
f 

co
ns

ta
bl

e

Ad
vi

se
 th

e 
PC

C 
an

d 
th

e 
ch

ie
f c

on
st

ab
le

 
ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 g

oo
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 p

rin
ci

pl
es

 
an

d 
ad

op
t a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 ri

sk
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 p
ro

pe
r 

pr
ac

tic
es

N
o 

gu
id

an
ce

Re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 

in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it

 
�

N
o 

gu
id

an
ce

 
�

Ov
er

se
e 

ex
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 
�

Re
vi

ew
 e

xt
er

na
l a

ud
it 

re
po

rt
s

N
o 

gu
id

an
ce

Page 164Page 105



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 52

Gu
id

an
ce

 a
re

a
En

gl
an

d

Co
m

bi
ne

d 
au

th
or

it
ie

s 

W
al

es
 

Lo
ca

l  
au

th
or

it
ie

s

En
gl

an
d 

an
d 

W
al

es

Po
lic

e 

En
gl

an
d,

 N
or

th
er

n 
Ir

el
an

d 
an

d 
Sc

ot
la

nd
 

Lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
ri

ti
es

 

Sp
ec

ifi
c 

gu
id

an
ce

 
�

Ci
tie

s 
an

d 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
De

vo
lu

tio
n 

Ac
t 2

01
6

 
�

Co
m

bi
ne

d 
Au

th
or

iti
es

 (O
ve

rv
ie

w
 

an
d 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
s,

 A
cc

es
s 

to
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

Au
di

t C
om

m
itt

ee
s)

 
Or

de
r 2

01
6

 
�

Lo
ca

l G
ov

er
nm

en
t (

W
al

es
) 

M
ea

su
re

 2
01

1 
St

at
ut

or
y 

Gu
id

an
ce

 fr
om

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l 
Go

ve
rn

m
en

t M
ea

su
re

 2
01

1

Fi
na

nc
ia

l M
an

ag
em

en
t C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r t

he
 P

ol
ic

e 
Fo

rc
es

 o
f E

ng
la

nd
 a

nd
 W

al
es

 
(H

om
e 

Of
fic

e,
 2

01
3 

– 
du

e 
to

 b
e 

up
da

te
d 

in
 2

01
8)

N
/A

Page 165Page 106

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2016/1/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2016/1/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2016/9780111151754/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2016/9780111151754/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2016/9780111151754/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2016/9780111151754/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2011/4/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2011/4/contents
http://gov.wales/topics/localgovernment/publications/statguide/?lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/localgovernment/publications/statguide/?lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/localgovernment/publications/statguide/?lang=en
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-management-code-of-practice
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-management-code-of-practice


APPENDIX A \ SECTOR AND DEVOLVED GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE 

Page 53

PART 2 – GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE BY SECTOR AND DEVOLVED 
GOVERNMENT ON MATTERS THAT MAY BE INCLUDED IN AUDIT 
COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE

Accounts and Audit Regulations are statutory instruments issued by the UK or the 
devolved governments. The various regulations impose requirements on ‘relevant bodies’, 
eg a local authority, a fire and rescue authority or police body, in relation to governance, 
internal control, financial reporting and internal audit.

The Accounts and Audit Regulations do not specify that these requirements must be 
met by an audit committee. However, where it is the audit committee of a relevant 
body that undertakes or reviews the specified task, the audit committee must meet the 
requirements of the regulations and take them into account in agreeing their terms of 
reference.

The following is a summary for each sector and/or region of the sets of regulations 
affecting them, highlighting key regulations. The regulations are subject to periodic 
update by the appropriate government body and audit committee members should be 
made aware of any changes by their organisation.

Local authorities in England (including combined authorities and fire 
and rescue authorities)

Relevant government 
guidance

Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015

Governance and 
risk management 
arrangements

Regulation 3 requires that:

A relevant authority must ensure that it has a sound system of 
internal control which –

(a)  facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the 
achievement of its aims and objectives;

(b)  ensures that the financial and operational management of the 
authority is effective; and

(c)  includes effective arrangements for the management of risk

Authority’s financial 
affairs and financial 
statements

Regulation 4 relates to accounting records and control systems

Regulations 7, 8, 9 and 10 relate to the statement of accounts

Review of effectiveness of 
system of internal control 

Regulation 6 requires members of the body to consider the findings of 
the review of the effectiveness of the body’s system of internal control

Approval of annual 
governance statements

Regulation 6 relates to the approval of an AGS prepared in accordance 
with proper practices in relation to accounts 

Internal audit Regulation 5 requires a relevant body to undertake an effective internal 
audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control 
and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 
auditing standards or guidance

Page 166Page 107

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234/contents/made


AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 54

Local authorities in Wales

Relevant government 
guidance

Accounts and Audit Regulations (Wales) 2014 and the Accounts and 
Audit (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2018

Governance and 
risk management 
arrangements

Regulation 5 requires the following:

5.—(1) The relevant body must ensure that there is a sound system of 
internal control which facilitates the effective exercise of that body’s 
functions and whichincludes—

a)  arrangements for the management of risk, and

b)  adequate and effective financial management

Financial affairs and 
financial statements

Regulation 6 relates to accounting records and control systems

Regulations 8 and 10 relate to the statement of accounts

Review of effectiveness of 
system of internal control 

Regulation 5 requires the body to conduct a review at least once in a 
year of the effectiveness of its system of internal control and consider 
the findings of the review

Approval of annual 
governance statements

Regulation 5 requires the body to approve a statement on internal 
control prepared in accordance with proper practices

Internal audit Regulation 7 requires a local government body to maintain an 
adequate and effective system of internal audit of its accounting 
records and of its system of internal control

Review of effectiveness of 
internal audit

Regulation 7 requires that a larger relevant body must, at least once in 
each year, conduct a review of the effectiveness of its internal audit

In addition, the Local Government Measure (Wales) 2011 has an 
explicit requirement for the audit committee to oversee the authority’s 
internal audit arrangements

Local authorities in Scotland

Relevant government 
guidance

Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014

Governance and risk 
management arrangements

Regulation 5 requires the following:

A local authority is responsible for ensuring that the authority has a 
sound system of internal control which –

(a)  facilitates the effective exercise of the authority’s functions; and

(b)  includes arrangements for the management of risk

Financial affairs and 
financial statements

Regulation 5 requires the following:

A local authority is responsible for ensuring that the financial 
management of the authority is adequate and effective

Regulation 6 relates to accounting records and control systems

Regulations 8, 10 and 11 relate to the statement of accounts

Review of effectiveness of 
system of internal control 

Regulation 5 requires the authority to:

conduct a review at least once in each financial year of the 
effectiveness of its system of internal control.

Page 167Page 108

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2014/3362/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2018/91/note/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2018/91/note/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2011/4/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ssi/2014/200/contents/made


APPENDIX A \ SECTOR AND DEVOLVED GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE 

Page 55

Approval of annual 
governance statements

Regulation 5 relates to the approval of an AGS prepared in accordance 
with proper practices in relation to internal control

Internal audit Regulation 7 requires a local authority to operate a professional and 
objective internal auditing service in accordance with recognised 
standards and practices in relation to internal auditing

Review of effectiveness of 
internal audit

Regulation 7 requires a local authority to assess the efficiency 
and effectiveness of its internal auditing in accordance with the 
recognised standards and practices

Local authorities in Northern Ireland

Relevant government 
guidance

Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 
2015

Governance and 
risk management 
arrangements

Regulation 4 requires a local government body to ensure that the 
financial management of the local government body is adequate and 
effective and that it has a sound system of internal control which 
facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and which includes 
arrangements for the management of risk

Authority’s financial 
affairs and financial 
statements

Regulation 5 relates to accounting records and control systems

Regulations 7 and 8 relate to the statement of accounts

Review of effectiveness of 
system of internal control 

Regulation 4 requires a review of the effectiveness of the body’s system 
of internal control and to approve a statement on internal control, 
prepared in accordance with proper practices in relation to internal 
control

Approval of annual 
governance statements

Regulation 4 requires the body to approve a statement on internal 
control, prepared in accordance with proper practices in relation to 
internal control

The accompanying guidance from the Department of the Environment 
identifies the CIPFA/Solace 2007 Framework and 2012 Addendum 
as proper practices – these have now been replaced by the 2016 
Framework

Internal audit Regulation 6 requires the local government body to undertake an 
adequate and effective internal audit of its accounting records and 
of its system of risk management, internal control and governance 
processes using internal auditing standards in force from time to time

The accompanying guidance from the Department of the Environment 
identifies the PSIAS as the appropriate internal audit standard

Page 168Page 109

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr/2015/106/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisr/2015/106/contents/made
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition


AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 56

Police in England

Relevant government 
guidance

Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 – see also the 
statutory guidance Financial Management Code of Practice for the 
Police Forces of England and Wales (FMCP) (Home Office, 2013 – due to 
be updated in 2018)

Governance and 
risk management 
arrangements

Regulation 3 requires the following:

A relevant authority must ensure that it has a sound system of 
internal control which –

(a)  facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the 
achievement of its aims and objectives;

(b)  ensures that the financial and operational management of the 
authority is effective; and

(c)  includes effective arrangements for the management of risk. 

Authority’s financial 
affairs and financial 
statements

Regulation 4 relates to accounting records and control systems

Regulations 7, 8, 9 and 10 relate to the statement of accounts

Review of effectiveness of 
system of internal control 

Regulation 6 requires members of the body to consider the findings of 
the review of the effectiveness of the body’s system of internal control

Approval of annual 
governance statements

Regulation 6 relates to the approval of an AGS prepared in accordance 
with proper practices in relation to accounts 

Internal audit Regulation 5 requires a relevant body to undertake an effective internal 
audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control 
and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 
auditing standards or guidance

Police in Wales

Relevant government 
guidance

Accounts and Audit Regulations (Wales) 2014 and the Accounts and 
Audit (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2018 – see also the FMCP

Governance and 
risk management 
arrangements

Regulation 5 requires the following:

A local authority is responsible for ensuring that the authority has a 
sound system of internal control which –

(a) facilitates the effective exercise of the authority’s functions; and

(b)  includes arrangements for the management of risk.

Financial affairs and 
financial statements

Regulation 6 relates to accounting records and control systems

Regulations 8 and 10 relate to the statement of accounts

Review of effectiveness of 
system of internal control 

Regulation 5 requires that the body to conduct a review at least once 
in a year of the effectiveness of its system of internal control and 
consider the findings of the review

Approval of annual 
governance statements

Regulation 5 requires the body to approve a statement on internal 
control prepared in accordance with proper practices

Page 169Page 110

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-management-code-of-practice
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-management-code-of-practice
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2018/91/note/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2018/91/note/made


APPENDIX A \ SECTOR AND DEVOLVED GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE 

Page 57

Internal audit Regulation 7 requires a local government body to maintain an 
adequate and effective system of internal audit of its accounting 
records and of its system of internal control

Review of effectiveness of 
internal audit

Regulation 7 requires that a larger relevant body must, at least once in 
each year, conduct a review of the effectiveness of its internal audit 

In addition, the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 has an 
explicit requirement for the audit committee to oversee the authority’s 
internal audit arrangements

Page 170Page 111



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 58

Page 171Page 112



Page 59

APPENDIX B

Suggested terms of reference – 
local authorities and police

INTRODUCTION
This appendix contains two sets of suggested terms of reference, one for local authorities 
and one for police. The principal difference between them is that the police audit 
committee must ensure that its terms of reference are in accordance with the Financial 
Management Code of Practice for the Police Forces of England and Wales (Home Office, 
2013 – due to be updated in 2018) and remain an advisory body.

In developing the terms of reference for an organisation, care should be taken to ensure 
that the specific regulations appropriate for the authority are taken into account. 
Appendix A sets out these requirements. In addition, where the terms of reference refer 
to internal audit, regard should be had for how the internal audit charter has allocated 
responsibilities to the committee. Some of the internal audit responsibilities identified in 
the terms of reference may not be carried out by the audit committee but by others.

SUGGESTED TERMS OF REFERENCE – LOCAL AUTHORITIES

Governance
The terms of reference should set out the committee’s position in the governance structure of 
the authority.

Statement of purpose
1 Our audit committee is a key component of [name of authority]’s corporate governance. 

It provides an independent and high-level focus on the audit, assurance and reporting 
arrangements that underpin good governance and financial standards.

2 The purpose of our audit committee is to provide independent assurance to the members 
[or identify others charged with governance in your authority] of the adequacy of the risk 
management framework and the internal control environment. It provides independent 
review of [name of authority]’s governance, risk management and control frameworks 
and oversees the financial reporting and annual governance processes. It oversees 
internal audit and external audit, helping to ensure efficient and effective assurance 
arrangements are in place.

Page 172Page 113

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-management-code-of-practice
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-management-code-of-practice


AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 60

Governance, risk and control
3 To review the council’s corporate governance arrangements against the good governance 

framework, including the ethical framework and consider the local code of governance.

4 To review the AGS prior to approval and consider whether it properly reflects the risk 
environment and supporting assurances, taking into account internal audit’s opinion on 
the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the council’s framework of governance, risk 
management and control.

5 To consider the council’s arrangements to secure value for money and review assurances 
and assessments on the effectiveness of these arrangements.

6 To consider the council’s framework of assurance and ensure that it adequately 
addresses the risks and priorities of the council.

7 To monitor the effective development and operation of risk management in the council.

8 To monitor progress in addressing risk-related issues reported to the committee.

9 To consider reports on the effectiveness of internal controls and monitor the 
implementation of agreed actions.

10 To review the assessment of fraud risks and potential harm to the council from fraud and 
corruption.

11 To monitor the counter-fraud strategy, actions and resources.

12 To review the governance and assurance arrangements for significant partnerships or 
collaborations.

To fulfil the requirements of the Local Authority Measure within their terms of reference, 
local authorities in Wales should identify those aspects which are specified in the Measure. 
See Appendix A for details. CIPFA considers that the requirement to review and make 
recommendations on the authority’s financial affairs will be fulfilled by reference to items 5, 
9 and 10 in these suggested terms of reference as well as those under financial reporting.

Internal audit
13 To approve the internal audit charter. 

14 To review proposals made in relation to the appointment of external providers of internal 
audit services and to make recommendations.

15 To approve the risk-based internal audit plan, including internal audit’s resource 
requirements, the approach to using other sources of assurance and any work required to 
place reliance upon those other sources.

16 To approve significant interim changes to the risk-based internal audit plan and resource 
requirements.

17 To make appropriate enquiries of both management and the head of internal audit to 
determine if there are any inappropriate scope or resource limitations.

18 To consider any impairments to independence or objectivity arising from additional roles 
or responsibilities outside of internal auditing of the head of internal audit. To approve 
and periodically review safeguards to limit such impairments.

Page 173Page 114



APPENDIX B \ SUGGESTED TERMS OF REFERENCE – LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE 

Page 61

19 To consider reports from the head of internal audit on internal audit’s performance 
during the year, including the performance of external providers of internal audit 
services. These will include:

a) updates on the work of internal audit including key findings, issues of concern and 
action in hand as a result of internal audit work

b) regular reports on the results of the QAIP

c) reports on instances where the internal audit function does not conform to the PSIAS 
and LGAN, considering whether the non-conformance is significant enough that it 
must be included in the AGS. 

20 To consider the head of internal audit’s annual report:

a) The statement of the level of conformance with the PSIAS and LGAN and the results 
of the QAIP that support the statement – these will indicate the reliability of the 
conclusions of internal audit.

b) The opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the council’s framework of 
governance, risk management and control together with the summary of the work 
supporting the opinion – these will assist the committee in reviewing the AGS. 

21 To consider summaries of specific internal audit reports as requested.

22 To receive reports outlining the action taken where the head of internal audit has 
concluded that management has accepted a level of risk that may be unacceptable to 
the authority or there are concerns about progress with the implementation of agreed 
actions.

23 To contribute to the QAIP and in particular, to the external quality assessment of internal 
audit that takes place at least once every five years.

24 To consider a report on the effectiveness of internal audit to support the AGS, where 
required to do so by the Accounts and Audit Regulations (see Appendix A).

25 To provide free and unfettered access to the audit committee chair for the head of 
internal audit, including the opportunity for a private meeting with the committee.

External audit
26 To support the independence of external audit through consideration of the external 

auditor’s annual assessment of its independence and review of any issues raised by 
PSAA or the authority’s auditor panel as appropriate.

27 To consider the external auditor’s annual letter, relevant reports and the report to those 
charged with governance.

28 To consider specific reports as agreed with the external auditor.

29 To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it gives value 
for money.

30 To commission work from internal and external audit.

31 To advise and recommend on the effectiveness of relationships between external and 
internal audit and other inspection agencies or relevant bodies.

Page 174Page 115



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 62

Financial reporting
32 To review the annual statement of accounts. Specifically, to consider whether appropriate 

accounting policies have been followed and whether there are concerns arising from the 
financial statements or from the audit that need to be brought to the attention of the 
council.

33 To consider the external auditor’s report to those charged with governance on issues 
arising from the audit of the accounts.  

Accountability arrangements
34 To report to those charged with governance on the committee’s findings, conclusions and 

recommendations concerning the adequacy and effectiveness of their governance, risk 
management and internal control frameworks, financial reporting arrangements, and 
internal and external audit functions.

35 To report to full council on a regular basis on the committee’s performance in relation to 
the terms of reference and the effectiveness of the committee in meeting its purpose.

36 To publish an annual report on the work of the committee.

SUGGESTED TERMS OF REFERENCE – POLICE
There is no formal requirement as to how the audit committee relates to the governance 
structures of the PCC and the chief constable, but it is recommended that this is clearly 
set out in the terms of reference.

Statement of purpose
1 Our [audit] [joint audit] committee is a key component of [name of body]’s corporate 

governance. It provides an independent and high-level focus on the audit, assurance and 
reporting arrangements that underpin good governance and financial standards.

2 The purpose of our [audit] [joint audit] committee is to provide independent advice and 
recommendation to [select from ‘the police and crime commissioner’ (or name), ‘the 
chief constable’ (or name)] on the adequacy of the governance and risk management 
frameworks, the internal control environment, and financial reporting, thereby helping 
to ensure efficient and effective assurance arrangements are in place. To this end the 
committee is enabled and required to have oversight of, and to provide independent 
review of, the effectiveness of [name of body]’s governance, risk management and 
control frameworks, its financial reporting and annual governance processes, and 
internal audit and external audit.

3 These terms of reference will summarise the core functions of the committee in relation 
to the office of the police and crime commissioner (OPCC) and to the constabulary 
and describe the protocols in place to enable it to operate independently, robustly and 
effectively.

Page 175Page 116



APPENDIX B \ SUGGESTED TERMS OF REFERENCE – LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE 

Page 63

Governance, risk and control
The committee will provide advice and recommendations to the PCC or chief constable in 
relation to the following areas:

4 Review the corporate governance arrangements against the good governance framework, 
including the ethical framework and consider the local code of governance.

5 Review the annual governance statement[s] prior to approval and consider whether 
[it] [they] properly [reflects] [reflect] the governance, risk and control environment and 
supporting assurances and identify any actions required for improvement.

6 Consider the arrangements to secure value for money and review assurances and 
assessments on the effectiveness of these arrangements.

7 Consider the framework of assurance and ensure that it adequately addresses the risks 
and priorities of the OPCC/the constabulary.

8 Monitor the effective development and operation of risk management, review the risk 
profile, and monitor progress of the PCC/the chief constable in addressing risk-related 
issues reported to them.

9 Consider reports on the effectiveness of internal controls and monitor the implementation 
of agreed actions.

10 Review arrangements for the assessment of fraud risks and potential harm from fraud and 
corruption and monitor the effectiveness of the counter fraud strategy, actions and resources.

11 To review the governance and assurance arrangements for significant partnerships or 
collaborations.

Internal audit 
The committee will provide advice and recommendations to the PCC or chief constable in 
relation to the following areas:

12 Annually review the internal audit charter and resources.

13 Review the internal audit plan and any proposed revisions to the internal audit plan.

14 Oversee the appointment and consider the adequacy of the performance of the internal 
audit service and its independence.

15 Consider the head of internal audit’s annual report and opinion, and a regular summary of 
the progress of internal audit activity against the audit plan, and the level of assurance it 
can give over corporate governance arrangements.

16 To consider the head of internal audit’s statement of the level of conformance with the 
PSIAS and LGAN and the results of the QAIP that support the statement – these will 
indicate the reliability of the conclusions of internal audit.

17 Consider summaries of internal audit reports and such detailed reports as the 
committee may request from the PCC/the chief constable, including issues raised or 
recommendations made by the internal audit service, management response and progress 
with agreed actions.

18 Consider a report on the effectiveness of internal audit to support the AGS, where required 
to do so by the Accounts and Audit Regulations (Wales) 2014 (see Appendix A).

Page 176Page 117

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2014/3362/contents/made


AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 64

19 To consider any impairments to independence or objectivity arising from additional roles 
or responsibilities outside of internal auditing of the head of internal audit. To make 
recommendations on safeguards to limit such impairments and periodically review their 
operation.

External audit
The committee will provide advice and recommendations to the PCC or chief constable in 
relation to the following areas:

20 Support the independence of external audit through consideration of the external 
auditor’s annual assessment of its independence and review of any issues raised by 
either PSAA or the auditor panel as appropriate.

21 Comment on the scope and depth of external audit work, its independence and whether 
it gives satisfactory value for money.

22 Consider the external auditor’s annual management letter, relevant reports and the 
report to those charged with governance.

23 Consider specific reports as agreed with the external auditor.

24 Advise and recommend on the effectiveness of relationships between external and 
internal audit and other inspection agencies or relevant bodies.

Financial reporting
The committee will provide advice and recommendations to the PCC or chief constable in 
relation to the following areas: 

25 Review the annual statement of accounts. Specifically, to consider whether appropriate 
accounting policies have been followed and whether there are concerns arising from 
the financial statements or from the audit of the financial statements that need to be 
brought to the attention of the PCC and/or the chief constable.

26 Consider the external auditor’s report to those charged with governance on issues arising 
from the audit of the financial statements. 

Accountability arrangements
The committee will do the following: 

27 On a timely basis report to the PCC and the chief constable with its advice and 
recommendations in relation to any matters that it considers relevant to governance, risk 
management and financial management.

28 Report to the PCC and the chief constable on its findings, conclusions and 
recommendations concerning the adequacy and effectiveness of their governance, risk 
management and internal control frameworks, financial reporting arrangements, and 
internal and external audit functions.

29 Review its performance against its terms of reference and objectives on an annual basis 
and report the results of this review to the PCC and the chief constable.

30 Publish an annual report on the work of the committee.

Page 177Page 118



Page 65

APPENDIX C

Audit committee members 
– knowledge and skills 

framework

CORE AREAS OF KNOWLEDGE
Knowledge area Details of core knowledge required How the audit committee member is 

able to apply the knowledge

Organisational 
knowledge

 � An overview of the governance 
structures of the authority and 
decision-making processes

 � Knowledge of the organisational 
objectives and major functions of the 
authority

 � This knowledge will be core to most 
activities of the audit committee 
including review of the AGS, internal 
and external audit reports and risk 
registers

Audit committee 
role and functions 
(Chapters 3 and 6)

 � An understanding of the audit 
committee’s role and place within the 
governance structures. Familiarity with 
the committee’s terms of reference 
and accountability arrangements

 � Knowledge of the purpose and role of 
the audit committee

 � This knowledge will enable the audit 
committee to prioritise its work in 
order to ensure it discharges its 
responsibilities under its terms of 
reference and to avoid overlapping 
the work of others

Governance (Chapter 
4)

 � Knowledge of the seven principles of 
the CIPFA/Solace Framework and the 
requirements of the AGS

 � Knowledge of the local code of 
governance

 � The committee will review the local 
code of governance and consider how 
governance arrangements align to the 
principles in the framework

 � The committee will plan the 
assurances it is to receive in order to 
adequately support the AGS

 � The committee will review the AGS 
and consider how the authority 
is meeting the principles of good 
governance

Page 178Page 119



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 66

Knowledge area Details of core knowledge required How the audit committee member is 
able to apply the knowledge

Internal audit 
(Chapter 4)

 � An awareness of the key principles of 
the PSIAS and the LGAN 

 � Knowledge of the arrangements for 
delivery of the internal audit service in 
the authority and how the role of the 
head of internal audit is fulfilled

 � The audit committee has oversight 
of the internal audit function and will 
monitor its adherence to professional 
internal audit standards

 � The audit committee will review 
the assurances from internal audit 
work and will review the risk-based 
audit plan. The committee will also 
receive the annual report, including 
an opinion and information on 
conformance with professional 
standards

 � In relying on the work of internal 
audit, the committee will need to be 
confident that professional standards 
are being followed

 � The audit committee chair is likely 
to be interviewed as part of the 
external quality assessment and the 
committee will receive the outcome 
of the assessment and action plan

Financial 
management and 
accounting (Chapter 
4)

 � Awareness of the financial statements 
that a local authority must produce 
and the principles it must follow to 
produce them

 � Understanding of good financial 
management principles

 � Knowledge of how the organisation 
meets the requirements of the role 
of the CFO, as required by The Role 
of the Chief Financial Officer in Local 
Government (CIPFA, 2016) and the 
CIPFA Statement on the Role of Chief 
Financial Officers in Policing (2018)

 � Reviewing the financial statements 
prior to publication, asking questions

 � Receiving the external audit report 
and opinion on the financial audit

 � Reviewing both external and internal 
audit recommendations relating to 
financial management and controls

 � The audit committee should consider 
the role of the CFO and how this is 
met when reviewing the AGS

External audit 
(Chapter 4)

 � Knowledge of the role and functions of 
the external auditor and who currently 
undertakes this role

 � Knowledge of the key reports and 
assurances that external audit will 
provide

 � Knowledge about arrangements for the 
appointment of auditors and quality 
monitoring undertaken

 � The audit committee should meet 
with the external auditor regularly 
and receive their reports and opinions

 � Monitoring external audit 
recommendations and maximising 
benefit from audit process

 � The audit committee should monitor 
the relationship between the external 
auditor and the authority and support 
the delivery of an effective service

Page 179Page 120

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/the-role-of-the-chief-financial-officer-in-local-government
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/the-role-of-the-chief-financial-officer-in-local-government
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/the-role-of-the-chief-financial-officer-in-local-government
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/cipfa-statement-on-the-role-of-the-chief-financial-officer-of-the-police-and-crime-commissioner-and-the-chief-finance-officer-of-the-chief-constable
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/cipfa-statement-on-the-role-of-the-chief-financial-officer-of-the-police-and-crime-commissioner-and-the-chief-finance-officer-of-the-chief-constable


APPENDIX C \ AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS – KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK 

Page 67

Knowledge area Details of core knowledge required How the audit committee member is 
able to apply the knowledge

Risk management 
(Chapter 4)

 � Understanding of the principles of risk 
management, including linkage to 
good governance and decision making

 � Knowledge of the risk management 
policy and strategy of the organisation

 � Understanding of risk governance 
arrangements, including the role of 
members and of the audit committee

 � In reviewing the AGS, the committee 
will consider the robustness of 
the authority’s risk management 
arrangements and should also have 
awareness of the major risks the 
authority faces

 � Keeping up to date with the risk 
profile is necessary to support 
the review of a number of audit 
committee agenda items, including 
the risk-based internal audit 
plan, external audit plans and the 
explanatory foreword of the accounts. 
Typically, risk registers will be used to 
inform the committee

 � The committee should also review 
reports and action plans to develop 
the application of risk management 
practice

Counter fraud 
(Chapter 4)

 � An understanding of the main areas of 
fraud and corruption risk to which the 
organisation is exposed

 � Knowledge of the principles of good 
fraud risk management practice in 
accordance with the Code of Practice 
on Managing the Risk of Fraud and 
Corruption (CIPFA, 2014)

 � Knowledge of the organisation’s 
arrangements for tackling fraud

 � Knowledge of fraud risks and good 
fraud risk management practice 
will be helpful when the committee 
reviews the organisation’s fraud 
strategy and receives reports on the 
effectiveness of that strategy

 � An assessment of arrangements 
should support the AGS and 
knowledge of good fraud risk 
management practice will support 
the audit committee member in 
reviewing that assessment

Values of good 
governance (Chapter 
5)

 � Knowledge of the Seven Principles of 
Public Life

 � Knowledge of the authority’s key 
arrangements to uphold ethical 
standards for both members and staff

 � Knowledge of the whistleblowing 
arrangements in the authority

 � The audit committee member 
will draw on this knowledge when 
reviewing governance issues and the 
AGS

 � Oversight of the effectiveness of 
whistleblowing will be considered as 
part of the AGS. The audit committee 
member should know to whom 
concerns should be reported

Page 180Page 121

http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/counter-fraud-documentation/code-of-practice-on-managing-the-risk-of-fraud-and-corruption
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/counter-fraud-documentation/code-of-practice-on-managing-the-risk-of-fraud-and-corruption
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/counter-fraud-documentation/code-of-practice-on-managing-the-risk-of-fraud-and-corruption


AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 68

Knowledge area Details of core knowledge required How the audit committee member is 
able to apply the knowledge

Treasury 
management (only 
if it is within the 
terms of reference 
of the committee 
to provide scrutiny) 
(Chapter 5)

 � Effective Scrutiny of Treasury 
Management is an assessment tool 
for reviewing the arrangements for 
undertaking scrutiny of treasury 
management. The key knowledge 
areas identified are:

 – regulatory requirements

 – treasury risks

 – the organisation’s treasury 
management strategy

 – the organisation’s policies and 
procedures in relation to treasury 
management

 � See also Treasure Your Assets (CfPS, 
2017) 

 � Core knowledge on treasury 
management is essential for the 
committee undertaking the role of 
scrutiny

Page 181Page 122

http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/assessment-of-effective-scrutiny
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/assessment-of-effective-scrutiny
http://www.cfps.org.uk/treasure-your-assets/


APPENDIX C \ AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS – KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK 

Page 69

SPECIALIST KNOWLEDGE THAT ADDS VALUE TO THE AUDIT 
COMMITTEE
This section may be of particular benefit when recruiting independent members.

Knowledge area Details of supplementary knowledge How the audit committee member is 
able to add value to the committee

Accountancy  � Professional qualification in 
accountancy

 � More able to engage with the review 
of the accounts and financial 
management issues coming before the 
committee

 � Having an understanding of the 
professional requirements and 
standards that the finance function 
must meet will provide helpful context 
for discussion of risks and resource 
issues

 � More able to engage with the external 
auditors and understand the results of 
audit work

Internal audit  � Professional qualification in  
internal audit

 � This would offer in-depth knowledge 
of professional standards of internal 
audit and good practice in internal 
auditing

 � The committee would be more able to 
provide oversight of internal audit and 
review the output of audit reports

Risk management  � Risk management qualification

 � Practical experience of applying risk 
management

 � Knowledge of risks and opportunities 
associated with major areas of 
activity

 � Enhanced knowledge of risk 
management will inform the 
committee’s oversight of the 
development of risk management 
practice

 � Enhanced knowledge of risks and 
opportunities will be helpful when 
reviewing risk registers

Governance and legal  � Legal qualification and knowledge 
of specific areas of interest to 
the committee, for example 
constitutional arrangements, data 
protection or contract law

 � Legal knowledge may add value when 
the committee considers areas of legal 
risk or governance issues

Service knowledge 
relevant to the 
functions of the 
organisation

 � Direct experience of managing or 
working in a service area similar to 
that operated by the authority

 � Previous scrutiny committee 
experience

 � Knowledge of relevant legislation, 
risks and challenges associated with 
major service areas will help the 
audit committee to understand the 
operational context

Page 182Page 123



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 70

Knowledge area Details of supplementary knowledge How the audit committee member is 
able to add value to the committee

Programme and 
project management

 � Project management qualifications 
or practical knowledge of project 
management principles

 � Expert knowledge in this area will be 
helpful when considering project risk 
management or internal audit reviews

IT systems and IT 
governance

 � Knowledge gained from management 
or development work in IT

 � Knowledge in this area will be helpful 
when considering IT governance 
arrangements or audit reviews of risks 
and controls

CORE SKILLS 

Skills Key elements How the audit committee member is 
able to apply the skill

Strategic thinking 
and understanding of 
materiality

 � Able to focus on material issues and 
overall position, rather than being 
side tracked by detail

 � When reviewing audit reports, findings 
will include areas of higher risk or 
materiality to the organisation, 
but may also highlight more minor 
errors or control failures. The audit 
committee member will need to pitch 
their review at an appropriate level 
to avoid spending too much time on 
detail

Questioning and 
constructive challenge

 � Able to frame questions that draw 
out relevant facts and explanations

 � Challenging performance and 
seeking explanations while avoiding 
hostility or grandstanding

 � The audit committee will review 
reports and recommendations to 
address weaknesses in internal control. 
The audit committee member will 
seek to understand the reasons for 
weaknesses and ensure a solution is 
found

Focus on improvement  � Ensuring there is a clear plan 
of action and allocation of 
responsibility

 � The outcome of the audit committee 
will be to secure improvements to 
the governance, risk management 
or control of the organisation, 
including clearly defined actions and 
responsibilities

 � Where errors or control failures have 
occurred, then the audit committee 
should seek assurances that 
appropriate action has been taken

Able to balance 
practicality against 
theory

 � Able to understand the practical 
implications of recommendations to 
understand how they might work in 
practice

 � The audit committee should seek 
assurances that planned actions are 
practical and realistic

Page 183Page 124



APPENDIX C \ AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS – KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK 

Page 71

Skills Key elements How the audit committee member is 
able to apply the skill

Clear communication 
skills and focus on the 
needs of users

 � Support the use of plain English in 
communications, avoiding jargon, 
acronyms, etc

 � The audit committee will seek to 
ensure that external documents such 
as the AGS and the narrative report in 
the accounts are well written for a  
non-expert audience

Objectivity  � Evaluate information on the basis 
of evidence presented and avoiding 
bias or subjectivity

 � The audit committee will receive 
assurance reports and review risk 
registers. There may be differences of 
opinion about the significance of risk 
and the appropriate control responses 
and the committee member will need 
to weigh up differing views

Meeting management 
skills

 � Chair the meetings effectively: 
summarise issues raised, ensure all 
participants are able to contribute, 
focus on the outcome and actions 
from the meeting

 � These skills are essential for the audit 
committee chair to help ensure that 
meetings stay on track and address 
the items on the agenda. The skills are 
desirable for all other members

Page 184Page 125



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 72

Page 185Page 126



Page 73

APPENDIX D

Self-assessment of  
good practice

This appendix provides a high-level review that incorporates the key principles set out in 
CIPFA’s Position Statement and this publication. Where an audit committee has a high 
degree of performance against the good practice principles, then it is an indicator that the 
committee is soundly based and has in place a knowledgeable membership. These are the 
essential factors in developing an effective audit committee. 

A regular self-assessment can be used to support the planning of the audit committee work 
programme and training plans. It can also inform an annual report. 

Good practice questions Yes Partly No

Audit committee purpose and governance  

1 Does the authority have a dedicated audit committee?

2 Does the audit committee report directly to full council? 
(applicable to local government only)

3 Do the terms of reference clearly set out the purpose of the 
committee in accordance with CIPFA’s Position Statement?

4 Is the role and purpose of the audit committee understood and 
accepted across the authority?

5 Does the audit committee provide support to the authority in 
meeting the requirements of good governance?

6 Are the arrangements to hold the committee to account for its 
performance operating satisfactorily?

Functions of the committee

7 Do the committee’s terms of reference explicitly address all the 
core areas identified in CIPFA’s Position Statement?

 � good governance

 � assurance framework, including partnerships and collaboration 
arrangements

 � internal audit

 � external audit

 � financial reporting

 � risk management

 � value for money or best value
Page 186Page 127



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 74

Good practice questions Yes Partly No

 � counter fraud and corruption

 � supporting the ethical framework

8 Is an annual evaluation undertaken to assess whether the 
committee is fulfilling its terms of reference and that adequate 
consideration has been given to all core areas?

9 Has the audit committee considered the wider areas identified in 
CIPFA’s Position Statement and whether it would be appropriate 
for the committee to undertake them?

10 Where coverage of core areas has been found to be limited, are 
plans in place to address this?

11 Has the committee maintained its advisory role by not taking 
on any decision-making powers that are not in line with its core 
purpose?

Membership and support

12 Has an effective audit committee structure and composition of the 
committee been selected?

This should include:

 � separation from the executive

 � an appropriate mix of knowledge and skills among the 
membership

 � a size of committee that is not unwieldy

 � consideration has been given to the inclusion of at least one 
independent member (where it is not already a mandatory 
requirement)

13 Have independent members appointed to the committee been 
recruited in an open and transparent way and approved by the 
full council or the PCC and chief constable as appropriate for the 
organisation?

14 Does the chair of the committee have appropriate knowledge and 
skills?

15 Are arrangements in place to support the committee with 
briefings and training?

16 Has the membership of the committee been assessed against the 
core knowledge and skills framework and found to be satisfactory?

17 Does the committee have good working relations with key people 
and organisations, including external audit, internal audit and the 
CFO?

18 Is adequate secretariat and administrative support to the 
committee provided?

Page 187Page 128



APPENDIX D \ SELF-ASSESSMENT OF  GOOD PRACTICE

Page 75

Good practice questions Yes Partly No

Effectiveness of the committee

19 Has the committee obtained feedback on its performance from 
those interacting with the committee or relying on its work?

20 Are meetings effective with a good level of discussion and 
engagement from all the members?

21 Does the committee engage with a wide range of leaders and 
managers, including discussion of audit findings, risks and action 
plans with the responsible officers?

22 Does the committee make recommendations for the improvement 
of governance, risk and control and are these acted on?

23 Has the committee evaluated whether and how it is adding value 
to the organisation?

24 Does the committee have an action plan to improve any areas of 
weakness?

25 Does the committee publish an annual report to account for its 
performance and explain its work?

Page 188Page 129



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 76

Page 189Page 130



Page 77

APPENDIX E

Evaluating the effectiveness of 
the audit committee

Assessment key

5 Clear evidence is available from a number of sources that the committee is actively supporting 
improvements across all aspects of this area. The improvements made are clearly identifiable.

4 Clear evidence from some sources that the committee is actively and effectively supporting 
improvement across some aspects of this area.

3 The committee has had mixed experience in supporting improvement in this area. There is some 
evidence that demonstrates their impact but there are also significant gaps.

2 There is some evidence that the committee has supported improvements, but the impact of this 
support is limited.

1 No evidence can be found that the audit committee has supported improvements in this area.

Areas where the audit 
committee can add 
value by supporting 
improvement

Examples of how the audit 
committee can add value and 
provide evidence of effectiveness

Self-evaluation, 
examples, areas 
of strength and 
weakness

Overall assessment: 
5 – 1 
See key above

Promoting the principles 
of good governance 
and their application to 
decision making

 � Supporting the development of 
a local code of governance

 � Providing robust review of 
the AGS and the assurances 
underpinning it

 � Working with key members/PCC 
and chief constable to improve 
their understanding of the AGS 
and their contribution to it

 � Supporting reviews/audits of 
governance arrangements

 � Participating in self-
assessments of governance 
arrangements

 � Working with partner audit 
committees to review 
governance arrangements in 
partnerships

Page 190Page 131



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 78

Areas where the audit 
committee can add 
value by supporting 
improvement

Examples of how the audit 
committee can add value and 
provide evidence of effectiveness

Self-evaluation, 
examples, areas 
of strength and 
weakness

Overall assessment: 
5 – 1 
See key above

Contributing to the 
development of an 
effective control 
environment

 � Actively monitoring 
the implementation of 
recommendations from auditors

 � Encouraging ownership of the 
internal control framework by 
appropriate managers

 � Raising significant concerns 
over controls with appropriate 
senior managers

Supporting the 
establishment of 
arrangements for 
the governance of 
risk and for effective 
arrangements to manage 
risks

 � Reviewing risk management 
arrangements and their 
effectiveness, eg risk 
management benchmarking

 � Monitoring improvements

 � Holding risk owners to account 
for major/strategic risks

Advising on the 
adequacy of the 
assurance framework 
and considering whether 
assurance is deployed 
efficiently and effectively

 � Specifying its assurance needs, 
identifying gaps or overlaps in 
assurance

 � Seeking to streamline assurance 
gathering and reporting

 � Reviewing the effectiveness of 
assurance providers, eg internal 
audit, risk management, 
external audit

Supporting the quality 
of the internal audit 
activity, particularly 
by underpinning 
its organisational 
independence

 � Reviewing the audit charter 
and functional reporting 
arrangements

 � Assessing the effectiveness of 
internal audit arrangements, 
providing constructive challenge 
and supporting improvements

 � Actively supporting the quality 
assurance and improvement 
programme of internal audit

Page 191Page 132



APPENDIX E \ EVALUATING THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Page 79

Areas where the audit 
committee can add 
value by supporting 
improvement

Examples of how the audit 
committee can add value and 
provide evidence of effectiveness

Self-evaluation, 
examples, areas 
of strength and 
weakness

Overall assessment: 
5 – 1 
See key above

Aiding the achievement 
of the authority’s goals 
and objectives through 
helping to ensure 
appropriate governance, 
risk, control and 
assurance arrangements

 � Reviewing how the governance 
arrangements support the 
achievement of sustainable 
outcomes

 � Reviewing major projects and 
programmes to ensure that 
governance and assurance 
arrangements are in place

 � Reviewing the effectiveness 
of performance management 
arrangements

Supporting the 
development of robust 
arrangements for 
ensuring value for money

 � Ensuring that assurance on 
value for money arrangements 
is included in the assurances 
received by the audit committee

 � Considering how performance in 
value for money is evaluated as 
part of the AGS

Helping the authority to 
implement the values 
of good governance, 
including effective 
arrangements for 
countering fraud and 
corruption risks

 � Reviewing arrangements 
against the standards set out 
in the Code of Practice on 
Managing the Risk of Fraud and 
Corruption (CIPFA, 2014)

 � Reviewing fraud risks and 
the effectiveness of the 
organisation’s strategy to 
address those risks

 � Assessing the effectiveness 
of ethical governance 
arrangements for both staff and 
governors

Page 192Page 133

http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/counter-fraud-documentation/code-of-practice-on-managing-the-risk-of-fraud-and-corruption
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/counter-fraud-documentation/code-of-practice-on-managing-the-risk-of-fraud-and-corruption
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/counter-fraud-documentation/code-of-practice-on-managing-the-risk-of-fraud-and-corruption


AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \ 2018 EDITION

Page 80

Areas where the audit 
committee can add 
value by supporting 
improvement

Examples of how the audit 
committee can add value and 
provide evidence of effectiveness

Self-evaluation, 
examples, areas 
of strength and 
weakness

Overall assessment: 
5 – 1 
See key above

Promoting effective 
public reporting to the 
authority’s stakeholders 
and local community 
and measures to improve 
transparency and 
accountability

 � Improving how the authority 
discharges its responsibilities 
for public reporting; for 
example, better targeting at the 
audience, plain English

 � Reviewing whether decision 
making through partnership 
organisations remains 
transparent and publicly 
accessible and encourages 
greater transparency

 � Publishing an annual report 
from the committee

Page 193Page 134



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

   Appendix 2 

Self-Assessment of Good Practice 

This appendix provides a high-level review that incorporates the key principles 

set out in CIPFA’s Position Statement and this publication. Where an audit 

committee has a high degree of performance against the good practice 

principles, then it is an indicator that the committee is soundly based and has in 

place a knowledgeable membership. These are the essential factors in 

developing an effective audit committee.  

A regular self-assessment can be used to support the planning of the audit 

committee work programme and training plans. It can also inform an annual 

report.  

Good Practice Question 
 

Yes Partly No 

Audit committee purpose and governance 
 

1 Does the authority have a dedicated audit 
committee? 
 

   

2 Does the audit committee report directly to full 
council? 
 

   

3 Do the terms of reference clearly set out the purpose 
of the committee in accordance with CIPFA’s 
Position Statement? 
 

   

4 Is the role and purpose of the audit committee 
understood and accepted across the authority? 
 

   

5 Does the audit committee provide support to the 
authority in meeting the requirements of good 
governance? 
 

   

6 Are the arrangements to hold the committee to 
account for its performance operating satisfactorily? 
 

   

7 Do the committee’s terms of reference explicitly 
address all the core areas identified in CIPFA’s 
Position Statement?  
 

   

  Good governance 
 

   

  Assurance framework, including partnerships 
and collaboration arrangements 
 

   

  Internal Audit 
 

   

Page 135



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

 

Good Practice Question 
 

Yes Partly No 

  External Audit 
 

   

  Financial Reporting 
 

   

  Risk Management 
 

   

  Value for money or best value 
 

   

  Counter-fraud and corruption 
 

   

  Supporting the ethical framework 
 

   

8 Is an annual evaluation undertaken to assess 
whether the committee is fulfilling its terms of 
reference and that adequate consideration has been 
given to all core areas? 
 

   

9 Has the audit committee considered the wider areas 
of CIPFA’s Position Statement and whether it would 
be appropriate for the committee to undertake 
them? 
 

   

10 Where coverage of core areas has been found to be 
limited, are plans in place to address this? 
 

   

11 Has the committee maintained its advisory role by 
not taking on any decision-making powers that are 
not in line with its core purpose? 
 

   

Membership and support 
 

12 Has an effective audit committee structure and 
composition of the committee been selected? 
 
This should include: 

   

  Separation from the executive 
 

   

  An appropriate mix of knowledge and skills 
among the membership 
 

   

  A size of a committee that is not unwieldy 
 

   

  Consideration has been given to the inclusion 
of at least one independent member(where it 
is not already a mandatory requirement). 

   

Page 136



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

Good Practice Question 
 

Yes Partly No 

13 Have independent members appointed to the 
committee been recruited in an open and 
transparent way and approved by the full council? 
 

   

14 Does the chair of the committee have appropriate 
knowledge and skills? 
 

   

15 Are arrangements in place to support the committee 
with briefings and training? 
 

   

16 Has the membership of the committee been assessed 
against the core knowledge and skills framework and 
found to be satisfactory?  
 

   

17 Does the committee have good working relations with 
key people and organisations, including external audit, 
internal audit and the chief financial officer?  
 

   

18 Is adequate secretariat and administrative support to 
the committee provided? 
 

   

19 Has the committee obtained feedback on its 
performance from those interacting with the committee 
or relying on its work?  
 

   

20 Are meetings effective with a good level of discussion 
and engagement from all the members? 
 

   

21 Does the committee engage with a wide range of 
leaders and managers, including discussion of audit 
findings, risks and action plans with the responsible 
officers? 
 

   

22 Does the committee make recommendations for the 
improvement of governance, risk and control and are 
these acted on? 
 

   

23 Has the committee evaluated whether and how it is 
adding value to the organisation?  
 

   

24 Does the committee have an action plan to improve 
any areas of weakness? 
 

   

25 Does the committee publish an annual report to 
account for its performance and explain its work? 
 

   

 

Page 137



1 
 

  
 

North East Derbyshire District Council 
 

Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee 
 

3 November 2021 
 

Medium Term Financial Plan – Revised Budget 2021/22 

 
Report of the Assistant Director – Finance and Resources (S151 Officer) 

 
 Classification:  This report is public 
 

Report By:  Jayne Dethick, Assistant Director - Finance and Resources  
(S151 Officer) 

 
Contact Officer:  as above 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 PURPOSE/SUMMARY 
 

To present revisions to the 2021/22 budget for the Audit and Corporate Governance 
Scrutiny Committee to consider. 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1. That the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee note the report concerning 
the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan - Revised Budgets 2021/22 and make any 
comments that they believe to be appropriate concerning the budget to the Council’s 
Cabinet. 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

  
  
  
 IMPLICATIONS 
  
 Finance and Risk         Yes   No  
 
 All financial implications are covered in the relevant sections of the attached report. 
 
  On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer    
  
 Legal including Data Protection      Yes  No  
 
 There are no legal issues arising directly from the report.  
 
 On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council  
 
 Staffing         Yes  No  

Page 138

Agenda Item 4e



2 
 

 
 There are no staffing issues arising directly from this report. 
 
 On Behalf of the Head of Paid Service 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 DECISION INFORMATION 
 

Is the decision a Key Decision? 

A Key Decision is an executive decision 
which has a significant impact on two or 
more District wards or which results in 
income or expenditure to the Council above 
the following thresholds:               

N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BDC:     

 

Revenue - £75,000    

Capital - £150,000     

 

NEDDC:  

 

Revenue - £100,000  

Capital - £250,000     

 Please indicate which threshold applies 

Is the decision subject to Call-In?(Only 
Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  

N/A 

Has the relevant Portfolio Holder been 
informed 

N/A 

District Wards Affected All 

Links to Corporate Plan priorities or 
Policy Framework 

All  

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
1. REPORT DETAILS 

 
 
1.1 The attached report details the original budget position as approved by Council in 

February 2021 and the revised position following the in depth 6 month review. The report 
which will be taken to the Council’s Cabinet on 25 November 2021 is accordingly now 
brought to the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee for its consideration.  
   

1.2 Following scrutiny, any comments that the Committee believes to be appropriate 
concerning the budget will be duly reported to the Council’s Cabinet. 
 

2 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
2.1 The purpose of this report is to ensure that the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny 

Committee are kept informed of the latest position concerning budgets and have the 
opportunity to scrutinise. 

 
 

Page 139



3 
 

 
 
 
3 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
3.1 There are no alternative options being considered at this time. How resources are utilised 

is ultimately a decision Members which will take as part of the 2022/23 Medium Term 
Financial Planning process.  
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 
 

Cabinet General Fund Revised Budget 2021-22 Pack  

Background Papers  

 

Report Author 
 

Contact Number 

Jayne Dethick – Assistant Director - Finance and 
Resources (S151 Officer) 

(01246) 217078 

 
 

 

Page 140



1 
 

Agenda Item No  
 

North East Derbyshire District Council 
 

Cabinet  
 

25 November 2021 
 

Medium Term Financial Plan – Revised Budget 2021/22 

 
Report of the Portfolio Holder with Responsibility for Finance 

 
 Classification:  This report is public 
 

Report By:  Jayne Dethick, Assistant Director - Finance and Resources  
(S151 Officer) 

 
Contact Officer:  as above 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 PURPOSE/SUMMARY 
 

To present revisions to the 2021/22 budget that was approved by Council in February 
2021 for Cabinet to consider. 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1. That Cabinet approve the use of the Resilience Reserve to fund the approved growth for 
the waste recycling service. 
 

2. That Cabinet approve any subsequent under spend on the General Fund in respect of 
2021/22 be transferred to the Resilience Reserve to “pay back” the contribution made 
this year and increase financial resilience for future years. 
 

3. That the following recommendations are made to Council: 
 
3a the budget in respect of the General Fund as set out in Appendix 1 of this report 

be approved as the Current Budget for 2021/22 
 
3b the budget in respect of the HRA as set out in Appendix 3 of this report be 

approved as the Current Budget for 2021/22 
 
3c The Capital Programme as set out in Appendix 4 of this report be approved as 

the Current Budget for 2021/22. 
 
Approved by the Portfolio Holder – Yes 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

  
  
  

Page 141



2 
 

 IMPLICATIONS 
  
 Finance and Risk         Yes   No  
 
 The issue of financial risk is covered throughout the report. In addition, it should be noted 

that not achieving a balanced budget is outlined as a key risk within the Council’s 
Strategic Risk Register. While officers are of the view that these risks are being 
appropriately managed it needs to be recognised that the continued budget pressures on 
the Council’s financial position need careful consideration when the Medium Term 
Financial Plan is refreshed in the coming months.  

  
 The capital programme identifies and recognises the need to maintain the Council’s 

assets in a fit for purpose state and to retain and attract income streams for the Council.  
The financing of the capital programme is secured for 2021/22 thus minimising the risk of 
any additional unplanned borrowing. 

 
 All financial implications are covered in the relevant sections throughout the report. 
 
   
 On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer    
  
 Legal including Data Protection      Yes  No  
 
 There are no legal issues arising directly from the report.  
 
 On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council  
 
 Staffing         Yes  No  
 
 There are no staffing issues arising directly from this report. 
 
 On Behalf of the Head of Paid Service 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 DECISION INFORMATION 
 

Is the decision a Key Decision? 

A Key Decision is an executive decision 
which has a significant impact on two or 
more District wards or which results in 
income or expenditure to the Council above 
the following thresholds:               

Yes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BDC:     

 

Revenue - £75,000    

Capital - £150,000     

 

NEDDC:  

 

Revenue - £100,000  

Capital - £250,000     

 Please indicate which threshold applies 

Page 142



3 
 

Is the decision subject to Call-In?(Only 
Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  

Yes 

Has the relevant Portfolio Holder been 
informed 

Yes 

District Wards Affected All 

Links to Corporate Plan priorities or 
Policy Framework 

All  

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 REPORT DETAILS 
 

1 General Fund Revenue Account 
 
1.1 The revised budget process is now complete and the proposed revisions for the General 

Fund are attached at Appendix 1.  The appendix shows the original budget for 2021/22 
which was approved by Council in February 2021 and the proposed revised budget for 
2021/22. Appendix 2 details the net cost of each cost centre by Directorate. 
 

1.2 As with last year, the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic is still having a detrimental 
impact across some of the Council’s services. Loss of income from fees and charges 
within Leisure Services continued throughout the first few months of the year but it is 
pleasing to note that this is improving week by week as local communities slowly 
return to pre Covid lifestyles. The Government’s sales, fees and charges 
compensation scheme continued to operate until 30 June this year providing financial 
assistance to the leisure service for that period.  Additional expenditure is still being 
incurred for cleaning, protective clothing and equipment and ICT. These budget 
pressures can be met from the Covid Assistance grant received last year so do not 
put an additional pressure on the current year’s budget.  
 

1.3 At its meeting on 12 July, Council approved a supplementary budget to meet the 
additional cost of delivering the waste recycling service in-house following insolvency of 
the external provider this year. The Council has a statutory duty to collect waste and 
continuity of service delivery during this period of uncertainty was of paramount 
importance. The approved growth is £0.465m and has been included in these revised 
estimates, funded from the Resilience Reserve this year (see 1.7 below). 
 

1.4 Taking into account the additional growth approved and other growth and efficiencies 
identified, the revised budget has increased by £0.460m. Table 1 below summarises the 
revised budget position:  
 
Table 1 
 

 2021/22 
Current 
Budget  

£000 

2021/22 
Revised 
Budget 

£000 

Budget Shortfall MTFP Feb 2021 16 0 

Growth Approved at Council 12 

Sept 2021 – Waste Recycling 

465 465 

Page 143



4 
 

Net Efficiencies identified after 

Movements to/from Reserves 

0 (5) 

Current Budget Shortfall  481 460 

Funding from Resilience Reserve (465) (460) 

General Fund Revised 2021/22 16 0 

 
 

1.5 Variances from the current budget are detailed in Tables 2 and 3 below including 
variances in amounts transferred to and from grants and reserves. Some of the costs in 
the General Fund are funded by grants and reserves and some of the income in the 
General Fund needs to be moved to the grants and reserves to fund future expenditure 
commitments. Therefore these movements are necessary to show the “true” position of 
the General Fund.  
 
Table 2 

 

 
 
1.6 The main Net Cost of Services variances can be further analysed as: 
 

Net Cost of Services: 
 
 ‘£000 

Pay inflation (1.75%) higher than original estimate (1%) 120 

Other pay growth  95 

Vacancy savings (355) 

Utility savings (107) 

ICT software maintenance contracts 155 

Capital Financing costs 83 

Miscellaneous variances < £10k per budget 58 

Expenditure funded from grants and reserves 7,334 

Budget 

Variance  

2021/22

£

Operations Directorate 486,419

Growth Directorate 793,782

Recharges to Capital and HRA (43,000)

Savings Target 15,933

Net Cost of Services 1,253,134

Investment Properties (44,887)

Interest 66,588

Parish Council Grants (70,382)

Transfer To Earmarked Reserves 6,129,619

Transfer From Earmarked Reserves (7,334,072)

Total Spending Requirement -1,253,134

Page 144



5 
 

Grant income moved to reserves (6,130) 

Total 1,253 

 
 

1.7 Reserves variances can be further analysed as: 
 
 ‘£000 

Transfers to Reserves:  

Covid grants 6,081 

Other revenue grants 49 

Total 6,130 

Transfers from Reserves:  

Covid grants  5,862 

Covid related expenditure (238) 

Resilience reserve (waste recycling service) 460 

Revenue grants 762 

Invest to save – leisure feasibility and design 300 

Invest to save - other 132 

Other earmarked reserves 56 

Total (7,334) 

 
 

1.8 Whilst the efficiencies identified through the budget process have been sufficient to 
cover the growth required they are not sufficient to meet the additional costs required 
to fund the Waste Recycling Service (see 1.3 above). This will be met from the 
Resilience Reserve this year, and savings identified during the remainder of this 
financial year will be used to “pay back” the monies to the reserve. This is not a 
sustainable solution for the medium term; this and other future budget pressures are 
being considered as part of the budget setting process and medium term financial plan 
refresh currently being undertaken.  

 
1.9 The final position will clearly be dependent on the actual financial performance out-turning 

in line with the revised budgets and there may be further budget changes required as the 
year progresses 

 
1.10 The Invest to Save Reserve had an opening balance of £3.411m at 1 April 2021. 

Commitments already made against this reserve for 2021/22 and future years amount to 
£1.243m leaving £2.168m uncommitted.  

 

1.11 The Resilience Reserve had an opening balance of £2.320m and after accounting for 
grants received and contributions made to the General Fund the estimated balance is 
£2.756. This reserve will continue to be utilised to provide financial resilience to the 
General Fund in future years as required by Medium Term Financial Plan. Ongoing 
pressures arising from the Covid pandemic will also continue to be met from this reserve.  

 General Fund Balances 
 
1.12 The level of General Fund Balances has been maintained at £2.000m in this budget. The 

General Fund balances are considered to be at an acceptable level rather than generous. 
The General Fund balance needs to be considered against the background of ongoing 
reductions in the level of Government funding together with the range of risks facing the 
Council. With only a limited level of General Fund reserves it is crucial that the Council 

Page 145



6 
 

continues to maintain robust budgetary control while securing its ongoing savings targets 
in order to safeguard both its reserves and its financial sustainability. 

 
1.13 Given the current level of general balances, then the Council has a period of time in which 

to recover the situation. In a situation in which the Council were operating at a lower level 
of balances and an overspend or an under achievement of income occurred which took 
balances to below minimum level then immediate ‘crisis’ remedial action would need to 
be considered. Such a response is not conducive to sound financial management but 
more importantly would have a significant detrimental impact upon the Council’s ability to 
deliver the planned and agreed level of services to local residents. However, Cabinet will 
recognise that given a level of General Fund Balances of £2.000m, against the savings 
requirement in the Medium Term Financial Plan, the need to continue to tackle the 
underlying forecast budget deficit remains.  

 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
 
The Housing Revenue Account revised budget for 2021/22 is set out in Appendix 3 to 
this report. 

 
Income 
 

1.14 Overall, there are no major income variances to report with dwelling rent income £0.077m 
(0.24%) lower than the current budget. Income from charges for services is slightly lower 
due to reduced court costs as a result of less court action throughout the pandemic. 

 
Expenditure 
 

1.15 Rykneld Homes Limited, who undertakes the management of the Council’s housing 
stock, is funded through the HRA by the payment of a management fee which for 2021/22 
is £9.692m. The 2022/23 fee will be recommended by Cabinet to Council as part of the 
Medium Term Financial Plan refresh.  

 
1.16 The remainder of the HRA expenditure is managed by the Council. The revised budget 

shows an increase against the current budget of £0.091m. This is largely the result of 
inflationary increases for services charged to the HRA from other services and the 
addition of a Contract Monitoring Officer to add resilience the contract management 
function in preparation for the requirements of the Housing White Paper. Interest costs to 
the HRA are also £0.168m lower than the current budget. 

 
1.17 Taking account of the proposed budget changes detailed above, the HRA is anticipated 

to deliver a surplus in the current financial year £0.077m higher than the current budget.  
 

 
1.18 The HRA balance is being maintained at £3m in line with the level of financial risk facing 

the HRA. Maintenance of this balance is necessary as it will help ensure the financial and 
operational stability of the HRA which is essential if we are to maintain the level of 
services and quality of housing provided to our tenants. Given the changes to the rent 
setting process together with the increasing numbers of houses lost under Right to Buy 
the Council and Rykneld Homes will need to continue to work closely together in order to 
ensure the continued sustainability of the HRA over the life of the 30 year Business Plan.  

 
 

Page 146



7 
 

Capital Investment Programme 
  

 The Council’s capital programme is shown in Appendix 4. It has been updated from the 
original budgets to reflect approvals within the year and the profiling of the individual 
schemes following approved changes by Members and from detailed discussions with 
budget officers.   

 
1.19 HRA Schemes 
 

The housing investment programme was increased post outturn to take account of the 

budgets rolled over from 2020/21 but no further changes have been made so the budget 

remains at £27.785m.  

1.20 General Fund 
 

The General Fund element of the Capital Programme has also been increased to take 
account of budget rollovers from 2020/21. In addition, the budget was increased on 12 
July in response to Council’s approval of an additional £0.991m for Killamarsh Lesiure 
Centre refurbishment. The first tranche of funding for the Clay Cross Town Fund project 
has also recently been received with spend projected over the remainder of this financial 
year. The General Fund budget has been revised for these and now totals £7.185m. 

  
 Capital Financing 

1.21 Appendix 4 also details how each scheme is financed. In summary: 

 
 HRA Capital Financing 
 
1.22 The HRA Capital Programme is financed from a combination of capital receipts, revenue 

contributions, prudential borrowing, use of reserves and grants.  
 
General Fund Capital Financing 

 
1.23 The General Fund Capital Programme is financed from a combination of capital receipts, 

revenue contributions, prudential borrowing and grants. The Prudential Borrowing 
financing arrangements were agreed by Council as part of the Treasury Management 
Strategy at its meeting in February 2021.       
 

 
2 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
2.1 The purpose of this report is to prepare revised budgets as early as possible within the 

financial year to provide sufficient time to allow any planned changes to be delivered. The 
Council has faced financial challenges this year putting pressure on the ability to set a 
balanced General Fund budget but careful budget management, use of reserves ring 
fenced for providing resilience when needed, and the ongoing progression of the 
transformation agenda has mitigated this.  

 
3 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
3.1 There are no alternative options being considered at this time. How resources are utilised 

is ultimately a decision Members which will take as part of the 2022/23 Medium Term 
Financial Planning process.  

Page 147



8 
 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 
2 
3 
4 

General Fund Revised Budget - Summary 2021/22 
General Fund Revised Budget - Detail 2021/22 
HRA Revised Budget 2021/22 
Capital Expenditure Revised Budget 2021/22 
 

Background Papers  

 

Report Author 
 

Contact Number 

Jayne Dethick – Assistant Director - Finance and 
Resources (S151 Officer) 

(01246) 217078 

 
 

 

Page 148

file:///C:/dfsroot/UserFiles/CorporateServices/Typing/New%20Committees/MEMBERS%20HYPERLINK/CABINET/ARCHIVE/2014/CABINET%202%20JULY%202014/Appendix%20C%20to%20AGIN%208(c).pdf


GENERAL FUND SUMMARY - REVISED BUDGET 2021/22 APPENDIX 1

Original 

Budget 

2021/22

Current 

Budget 

2021/22

Revised 

Budget 

2021/22

Variance

£ £ £

Operations Directorate 10,860,143 10,867,604 11,354,023 486,419

Growth Directorate 1,243,886 1,243,886 2,037,668 793,782

Recharges to Capital and HRA (527,500) (527,500) (570,500) (43,000)

Savings Target (15,933) (15,933) 0 15,933

Net Cost of Services 11,560,596 11,568,057 12,821,191 1,253,134

Investment Properties (413,910) (413,910) (458,797) (44,887)

Bad Debt Provision 40,000 40,000 40,000 0

Interest (177,160) (177,160) (110,572) 66,588

Debt Repayment Minimum Revenue Provision 56,000 56,000 56,000 0

Parish Precepts 3,386,780 3,386,780 3,386,780 0

Parish Council Grants 70,382 70,382 0 (70,382)

Transfer To Earmarked Reserves 60,000 60,000 6,189,619 6,129,619

Transfer From Earmarked Reserves (1,683,186) (1,690,647) (9,024,719) (7,334,072)

Total Spending Requirement 12,899,502 12,899,502 12,899,502 0

Business Rates (2,826,100) (2,826,100) (2,826,100) 0

New Homes Bonus (360,439) (360,439) (360,439) 0

Lower Tier Services Grant (205,095) (205,095) (205,095) 0

Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit - Council Tax 0 (98,661) (98,661) 0

Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit - NNDR 0 0 0 0

NEDDC Council Tax Requirement (6,121,088) (6,022,427) (6,022,427) 0

Parish Council Council Tax Requirement (3,386,780) (3,386,780) (3,386,780) 0

Council Tax Requirement (12,899,502) (12,899,502) (12,899,502) 0

Page 149



GENERAL FUND ACCOUNT - DETAILED REVISED BUDGET 2021/22 APPENDIX 2

Original 

Budget 

2021/22

Current 

Budget 

2021/22

Revised 

Budget 

2021/22 Variance

£ £ £

Operations Directorate

Director of Operations & Head Of Paid Service

1218 Community Safety 20,624 20,624 38,739 18,115
1283 Emergency Planning 16,000 16,000 16,000 0
4500 Strategic Director - Operations & Head of Paid Service 60,367 60,367 90,814 30,447
5700 Joint Strategic Director - Environment & Enforcement 55,930 55,930 19,199 (36,731)
5720 Supporting PA's 86,276 86,276 123,998 37,722

239,197 239,197 288,750 49,553

Joint Head of Service Environmental Health

3400 Environmental Protection 97,143 97,143 86,701 (10,442)
3401 Food, Health & Safety 117,176 117,176 123,970 6,794
3402 Environmental Enforcement 115,000 115,000 97,499 (17,501)
3403 Neighbourhood Management 0 0 0 0
3404 Licensing 13,132 13,132 6,845 (6,287)
3405 Pollution 117,873 117,873 110,687 (7,186)
3407 Pest Control 17,227 17,227 32,329 15,102
3409 EH Technical Support & Management 239,640 239,640 237,787 (1,853)
3410 Private Sector Housing 77,432 77,432 73,241 (4,191)
3419 Destitute Funerals 1,500 1,500 1,500 0
3420 Fly Tipping 3,000 3,000 3,000 0
3423 Air Quality Feasibility Study 0 0 23,900 23,900
3425 Covid-19 Fines 0 0 (260) (260)
3426 Covid Enforcement Team 0 0 59,407 59,407

799,123 799,123 856,606 57,483

Head of Service Partnerships and Transformation

1315 Design & Print 116,305 116,305 109,234 (7,071)
1321 Communications & Marketing 93,574 93,574 91,645 (1,929)
1323 NEDDC News 28,000 28,000 26,400 (1,600)
1329 Corporate Web Site 780 780 1,000 220
1331 Strategic Partnerships 196,924 196,924 172,392 (24,532)
1332 Strategic Partnership Projects 0 0 (71,566) (71,566)
1333 Healthy North East Derbyshire 30,134 30,134 46,481 16,347
3408 Home Improvement 21,141 21,141 20,985 (156)
4352 LEADER 0 0 0 0
4443 Elderly Peoples Clubs 4,000 4,000 4,000 0
4561 Leisure Centre Management 133,471 133,471 467,144 333,673
4600 Head of Service Partnerships & Transformation 37,552 37,552 37,918 366
4720 Sportivate 0 0 0 0
4722 Physical Inactivity Fund 0 0 0 0
4723 Generation Games 0 0 0 0
4724 Walking into Communities 11,000 11,000 11,000 0
4726 Walking for Health 0 0 0 0
4727 Five 60 0 0 0 0
4731 Promotion Of Recreation And Leisure 30,312 30,312 30,335 23
4732 Schools Promotion 0 0 0 0
4736 Derbyshire Sports Forum 14,450 14,450 14,450 0
4739 Coach Core Apprentices 0 0 0 0
4742 Arts Development 2,530 2,530 2,530 0
5215 Telephones 29,220 29,220 38,220 9,000
5216 Mobile Phones and Ipads 23,170 23,170 23,110 (60)
5221 Customer Services 357,989 357,989 339,729 (18,260)
5223 Franking Machine 57,150 57,150 58,400 1,250
5701 Joint ICT Service 0 0 0 0
5734 NEDDC ICT Service 520,178 520,178 515,688 (4,490)
5735 Cyber Security 0 0 3,040 3,040
5736 Business Development 74,392 74,392 92,621 18,229
5737 Corporate Printing Costs 15,890 15,890 15,610 (280)
5785 Contributions 136,085 136,085 136,085 0
5825 Concessionary Bus Passes (10,100) (10,100) (10,100) 0
8441 Eckington Swimming Pool 328,127 328,127 334,039 5,912
8445 Eckington Pool Cafe (3,381) (3,381) (9,069) (5,688)
8451 Dronfield Sports Centre 60,477 60,477 104,867 44,390

8455 Dronfield Café (8,634) (8,634) 11,413 20,047
8461 Sharley Park Sports Centre 427,394 434,855 379,399 (55,456)
8465 Sharley Park Sports Centre Outdoor (3,090) (3,090) (3,090) 0
8471 Killamarsh Leisure Centre 22,589 22,589 (39,498) (62,087)

Page 150



Original 

Budget 

2021/22

Current 

Budget 

2021/22

Revised 

Budget 

2021/22 Variance

£ £ £

8475 Killamarsh Outdoors (9,389) (9,389) (9,389) 0

8476 Killamarsh Café 0 0 4,548 4,548
2,738,240 2,745,701 2,949,571 203,870

Joint Head of Service Street Scene

3174 Street Scene 319,503 319,503 341,276 21,773
3227 Materials Recycling 196,220 196,220 598,859 402,639
3244 Parks Derbyshire County Council Agency (360,000) (360,000) (360,000) 0
3282 Eckington Depot 109,242 113,742 105,580 (8,162)
3285 Dronfield Bulk Depot 3,580 3,580 3,495 (85)
3511 Hasland Cemetery (44,995) (44,995) (51,915) (6,920)
3513 Temple Normanton Cemetery (8,070) (8,070) (7,405) 665
3514 Clay Cross Cemetery (59,685) (59,685) (59,685) 0
3516 Killamarsh Cemetery (18,250) (18,250) (22,015) (3,765)
3918 Dog Fouling Bins (55,000) (55,000) (57,150) (2,150)
3921 Street Cleaning Service 615,330 615,330 615,802 472
3943 Transport 158,675 154,175 118,824 (35,351)
3944 Grounds Maintenance 706,752 706,752 612,521 (94,231)
3945 Domestic Waste Collection 1,499,865 1,499,865 1,566,566 66,701
3946 Commercial Waste Collection (181,898) (181,898) (215,980) (34,082)

2,881,269 2,881,269 3,188,773 307,504

Head of Service Planning

4111 Applications And Advice (542,400) (542,400) (588,400) (46,000)
4113 Planning Appeals 0 0 37,600 37,600
4116 Planning Policy 262,824 262,824 277,520 14,696
4119 Neighbourhood Planning Grant 0 0 0 0
4311 Environmental Conservation 20,665 20,665 14,220 (6,445)
4511 Head of Service Planning 62,574 62,574 63,079 505
4513 Planning 804,051 804,051 697,583 (106,468)
4515 Building Control 58,000 58,000 58,000 0

665,714 665,714 559,602 (106,112)

Joint Head of Service Corporate Governance

1121 Member's Services 435,283 435,283 430,613 (4,670)

1123 Chair’s Expenses 11,120 11,120 12,120 1,000
1131 District Elections 0 0 0 0
1133 Parish Elections 0 0 0 0
1137 Parliamentary Elections 0 0 0 0
1139 County Council Elections 0 0 0 0
1231 Corporate Training 41,980 41,980 38,480 (3,500)
1255 Strategy and Performance 109,612 109,612 105,410 (4,202)
1256 Corporate Consultation 13,498 13,498 4,653 (8,845)
1259 Corporate Groups 6,000 6,000 6,000 0
1311 Human Resources 199,990 199,990 196,645 (3,345)
1312 Payroll 58,251 58,251 57,217 (1,034)
1313 Work Well Team 0 0 0 0
3121 Health & Safety Advisor 62,567 62,567 80,127 17,560
5273 Brass Band Concert 3,700 3,700 5,000 1,300
5313 Register Of Electors 162,029 162,029 160,036 (1,993)
5321 Jnt HoS Corporate Governance 41,367 41,367 41,760 393
5353 Legal Section 167,295 167,295 158,002 (9,293)
5354 Land Charges (8,605) (8,605) (8,653) (48)
5392 Scrutiny 51,889 51,889 52,274 385
5711 Democratic Services 248,358 248,358 209,075 (39,283)

1,604,334 1,604,334 1,548,759 (55,575)

Head of Service Finance and Resources

3176 Pool Car 2,270 2,270 0 (2,270)
3512 CBC Crematorium (173,000) (173,000) (173,000) 0
5113 Unison Duties 16,766 16,766 16,891 125
5611 External Audit 105,490 105,490 105,490 0
5615 Bank Charges 95,500 95,500 95,500 0
5621 Contribution to/from HRA (185,600) (185,600) (185,600) 0
5713 Audit 113,540 113,540 104,160 (9,380)
5714 Financial Support Services 3,500 3,500 3,500 0
5715 Procurement 46,231 46,231 47,667 1,436
5721 Financial Services 332,785 332,785 371,445 38,660
5724 Insurance 321,000 321,000 321,000 0
5725 Apprenticeship Levy 45,000 45,000 45,000 0
5727 Cost Of Ex-Employees 936,000 936,000 864,000 (72,000)

Page 151



Original 

Budget 

2021/22

Current 

Budget 

2021/22

Revised 

Budget 

2021/22 Variance

£ £ £

5728 Covid-19 Response 0 0 (422,334) (422,334)
5729 Additional Restrictions Grant 0 0 586,693 586,693
5730 Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) 0 0 0 0
5731 Local Restrictions Support Grant (Open) 0 0 0 0
5732 Christmas Support Payments 0 0 0 0
5738 Closed Business Lockdown Payments 0 0 0 0
5739 LAGDF 0 0 0 0
5740 Council Tax Hardship 0 0 0 0
5741 Housing Benefit Service (29,810) (29,810) (74,996) (45,186)
5742 Test and Trace 0 0 0 0
5743 Business Restart Grant 0 0 0 0
5745 Covid New Burdens 0 0 (56,800) (56,800)
5747 Debtors 50,768 50,768 51,149 381
5751 `NNDR Collection (12,265) (12,265) (11,437) 828
5759 Council Tax Administration 249,221 249,221 258,764 9,543
5781 Village Hall Grants 14,870 14,870 14,870 0

1,932,266 1,932,266 1,961,962 29,696

Total for Operations Directorate 10,860,143 10,867,604 11,354,023 486,419

Growth Directorate

Strategic Director Corporate Resources

1143 Director of Growth & Economic Development 61,423 61,423 51,941 (9,482)

61,423 61,423 51,941 (9,482)

Head of Service Property and Commercial Services

3135 Drainage 40,125 40,125 36,240 (3,885)
3172 Engineers 99,892 99,892 87,546 (12,346)
3241 Car Parks 43,180 43,180 50,945 7,765
3247 Street Names/Lights 6,000 6,000 5,000 (1,000)
3249 Footpath Orders (400) (400) (900) (500)
3265 Dams And Fishing Ponds (450) (450) 3,550 4,000
3281 Clay Cross Depot 0 0 1,000 1,000
3283 Northwood 0 0 0 0
3811 Closed Circuit Television 440 440 0 (440)
4412 Midway Business Centre (61,100) (61,100) (69,145) (8,045)
4425 Coney Green Business Centre (107,928) (107,928) (160,945) (53,017)
4519 The Avenue, Wingerworth 0 0 20,664 20,664
4523 Estates Administration 338,594 338,594 417,487 78,893
5204 Jnt HoS Property & Commercial Services 0 0 114,000 114,000
5205 Mill Lane 272,471 272,471 274,643 2,172
5206 Mill Lane Land 0 0 0 0
5209 Facilities Management 45,610 45,610 54,610 9,000
5210 Pioneer House (40,400) (40,400) (31,528) 8,872

636,034 636,034 803,167 167,133

Joint Head of Service Economic Development

3165 Housing Options Team 209,382 209,382 210,437 1,055
3740 Strategic Housing 56,861 56,861 71,288 14,427
3746 Homelessness Prevention Grant 0 0 (124,973) (124,973)
3747 Homeless Temp Accomodation (41,556) (41,556) (14,625) 26,931
3748 Homelessness Grant 22,000 22,000 128,037 106,037
3749 Empty Properties 2,000 2,000 2,000 0
3750 Housing Growth 15,009 15,009 15,239 230
3754 Rough Sleepers 0 0 139,469 139,469
3759 Emergency Welfare Assistance Grant 0 0 38,000 38,000
4211 Tourism Promotions 12,500 12,500 51,284 38,784
4238 Working Communities Strategy 72,772 72,772 72,743 (29)
4512 Growth Agenda 22,674 22,674 21,385 (1,289)
4517 Economic Development 158,323 158,323 162,617 4,294
4520 Eckington Killamarsh OPE 0 0 17,794 17,794
4524 New Towns Fund - Clay Cross 0 0 350,000 350,000
4526 Sheffield City Region 4,000 4,000 0 (4,000)
4527 Dronfield Civic Centre 0 0 34,200 34,200
5750 Joint Head of Service Economic Development 12,464 12,464 7,665 (4,799)

546,429 546,429 1,182,560 636,131

Total for Growth Directorate 1,243,886 1,243,886 2,037,668 793,782

Investment Properties

Page 152



Original 

Budget 

2021/22

Current 

Budget 

2021/22

Revised 

Budget 

2021/22 Variance

£ £ £

4411 Stonebroom Industrial Estate (41,560) (41,560) (57,670) (16,110)

4413 Clay Cross Industrial Estate (80,000) (80,000) (81,325) (1,325)

4415 Norwood Industrial Estate (221,615) (221,615) (231,590) (9,975)

4417 Eckington Business Park (13,000) (13,000) (6,200) 6,800

4418 Rotherside Court Eckington Business Unit (12,865) (12,865) (17,835) (4,970)

4423 Pavillion Workshops Holmewood (81,990) (81,990) (90,620) (8,630)

4432 Miscellaneous Properties 37,120 37,120 26,443 (10,677)

Total for Investment Properties (413,910) (413,910) (458,797) (44,887)

Page 153



CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2021/22 Appendix 4

Capital Expenditure

Original 

Budget 

2021/22              

£

Current 

Budget 

2021/22               

£

Revised 

Budget 

2021/22                

£

Housing Revenue Account

Capital Works - Council Housing 10,647,000 12,211,000 12,211,000

Capital Works - Non-Traditional Properties 7,152,000 7,152,000 7,152,000

Garage Demolitions 23,000 37,000 37,000

Concrete Balconies 0 111,000 111,000

Pine View Danesmoor 0 1,007,000 1,007,000

Parking Solutions 288,000 576,000 576,000

Green Homes EWI - Mickley 500,000 1,110,000 1,110,000

North Wingfield New Build Scheme 0 2,081,000 2,081,000

Stock Purchase Programme 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000

Acquisitions & Disposals (RHL) 500,000 500,000 500,000

HRA - Capital Expenditure 22,110,000 27,785,000 27,785,000

General Fund

Private Sector Housing Grants (DFG's) 743,000 743,000 820,000

ICT Schemes 35,000 227,000 204,500

Clay Cross Football Pitch 0 9,000 9,000

Asset Refurbishment - General 500,000 936,000 386,000

Roller Shutter Doors 0 42,000 42,000

Eckington Pool Carbon Efficiency Programme 1,015,000 1,015,000 1,565,000

Replacement of Vehicles 661,000 1,225,000 920,000

Contaminated Land 0 42,000 42,000

Killamarsh Leisure Centre Refurbishment 1,000,000 1,991,000 1,991,000

Clay Cross Towns Fund 0 0 1,205,000

General Fund Capital Expenditure 3,954,000 6,230,000 7,184,500

Total Capital Expenditure 26,064,000 34,015,000 34,969,500

Capital Financing 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22

Housing Revenue Account

Major Repairs Reserve (17,174,000) (19,348,000) (19,348,000)

Prudential Borrowing - HRA (2,100,000) (3,576,000) (3,276,000)

Development Reserve (391,000) (1,751,000) (1,751,000)

External Grant (1,045,000) (1,045,000) (1,045,000)

Capital Receipts Reserve (295,000) 0 (699,000)

1-4-1 Receipts (1,105,000) (2,065,000) (1,666,000)

HRA Capital Financing (22,110,000) (27,785,000) (27,785,000)

General Fund

Disabled Facilities Grant (723,000) (723,000) (820,000)

External Grant (1,015,000) (1,066,000) (2,271,000)

Prudential Borrowing (1,661,000) (3,216,000) (2,911,000)

RCCO - Roller Shutter Doors 0 (42,000) (42,000)

Useable Capital Receipts (555,000) (1,183,000) (1,140,500)

1-4-1 Receipts 0 0 0

General Fund Capital Financing (3,954,000) (6,230,000) (7,184,500)

HRA Development Reserve

Opening Balance (2,382,075) (2,382,075) (2,382,075)

Amount due in year (391,000) (856,000) 0

Amount used in year 391,000 1,751,000 1,751,000

Closing Balance (2,382,075) (1,487,075) (631,075)

Major Repairs Reserve

Opening Balance (2,174,000) (2,174,000) (2,174,000)

Amount due in year (17,174,000) (17,174,000) (17,174,000)

Amount used in year 17,174,000 19,348,000 19,348,000

Closing Balance (2,174,000) 0 0

Capital Receipts Reserve

Opening Balance (1,407,000) (1,407,000) (1,407,000)

Income expected in year (4,000,000) (4,000,000) (4,000,000)

Debt Repayment/Other Expenses 3,200,000 3,200,000 1,200,000

Amount used in year 1,028,000 1,183,000 1,839,500

Closing Balance (1,179,000) (1,024,000) (2,367,500)

Capital Receipts Reserve 1-4-1 receipts

Opening Balance (1,275,000) (1,275,000) (1,275,000)

Income expected in year 0 (1,000,000) (500,000)

Amount used in year 1,105,000 2,065,000 1,666,000

Closing Balance (170,000) (210,000) (109,000)

Total Capital Financing (26,064,000) (34,015,000) (34,969,500)

Page 154



North East Derbyshire District Council 
 

Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee 
 

3 November 2021 
 

Committee Work Programme 2021/2022 
 

Report of the Assistant Director of Governance and Monitoring Officer  
 

Classification: This report is public  
 
Report By:  Nicola Calver 
 
Contact Officer: Nicola Calver - 01246 217753 
 

 
PURPOSE / SUMMARY 
 
To enable the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee to review the 
Work Programme for the remainder of the municipal year 2021/2022. 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
  

1. That the Committee notes and approves the Audit and Corporate Governance 
Scrutiny Work Programme for the remainder of the 2021/2022 municipal year 
as set out in the attached Appendix 1. 

 
 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

Finance and Risk:   Yes☒  No ☐  

Details: 
 

Risk - the development of a Work Programme for the Audit and Corporate 

Governance Scrutiny Committee will provide an appropriate structure to assist and 

support the Committee’s work.  This will help to ensure that the Committee continues 

to operate effectively and that the Council’s governance/scrutiny and accountability 

arrangements remain robust. The Programme is designed to allow the Audit and 

Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee to continue its flexible approach to its 

and consider work the range of matters which are within its remit. There are no 

financial issues arising from the report. 

On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer 
 

 

Legal (including Data Protection):   Yes☐  No ☒  

Page 155

Agenda Item 5a



Details: 
 

There are no legal issues or Data Protection matters arising directly from this report. 

On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council 
 

Staffing:  Yes☐  No ☒   

Details: 
 

There are no staffing issues arising from the report. 

On behalf of the Head of Paid Service 
 

 

DECISION INFORMATION 
 

Decision Information    

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a 
significant impact on two or more District wards or 
which results in income or expenditure to the Council 
above the following thresholds:  
 
BDC:  

Revenue - £75,000   ☐  Capital - £150,000  ☒ 

NEDDC:  

Revenue - £100,000 ☐  Capital - £250,000  ☐ 

☒ Please indicate which threshold applies 

No 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

No 
 

District Wards Significantly Affected 
 

None 
 

Consultation: 

Leader / Deputy Leader ☐   Cabinet / Executive ☐ 

SAMT ☐ Relevant Service Manager ☐ 

Members ☒   Public ☐ Other ☐ 

 

Yes 
 
Details: 
Members of the Audit and 
Corporate Governance 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

 

Links to Council Ambition (BDC)/Council Plan (NED) priorities or Policy 
Framework including Climate Change, Equalities, and Economics and Health 
implications. 

None.  

Page 156



 
REPORT DETAILS 
 
1 Background  
 
1.1 The Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee considers a range of 

financial and governance issues on a regular basis.  Given the number of 
matters that are examined by the Committee it is appropriate that an Annual 
Work Programme continues to be in place.  

 
1.2 The Work Programme is set out in the attached Appendix 1. It should be 

recognised that the work plan is a live document to which matters may be added 
or removed as appropriate and approved by the Committee, including standing 
items.  

 
1.3 The Work Programme enables Members to give structured consideration as to 

whether the proposed agenda items are appropriate and serve to meet the 
objectives of the Committee.  That question needs to be considered in the light 
of the Council’s Constitution, Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) Guidance on the role of an Audit Committee and 
established good practice. 

 
2. Details of Proposal or Information 
 
2.1 To enable the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee to review 

the Work Programme for the remainder of the municipal year 2021/22. 
 
3 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
3.1 To enable the Committee to consider the Work Programme for the remainder 

of the 2021/22 municipal year. 
 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 There are no other options proposed. 
 
DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 
 

Committee Work Programme 2021/22 

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a 
material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the section below.  
If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC) you must provide 
copies of the background papers) 
Click here to enter text. 

 
 

 
 

Page 157



Appendix 1  

AUDIT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: PROPOSED 

WORK PROGRAMME  

DATE OF MEETING ITEM 

22 September 2021  Summary of Internal Audit Reports 

 Monitoring the Implementation of Internal Audit 
Recommendations 

 Performance Management 

 Corporate Debt  

 Financial Monitoring 

 Internal Audit Consortium Annual Report 

 External Review of Internal Audit  

 Annual Statement of Accounts and Going Concern 

Report 2020-21 

 Annual Governance Statement and Code of Corporate 

Governance 2020/21 

 Audit Completion Report 2020/21 

 Letter of Representation 2020/21 

 Risk Management  

 Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update  

 Review of Work Programme 

 

03 November 2021 

 

 Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update  

 Corporate Debt (including update on Housing Benefit 
overpayments) 

 Financial Monitoring Q2 

 Revised Budgets 

 Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy 

 Evaluate the Effectiveness of the Audit and Corporate 
Governance Committee  

 Review of Work Programme 
 

1 December 2021  Summary of Internal Audit Reports  

 Monitoring the Implementation of Internal Audit 
recommendations 

 Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update  

 Performance Management Q2 

 Ethical Investments review 

 Financial Resilience benchmarking 

 PSAA contract for External Audit Services 
 

Page 158



12 January 2022  Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update  

 Medium Term Financial Plan 2021/22 – 2025/26 

 Treasury Management Strategies 2021/22 – 2025/26 

 Risk Management Q3 

 Corporate Debt Q3 

 Review of Work Programme 
 
 

23 February 2022  Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update  

 Summary of Progress on the Annual Internal Audit Plan  

 Monitoring the Implementation of Internal Audit 
Recommendations  

 Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally  

 Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update  

 Performance Management Q3 

 Proposed Accounting Policies 2021/22 

 Review of Work Programme  

  

11 May 2022  Report of the External Auditor – Audit Plan 2022/23 

 Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update 

 Summary of Progress on the Annual Internal Audit Plan  

 Monitoring the Implementation of Internal Audit 
Recommendations  

 Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 

 Performance Management Q4 

 Risk Management Q4 

 Corporate Debt Q4 

 Work Programme 

 
 
 

Page 159


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Last Meeting
	4a NEDDC Corporate Debt - 30 September 2021
	JD - Corporate Debt 30-9-21 Appendix

	4b MTFP - Budget Monitoring April - September 2021 Q2
	JD - MTFP Budget Monitoring - Appendix

	4c NEDDC Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy
	JD - NEDDC Anti fraud and Corruption Strategy Appendix

	4d Evaluating the Effectiveness of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee
	JD - Audit Committee Evalution - App 1 - Practical Guidance for Local Authorities
	7e Evaluate the Effectiveness of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee
	App 1 to 7(e)
	ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
	CONTENTS
	CHAPTER 1: INTRODUCTION
	CHAPTER 2: CIPFA’S POSITION STATEMENT: AUDIT COMMITTEES IN 
LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
	CHAPTER 3: THE PURPOSE OF AUDIT COMMITTEES 
	CHAPTER 4: THE CORE FUNCTIONS OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE
	INTRODUCTION
	GOOD GOVERNANCE AND THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
	INTERNAL AUDIT
	RISK MANAGEMENT
	ASSURANCE FRAMEWORKS AND ASSURANCE PLANNING
	VALUE FOR MONEY AND BEST VALUE
	COUNTERING FRAUD AND CORRUPTION
	EXTERNAL AUDIT
	FINANCIAL REPORTING
	PARTNERSHIP GOVERNANCE AND COLLABORATION AGREEMENTS 
	GOVERNANCE AND ETHICAL VALUES

	CHAPTER 5: POSSIBLE WIDER FUNCTIONS OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE
	CONSIDERING MATTERS AT THE REQUEST OF STATUTORY OFFICERS OR OTHER COMMITTEES
	ETHICS COMMITTEE AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE ROLES
	TREASURY MANAGEMENT

	CHAPTER 6: INDEPENDENCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
	INTRODUCTION
	SECTOR AND DEVOLVED GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE
	STRUCTURE AND INDEPENDENCE
	SHARED AUDIT COMMITTEES
	AUDIT COMMITTEES IN PARTNERSHIP
	DECISION-MAKING POWERS AND DELEGATIONS
	ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATIONAL ARRANGEMENTS
	ACCOUNTABILITY 

	CHAPTER 7: MEMBERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS
	COMPOSITION AND OPERATION OF THE COMMITTEE
	KNOWLEDGE AND EXPERIENCE
	DEVELOPING AUDIT COMMITTEE EFFECTIVENESS
	COMMON AREAS OF DIFFICULTY FOR AUDIT COMMITTEES
	APPROACHES TO IMPROVEMENT AND EVALUATING EFFECTIVENESS

	APPENDIX A: SECTOR AND DEVOLVED GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE
	PART 1 – COMPARISON OF SECTOR AND DEVOLVED GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS AND GUIDANCE ON KEY AREAS RELATED TO AUDIT COMMITTEES
	PART 2 – GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE BY SECTOR AND DEVOLVED GOVERNMENT ON MATTERS THAT MAY BE INCLUDED IN AUDIT COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFE

	APPENDIX B: SUGGESTED TERMS OF REFERENCE – LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE
	INTRODUCTION
	SUGGESTED TERMS OF REFERENCE – LOCAL AUTHORITIES
	SUGGESTED TERMS OF REFERENCE – POLICE

	APPENDIX C: AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS – KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK
	CORE AREAS OF KNOWLEDGE
	SPECIALIST KNOWLEDGE THAT ADDS VALUE TO THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
	CORE SKILLS 

	APPENDIX D: SELF-ASSESSMENT OF GOOD PRACTICE
	APPENDIX E: EVALUATING THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE



	JD - Evaluating Audit Committee - App 2 Self Assesment

	4e MTFP - Revised Budget 2021/22
	JD - Revised Budget 21-22 Appendix

	5a Committee Work Programme 2021-2022

